

# THE SOUTH AUSTRALIAN

# **GOVERNMENT GAZETTE**

www.governmentgazette.sa.gov.au

#### PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY

ALL PUBLIC ACTS appearing in this GAZETTE are to be considered official, and obeyed as such

### ADELAIDE, THURSDAY, 23 JUNE 2016

#### CONTENTS

Page

#### R

EGULATIONS	
Fisheries Management Act 2007—	
(No. 54 of 2016)	
(No. 55 of 2016)	2142
(No. 56 of 2016)	2144
Aquaculture Act 2001 (No. 57 of 2016)	2146
Rail Safety National Law (South Australia) Act 2012	
(No. 58 of 2016)	2151
Adoption Act 1988 (No. 59 of 2016)	
Local Government Act 1999 (No. 60 of 2016)	
Children's Protection Act 1993 (No. 61 of 2016)	
Housing Improvement Act 1940 (No. 62 of 2016)	
Environment Protection Act 1993 (No. 63 of 2016)	2162
Radiation Protection and Control Act 1982	
(No. 64 of 2016)	2165
Fire and Emergency Services Act 2005	
(No. 65 of 2016)	2170
Police Act 1998 (No. 66 of 2016)	2173
Firearms Act 1977 (No. 67 of 2016)	
Retirement Villages Act 1987 (No. 68 of 2016)	2177
Hydroponics Industry Control Act 2009	
(No. 69 of 2016) Disability Services Act 1993 (No. 70 of 2016)	2179
Disability Services Act 1993 (No. 70 of 2016)	2181
Criminal Law (Clamping, Impounding and Forfeiture of	
Vehicles) Act 2007 (No. 71 of 2016)	
Summary Offences Act 1953 (No. 72 of 2016)	2185
Expiation of Offences Act 1996 (No. 73 of 2016)	
Livestock Act 1997 (No. 74 of 2016)	
Fisheries Management Act 2007 (No. 75 of 2016)	
Plant Health Act 2009 (No. 76 of 2016)	2196
Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) Act 2004—	
(No. 77 of 2016)	
(No. 78 of 2016)	
(No. 79 of 2016)	
(No. 80 of 2016)	
(No. 81 of 2016)	2208

	Page
<b>REGULATIONS</b> —continued	-
Roads (Opening and Closing) Act 1991	
(No. 82 of 2016)	
(No. 82 of 2016) Valuation of Land Act 1971 (No. 83 of 2016)	
Motor Vehicles Act 1959 (No. 84 of 2016)	
Road Traffic Act 1961 (No. 85 of 2016)	
Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia)	
Act 2013 (No. 86 of 2016)	
Crown Land Management Act 2009 (No. 87 of 201	16) 2223
National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972—	
(No. 88 of 2016)	
(No. 89 of 2016)	
(No. 90 of 2016)	
Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Act 1978	
(No. 91 of 2016)	
Historic Shipwrecks Act 1981 (No. 92 of 2016)	2236
Animal Welfare Act 1985 (No. 93 of 2016)	2237
Heritage Places Act 1993 (No. 94 of 2016)	2239
Pastoral Land Management and Conservation	
Act 1989 (No. 95 of 2016)	
Native Vegetation Act 1991 (No. 96 of 2016)	
Natural Resources Management Act 2004—	
(No. 97 of 2016)	
(No. 98 of 2016)	
Water Industry Act 2012 (No. 99 of 2016)	
Marine Parks Act 2007 (No. 100 of 2016)	
Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel) Nat	
Law (Application) Act 2013 (No. 101 of 2016)	2253
Harbors and Navigation Act 1993	
(No. 102 of 2016)	
Public Trustee Act 1995 (No. 103 of 2016)	
Fees Regulation Act 1927 (No. 104 of 2016)	
Private Parking Areas Act 1986 (No. 105 of 2016)	
Development Act 1993 (No. 106 of 2016)	
Fees Regulation Act 1927 (No. 107 of 2016)	
Food Act 2001 (No. 108 of 2016)	2289

	Page
<b>REGULATIONS</b> —continued	U
South Australian Public Health Act 2011— (No. 109 of 2016)	. 2291
(No. 110 of 2016)	. 2293
Associations Incorporation Act 1985 (No. 111 of 2016) Authorised Betting Operations Act 2000	
(No. 112 of 2016) Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Act 1996	
(No. 113 of 2016) Building Work Contractors Act 1995 (No. 114 of 2016)	
Burial and Cremation Act 2013 (No. 115 of 2016) Conveyancers Act 1994 (No. 116 of 2016)	. 2306
Co-operatives National Law (South Australia) Act 2013 (No. 117 of 2016)	
Criminal Law (Sentencing) Act 1988 (No. 118 of 2016)	. 2310
Dangerous Substances Act 1979— (No. 119 of 2016)	. 2319
(No. 120 of 2016)	. 2321
Employment Agents Registration Act 1993 (No. 121 of 2016)	2224
Expiation of Offences Act 1996 (No. 122 of 2016)	. 2324
Explosives Act 1936—	
(No. 123 of 2016) (No. 124 of 2016)	
(No. 125 of 2016)	
Fair Work Act 1994 (No. 126 of 2016)	. 2335
Freedom of Information Act 1991 (No. 127 of 2016)	
Gaming Machines Act 1992 (No. 128 of 2016) Land Agents Act 1994 (No. 129 of 2016)	
Land and Business (Sale and Conveyancing) Act 1994	. 2341
(No. 130 of 2016)	. 2343
Liquor Licensing Act 1997 (No. 131 of 2016)	. 2346
Lottery and Gaming Act 1936 (No. 132 of 2016) Partnership Act 1891 (No. 133 of 2016)	
Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Act 1995	
(No. 134 of 2016) Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Act 1995	
(No. 135 of 2016) Security and Investigation Industry Act 1995	. 2339
(No. 136 of 2016)	. 2361
Sexual Reassignment Act 1988 (No. 137 of 2016) South Australian Civil and Administrative Tribunal	
Act 2013 (No. 138 of 2016) State Records Act 1997 (No. 139 of 2016)	
Work Health and Safety Act 2012 (No. 140 of 2016)	
Land Tax Act 1936 (No. 141 of 2016)	
Petroleum Products Regulation Act 1995 (No. 142 of 2016)	2374
Mines and Works Inspection Act 1920	
(No. 143 of 2016) Mining Act 1971 (No. 144 of 2016)	
Opal Mining Act 1995 (No. 145 of 2016)	
Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Act 2000	
(No. 146 of 2016) Sheriff's Act 1978 (No. 147 of 2016)	. 2383 . 2386
Environment, Resources and Development Court	
Act 1993 (No. 148 of 2016)	. 2388
District Court Act 1991 (No. 149 of 2016) Supreme Court Act 1935 (No. 150 of 2016)	.2392
Magistrates Court Act 1993 (No. 150 of 2010)	
Youth Court Act 1993 (No. 152 of 2016)	. 2409
Coroners Act 2003 (No. 153 of 2016)	
Evidence Act 1929 (No. 154 of 2016) Bills of Sale Act 1886 (No. 155 of 2016)	
Strata Titles Act 1988 (No. 155 of 2016)	
Community Titles Act 1996 (No. 157 of 2016)	. 2419
Registration of Deeds Act 1935 (No. 158 of 2016)	. 2422
Worker's Liens Act 1893 (No. 159 of 2016) Development Act 1993 (No. 160 of 2016)	
Road Traffic Act 1961 (No. 161 of 2016)	
Motor Vehicles Act 1959 (No. 162 of 2016)	
Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia)	2155
Act 2013 (No. 163 of 2016) Controlled Substances Act 1984 (No. 164 of 2016)	
Tobacco Products Regulation Act 1997	100
(No. 165 of 2016)	. 2468
Real Property Act 1886 (No. 166 of 2016) Emergency Services Funding Act 1998	. 2469
(No. 167 of 2016)	. 2476

# **Fisheries Management (General) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Fisheries Management Act 2007

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Fisheries Management (General) Regulations 2007

- 4 Variation of regulation 10—Registration of devices for non-commercial fishing
- 5 Variation of Schedule 6—Classes of fishing activities prescribed for purposes of section 70 of Act
- 6 Variation of Schedule 7—Areas in which use of fish nets is prohibited under section 70 of Act
- 7 Variation of Schedule 10—Expiation fees

### Part 3—Transitional provision

8 Transitional provision

### Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Fisheries Management (General) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Fisheries Management (General) Regulations 2007

### 4—Variation of regulation 10—Registration of devices for non-commercial fishing

- (1) Regulation 10(3)—delete subregulation (3) and substitute:
  - (3) An application for registration of a mesh net—
    - (a) in the case of a mesh net for use in the waters of Lake George—
      - (i) cannot be made earlier than 2 months before the commencement of the registration period during which the registration is to have effect; and
      - (ii) cannot be made at all if the applicant has by a separate application obtained the registration of another mesh net for use in the waters of Lake George for the same registration period;
    - (b) in any other case—cannot be made except by a person who, immediately before 1 December 2007, had the mesh net registered in the person's name under regulation 8 of the revoked regulations.
- (2) Regulation 10(4)—delete "prescribed period" wherever occurring and substitute in each case:

registration period

- (3) Regulation 10(7)—after paragraph (d) insert:
  - (da) in the case of a mesh net for use in the waters of Lake George-
    - (i) if the application was made on or before the commencement of the registration period—for the whole of the registration period;
    - (ii) if the application was made after the commencement of the registration period—for a period commencing on the date of grant of the application and ending on the expiry of the last day of the registration period; or
- (4) Regulation 10(8)(b)—delete paragraph (b) and substitute:
  - (b) in the case of a rock lobster pot—issue to the person in whose name the pot is registered a tag bearing the registered number; and
  - (c) in the case of a mesh net for use in the waters of Lake George—issue to the person in whose name the net is registered a tag bearing the registered number.
- (5) Regulation 10(9)—after "rock lobster pot" insert:
  - , or a mesh net for use in the waters of Lake George,

#### 2139

#### (6) Regulation 10(10), definition of *prescribed period*—delete the definition and substitute:

#### registration period—

- (a) in relation to a rock lobster pot—means a period of 8 months commencing on 1 October in any year;
- (b) in relation to a mesh net for use in the waters of Lake George—means a period of 12 months commencing on 1 July in any year.

# 5—Variation of Schedule 6—Classes of fishing activities prescribed for purposes of section 70 of Act

(1) Schedule 6, Part 2, Division 2, clause 47(b)—delete "3" and substitute:

2

(2) Schedule 6, Part 2, Division 3, clause 51—delete clause 51 and substitute:

#### 51—Use of mesh net of unlawful specifications in Lake George

The taking of fish by an unlicensed person in Lake George by using a mesh net—

- (a) the length of which exceeds 75 m; or
- (b) the height of which exceeds 2.5 m; or
- (c) the mesh of which is less than 70 mm.
- (3) Schedule 6, Part 2, Division 4, clause 55—after "regulations" insert:

(other than a mesh net registered for use in the waters of Lake George)

(4) Schedule 6, Part 2, Division 4—after clause 55 insert:

### 55A—Use of mesh net in Lake George without buoy or tag

- (1) The taking of fish by an unlicensed person in the waters of Lake George by using a mesh net registered under these regulations that—
  - (a) does not have attached to 1 extremity of the net, a yellow buoy that complies with regulation 13; and
  - (b) does not have attached to the other extremity of the net 2 black buoys that comply with regulation 13.
- (2) The taking of fish by an unlicensed person in the waters of Lake George by using a mesh net registered under these regulations that—
  - (a) in the case of a net for which the Minister has issued a tag—does not have that tag affixed to the top of the yellow buoy referred to in subclause (1)(a); or
  - (b) in any other case—does not have a tag that—
    - (i) complies with regulation 13; and
    - (ii) bears the name of the person in whose name the net is registered and the registration number.

(5) Schedule 6, Part 2, Division 6, clause 71—delete the clause and substitute:

#### 71—Use of mesh net in Lake George

The taking of fish by an unlicensed person in the waters of Lake George-

- (a) between 1 and a half hours after sunrise and 1 and a half hours before sunset on the same day by using a mesh net without attending the net; or
- (b) by using a mesh net otherwise than by setting it so that it floats with no part of the net more than 2.5 m below the surface of the water.

# 6—Variation of Schedule 7—Areas in which use of fish nets is prohibited under section 70 of Act

Schedule 7, Part 1, item relating to Rivoli Bay, Beachport-delete the item and substitute:

### **Rivoli Bay and Lake George (southern lagoon), Beachport**

The waters of or near Rivoli Bay contained within and bounded by a line commencing at Mean High Water Springs closest to 37°28′28.77″ South, 140°02′06.55″ East, then south-westerly to the location on Mean High Water Springs closest to 37°28′54.50″ South, 140°00′54.31″ East (approximate intersection of Beachport jetty and Mean High Water Springs), then generally north following the line of Mean High Water Springs and including all inland waters of the southern lagoon of Lake George to the location closest to 37°27′05.83″ South, 140°00′56.94″ East, then generally north-easterly 37°27′01.01″ South, 140°01′07.92″ East, then generally south-east to the point of commencement.

#### 7—Variation of Schedule 10—Expiation fees

- (1) Schedule 10, table—after the item relating to clause 55 of Schedule 6 insert:
  - 55A Taking fish in Lake George using mesh net without buoy or tag (recreational) \$50
- (2) Schedule 10, table, item relating to clause 71 of Schedule 6—delete the description of the offence and substitute:

Taking fish in Lake George using mesh net in unlawful manner or at certain times of day without attending net (recreational)

### **Part 3—Transitional provision**

### 8—Transitional provision

The registration of a mesh net in force under the *Fisheries Management (General) Regulations 2007* immediately before the commencement of these regulations continues in force for the unexpired portion of the period for which the mesh net was registered.

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 54 of 2016

16MAFF007

\$21.30

### South Australia

# **Fisheries Management (Fees) (No. 3) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Fisheries Management Act 2007

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Fisheries Management (Fees) Regulations 2007

4 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Fisheries Management (Fees) (No. 3) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016, immediately after the *Fisheries Management (Fees) (No. 2) Variation Regulations 2016* come into operation.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Fisheries Management (Fees) Regulations 2007

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

- (1) Schedule 1, Part 3, table, item 44—delete item 44 and substitute:
  - 44 On application for registration of a mesh net to be used by a person for recreational fishing—
    - (a) in the case of a mesh net for use in the waters of Lake \$150.00 George
    - (b) in the case of a mesh net for use in any other waters—
      - (i) if the applicant produces evidence to the satisfaction of the Minister that he or she is in receipt of an age or invalid pension or is the holder of a State Concession Card issued by the Department for Communities and Social Inclusion (for each year in the term of the registration)

(ii) in any other case (for each year in the term of the registration)

No fee is payable where the Minister registers a mesh net for a period of less than 1 year for the purpose of achieving a common expiry date for the registration of that mesh net and the registration of any other mesh net owned by the same person.

- (2) Schedule 1, Part 3, table, item 46—after "rock lobster pot" insert:
  - , or a mesh net for use in the waters of Lake George,

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 55 of 2016

16MAFF007

\$42.75

# **Fisheries Management (Demerit Points) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Fisheries Management Act 2007

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Fisheries Management (Demerit Points) Regulations 2009

4 Variation of Schedule 1—Demerit points offences and demerit points

### Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Fisheries Management (Demerit Points) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Fisheries Management (Demerit Points) Regulations 2009

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 1—Demerit points offences and demerit points

(1) Schedule 1, Part 1, clause 2, table—after the item relating to clause 55 insert:

clause 55A Taking fish in Lake George using mesh net without buoy or tag (recreational)—

(a)	if tł	he offence is expiated	5
(b)	in a	any other case—	
	(i)	first offence	15
	(ii)	second offence	20

(iii) third or subsequent offence 25

(2)

Schedule 1, Part 1, clause 2, table, item relating to clause 71—delete the description of the offence in italic type and substitute:

Taking fish in Lake George using mesh net in unlawful manner or at certain times of day without attending net (recreational)

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 56 of 2016

16MAFF007

# **Aquaculture (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Aquaculture Act 2001

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Aquaculture Regulations 2005

- 4 Substitution of Schedule 1
  - Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Aquaculture (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Aquaculture Regulations 2005

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

#### Fees relating to aquaculture leases

- 1 Application fee for variation of an aquaculture lease or its conditions (section 25A(5) of Act)—
  - (a) for a variation consisting of or involving—
    - the substitution of the lease area (within or outside of an aquaculture zone) where at least 80% of the lease area will remain the same—

		(A) if the corresponding licence relating to the lease authorises the farming of prescribed wild caught tuna	\$2 343
		(B) in any other case	\$3 119
	(ii)	the substitution of the lease area within an aquaculture zone (other than a variation of a kind referred to in subparagraph (i))—	
		(A) if the farming of prescribed wild caught tuna is a permitted class of aquaculture in the zone	\$2 713
		(B) in any other case	\$3 871
	(iii)	the substitution of the lease area outside of an aquaculture zone (other than a variation of a kind referred to in subparagraph (i))	\$4 642
	(b) for	a variation of any other kind	\$819
2	Application f (section 39(2	fee for consent to transfer a production lease c) of Act)—	
	(a) for	the transfer of 1 lease	\$716
	inv	the transfer of each additional lease if the parties volved in the transfer are the same as for the first nsfer	\$607
3		fee for division of a production lease area into separate regulation 29)	\$1002
4		fee for amalgamation of 2 or more production lease ingle lease area (regulation 30)	\$1 230
Fee	s relating to a	quaculture licences	
5	Application f Act)—	fee for a corresponding licence (section 22(2d) of	
		the case of a corresponding licence authorising ivities other than research within an aquaculture zone—	
	(i)	administrative component	\$2 360
	(ii)	advertising component	\$1 478
		the case of a corresponding licence authorising research thin an aquaculture zone—	
	(i)	administrative component	\$3 632
	(ii)	advertising component	\$1 478
		the case of any corresponding licence outside of an acculture zone—	
	(i)	administrative component	\$3 632
	(ii)	advertising component	\$1 478
6	Application f (section 49 o	fee for a licence other than a corresponding licence f Act)—	
	(a) for	a category A licence—	
	(4) 101		
	(i) (ii)	administrative component advertising component	\$2 633 \$1 478

	(b) for a category B licence—	
	(i) administrative component	\$2 633
	(ii) advertising component	\$1 478
	(c) for a category C licence—	
	(i) administrative component	\$4 151
	(ii) advertising component	\$1 478
	(d) for a category D licence—	
	(i) administrative component	\$4 150
	(ii) advertising component	\$1 478
7	Application fee for renewal of an aquaculture licence other than a corresponding licence (section 50A of Act)—	
	(a) for the renewal of 1 licence	\$716
	(b) for the renewal of each additional licence if the parties to the licence are the same as for the first renewal	\$650
	Note—	
	A corresponding licence is, under section 22(2b) of the Act, renewed on the renewal of the relevant lease without the requirement for an application.	
8	Application fee for variation of conditions of an aquaculture licence (section 52(6) of Act)—	
	(a) in the case of a corresponding licence—	
	(i) for a simple variation	\$1 450
	(ii) for a standard variation	\$1 918
	(iii) for a complex variation	\$3 632
	(b) in the case of a licence other than a corresponding licence—	
	(i) for a simple variation	\$635
	(ii) for a standard variation	\$745
	(iii) for a complex variation	\$1 907
9	Application fee for consent to transfer an aquaculture licence (section 55(4) of Act)—	
	(a) in the case of a corresponding licence—	
	(i) for the transfer of 1 licence	\$716
	<ul> <li>(ii) for the transfer of each additional licence if the parties involved in the transfer are the same as for the first transfer</li> </ul>	\$607
	(b) in the case of a licence other than a corresponding licence—	
	(i) for the transfer of 1 licence	\$716
	<ul> <li>(ii) for the transfer of each additional licence if the parties involved in the transfer are the same as for the first transfer</li> </ul>	\$607

10	Application fee for consent to surrender an aquaculture licence other\$560than a corresponding licence (section 56(3)(c) of Act)\$560				
11	Application fee for division of a licence area into separate licence \$964 areas (regulation 31)				
12		ion fee for amalgamation of 2 or more licence areas into a gence area (regulation 32)	\$1 230		
13		ee for a corresponding licence (section 53(1) of Act) for the year commencing on 1 July 2016 and for each subsequent year—			
	(a)	for an aquaculture licence to farm prescribed wild caught tuna	\$12 379		
	(b)	for an aquaculture licence to farm finfish other than prescribed wild caught tuna	\$7 160		
	(c)	for an aquaculture licence to farm abalone in a subtidal area	\$5 489		
	(d)	for an aquaculture licence to farm mussels in a subtidal area	\$1 018		
	(e)	for an aquaculture licence to farm molluscs (other than abalone and mussels) in a subtidal area	\$2 109		
	(f)	for an aquaculture licence to farm molluscs (including abalone, but not including oysters) in an intertidal area	\$2 073		
	(g)	for an aquaculture licence to farm oysters in an intertidal area	\$392 plus \$213 for each hectare (rounded to 2 decimal places) in the licence area		
	(h)	for an aquaculture licence to farm algae	\$1 924		
	(i)	for an aquaculture licence authorising the storage of sea cages	\$1 924		
14	(section :	ee for a licence other than a corresponding licence 53(1) of Act) for the financial year commencing on 116 and for each subsequent financial year—			
	(a)	for a category A licence	\$503		
	(b)	for a category B licence	\$1 057		
	(c)	for a category C licence	\$2 664		
	(d)	for a category D licence	\$4 726		
Mis	cellaneou	s fees			
15		ion fee for a notation on the register that a specified person terest in a lease or licence (section 80(2a) of Act)	\$184		

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 57 of 2016

# **Rail Safety National Law National Regulations (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Rail Safety National Law (South Australia) Act 2012

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Rail Safety National Law National Regulations 2012

4 Variation of Schedule 3—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Rail Safety National Law National Regulations (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Rail Safety National Law National Regulations 2012

### 4-Variation of Schedule 3-Fees

Schedule 3, Part 2, clause 1(1), table—delete the table in clause 1(1) and substitute:

	ACT	NSW	NT	SA	TAS	VIC	WA
Rate per kilometre of track managed by a rail infrastructure manager ( $/km$ ) ( $R_T$ )	180.15	180.15	45.53	129.73	67.41	107.37	96.86
Rate per kilometre travelled by trains of a rolling stock operator(\$/km) ( <b>R</b> <sub>t</sub> )	0.066	0.066	0.151	0.103	0.167	0.035	0.052

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

on the unanimous recommendation of the responsible Ministers and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 58 of 2016

MTR/16/025

# **Adoption (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Adoption Act 1988

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Adoption Regulations 2004

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Adoption (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Adoption Regulations 2004

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

Part 1—Fees in respect of adoption through Prospective Adoptive Parents Register other than overseas subregister

1 Expression of interest under regulation 7(1)—

(a)	standard fee	\$551
-----	--------------	-------

- (b) reduced fee \$354
- 2 Application for registration as a prospective adoptive parent—
  - (a) standard fee \$725
  - (b) reduced fee \$399

3	-	ion of an assessment report by the Chief Executive gulation 9—	
	(a)	standard fee	\$705
	(b)	reduced fee	\$358
4		ction of an applicant for an adoption order under on 19	\$352
Part	2—Fees in	n respect of adoption through overseas subregister	
5	Express	ion of interest under regulation 7(1)—	
	(a)	standard fee	\$847
	(b)	reduced fee	\$635
6	and prep	tion for registration as a prospective adoptive parent paration of an assessment report by the secutive under regulation 9—	
	(a)	standard fee	\$4 234
	(b)	reduced fee	\$3 527
	(The fee seminar	includes participation in certain workshops and s.)	
7		aration of file for lodging with relevant authority of s country	\$2 822
8		ction of an applicant for an adoption order for a ar child under regulation 19—	
	(a)	for first child to be placed for adoption	\$3 668
	(b)	for second or subsequent child to be placed for adoption	\$3 527
Part	3—Other	fees	
9	-	ement of an application for transfer of registration gulation 11	\$296
10	U	ement of an application for conversion of registration gulation 12	\$480
11	Executiv	paration of an assessment report by the Chief we following an application for conversion of ion under regulation 12	\$480
12	where n section 2 for an or	unctions associated with consent to adoption and, ecessary, the preparation of a report under 22(1) of the Act prior to an application to the Court rder for adoption of a child by a person other than a elected as an applicant for an adoption order from the	
	(a)	if the application for an adoption order is to relate to only 1 child	\$393
	(b)	if the application for an adoption order is to relate to more than 1 child	\$393 for the first child and \$103 for each additional child named in the application
13	For obta	ining information under section 27 or 27A of the Act	\$63

The reduced fee is payable if the person has previously been the subject of an assessment report under regulation 9 or a report, prepared by an agency outside this State, that, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, corresponds to an assessment report under regulation 9.

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 59 of 2016

T&F16/026CS

# Local Government (General) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Local Government Act 1999

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Local Government (General) Regulations 2013

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Prescribed fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Local Government (General) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Local Government (General) Regulations 2013

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2-delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 2—Prescribed fees

For the purposes of section 169(9)(c) of the Act, where the valuation is—

 (a) of land used by the objector solely as his or her principal place of residence, the prescribed fee is
 (b) of any other land, the prescribed fee is
 \$254.00

2156

- 2 For the purposes of section 169(16) of the Act, the fee payable in relation to a review is the amount of the allowances payable under section 25A(8) of the *Valuation of Land Act 1971* in relation to the review
- 3 For the purposes of section 187(3)(e) of the Act the fee fixed under \$31.75 the Act is

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 60 of 2016

T&F16/026CS

# **Children's Protection (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Children's Protection Act 1993

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Children's Protection Regulations 2010

4 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Children's Protection (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Children's Protection Regulations 2010

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

(1) Schedule 1, clause 1, table, item 1—delete "\$51.00" and substitute:

\$52.00

(2) Schedule 1, clause 1, table, item 2—delete "\$92.50" and substitute:

\$94.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 61 of 2016

T&F16/026CS

# Housing Improvement (Section 60 statements) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Housing Improvement Act 1940

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Housing Improvement (Section 60 statements)* Regulations 2001

4 Variation of regulation 6—Fee for application

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Housing Improvement (Section 60 statements) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Housing Improvement (Section 60 statements) Regulations 2001

### **4**—Variation of regulation 6—Fee for application

Regulation 6—delete "\$33.75" and substitute:

\$34.25

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

on the recommendation of the South Australian Housing Trust and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council

on 23 June 2016

No 62 of 2016

T&F16/026CS

#### 23 June 2016

### South Australia

# **Environment Protection (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Environment Protection Act 1993

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Environment Protection Regulations 2009

- 4 Substitution of regulation 4
- 4 Monetary value of fee unit
- 5 Variation of regulation 70—Waste depot levy (section 113)
- 6 Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—Miscellaneous fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Environment Protection (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Environment Protection Regulations 2009

### 4—Substitution of regulation 4

Regulation 4—delete the regulation and substitute:

#### 4—Monetary value of fee unit

In these regulations, the monetary value of a fee unit is as follows:

- (a) for the purposes of the annual authorisation fee for a licence (including a projected annual authorisation fee under regulation 27(4) and (5))—
  - (i) for the flat fee component—\$63.00;
  - (ii) for the environment management component—\$666.00;

- (iii) for the pollutant load-based component—\$6.20;
- (iv) for the water reuse component—\$15.80;
- (b) for the purposes of the waste depot levy under regulation 70(1)(a)—\$15.30;
- (c) for all other purposes—\$19.70.

### 5—Variation of regulation 70—Waste depot levy (section 113)

(1) Regulation 70(1)(a)(i)—delete "1.900" and substitute:

2.0262

(2) Regulation 70(1)(a)(ii)—delete "1.900" and substitute:

2.0262

(3) Regulation 70(1)(a)(iii)—delete "3.800" and substitute:

4.0523

(4) Regulation 70(1)(b)—delete "1.4794" and substitute:

1.7818

### 6—Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 4—Miscellaneous fees

- 1 Application for approval of the transfer of an environmental authorisation (section 49(5) of the Act)—
  - (a) if the authorisation fee last paid or payable was less 5 fee units than \$1 000
  - (b) if the authorisation fee last paid or payable was not less than 10 fee units \$1 000 but not more than \$1 999
  - (c) if the authorisation fee last paid or payable was not less than 20 fee units \$2 000 but not more than \$4 999
  - (d) if the authorisation fee last paid or payable was not less than 30 fee units \$5 000 but not more than \$9 999
  - (e) if the authorisation fee last paid or payable was not less than 50 fee units \$10 000 but not more than \$49 999
  - (f) if the authorisation fee last paid or payable was \$50 000 or 100 fee units
- 2 Beverage container approvals and annual fees (Part 8 Division 2 of the Act)—
  - (a) application for approval of a class of containers as category A or category B containers (section 68 of the Act)—

(i)	for 1 class of container	15 fee units
(ii)	for 2 to 5 classes of container (inclusive)	25 fee units
(iii)	for 6 to 10 classes of container (inclusive)	37 fee units
(iv)	for 11 to 20 classes of container (inclusive)	61 fee units

		(v) for more	than 20 classes of container	109 fee units
	(b)	application for (section 69 of	r approval to operate a collection depot the Act)—	
		(i) for a coll machine	ection depot other than a reverse vending	7 fee units
		(ii) for a reve	erse vending machine	18 fee units
	(c)		r approval to carry on business as a super tion 69 of the Act)	43 fee units
	(d)	annual fee for the Act)—	operating a collection depot (section 69A of	
		(i) for a coll	ection depot within metropolitan Adelaide	15 fee units
		(ii) for a coll	ection depot outside metropolitan Adelaide	7.5 fee units
	(e)	annual fee for (section 69A o	carrying on business as a super collector of the Act)	32 fee units
3			ntamination auditor (section 103V of the Act E these regulations)—	
	(a)	application fo	r accreditation (regulation 54)	\$479.00
	(b)		ditation (regulation 55) or renewal of (regulation 59)	\$4 927.00
	(c)	annual fee for	accreditation (regulation 58)	\$2 851.00
	(d)	replacement o (regulation 62	of certificate of accreditation or identity card	\$63.00
4	Inspect	n of the registe	er (section 109(5) of the Act)—	
	(a)	each manual i	nspection	1 fee unit
	(b)	each inspectio	on requiring access to a computer—	
		(i) for the finances	rst 10 minutes (or part of that 10 minutes) of	1 fee unit
			additional 10 minutes (or part of that es) of access	1 fee unit
5	Сору о	part of the regis	ster (section 109(6) of the Act)—	
	(a)	first page		\$5.05
	(b)	each additiona	al page	\$1.75

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 63 of 2016

T&F16/026CS

# **Radiation Protection and Control (Ionising Radiation) (Fees)** Variation Regulations 2016

under the Radiation Protection and Control Act 1982

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Radiation Protection and Control (Ionising Radiation) Regulations 2015* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 4 Schedule 4—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Radiation Protection and Control (Ionising Radiation)* (*Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Radiation Protection and Control (Ionising Radiation) Regulations 2015

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 4—Fees

#### 1—Interpretation

In this Schedule-

level 1 radiation apparatus means—

- (a) apparatus for dental plain radiography; or
- (b) cabinet X-ray units; or
- (c) bone densitometry apparatus; or
- (d) X-ray analysis apparatus; or
- (e) apparatus for bomb disposal radiography,

other than level 2 or 3 radiation apparatus;

#### level 2 radiation apparatus means—

- (a) fixed, mobile or portable apparatus for chiropractic, medical or veterinary plain radiography; or
- (b) industrial radiography apparatus (including site radiography apparatus); or
- (c) orthopantomographic or cephalometric apparatus for dental radiography; or
- (d) mini C-arm fluoroscopy apparatus; or
- (e) bore hole logging apparatus,

other than level 3 radiation apparatus;

#### level 3 radiation apparatus means-

- (a) apparatus for computed or cone beam tomography; or
- (b) fixed or mobile apparatus for medical or veterinary fluoroscopy (other than mini C-arm fluoroscopy apparatus); or
- (c) apparatus capable of producing accelerating voltages of up to 0.5 megavolts for medical radiation therapy; or
- (d) apparatus capable of producing X-rays or electron beams with an energy range of 0.5 to 20 megaelectronvolts for medical radiation therapy; or
- (e) apparatus for mammography or soft tissue radiography.

#### 2—Licence to test for developmental purposes (section 23A of Act)

For a licence under section 23A of the Act to carry out developmental testing operations—

(a)	app	\$3 461.00		
(b)	ann	annual fee—		
	(i)	for a licence authorising, at a site, operations for the mining or processing of radioactive ores not involving <i>in situ</i> leaching	\$32 299.00	
	(ii)	for a licence authorising, at a site, operations for the mining or processing of radioactive ores involving <i>in situ</i> leaching	\$32 299.00	
	(iii)	for a licence authorising, at a site, mineral sands operations	\$3 461.00	

		(iv)	ope	a licence authorising, at a site, mineral processing rations where a radioactive substance is generated by-product	\$3 461.00	
3—Li Act)	icence to	o car	ry out	mining or mineral processing (section 24 of		
(ict)				r section 24 of the Act to carry out operations for processing—		
	(a)			on fee	\$10 383.00	
	(b)	an	- nual fe	ee—		
		(i)	min	a licence authorising, at a site, operations for the ing or processing of radioactive ores involving <i>in</i> leaching	\$280 214.00	
		(ii)	min	a licence authorising, at a site, operations for the ing or processing of radioactive ores (other than vities involving <i>in situ</i> leaching)—		
			(A)	with a capacity to extract or process up to 5 megatonnes of radioactive ore per year	\$341 960.00	
			(B)	with a capacity to extract or process more than 5 megatonnes but not more than 15 megatonnes of radioactive ore per year	\$683 914.00	
			(C)	with a capacity to extract or process more than 15 megatonnes of radioactive ore per year	\$910 372.00	
		(iii)		a licence authorising, at a site, mineral sands rations	\$26 529.00	
		(iv)	ope	a licence authorising, at a site, mineral processing rations where a radioactive substance is generated by-product	\$10 383.00	
4—Li	icence to	) use	or ha	ndle radioactive substances (section 28 of Act)		
(1)	For a licence under section 28 of the Act to use or handle radioactive substances—					
	(a)	ap	plicati	on fee	\$252.00	
	(b)	lic	ence f	ee or fee for renewal of licence	\$113.00	
(2)	who ap	plies	for a t	nce fee or application fee is payable by a person emporary licence and a permanent licence at the he subject matter of both applications is the same.		
				nises in which unsealed radioactive substances ction 29 of Act)		
				der section 29 of the Act of premises in which ve substances are handled or kept—		
	(a)	ap	plicati	on fee	\$1 244.00	
	(b)	re	gistrati	ion fee or fee for renewal of registration	\$287.00	
6—Fa	acilities	licen	ce (see	ction 29A of Act)		
(1)				spect of a facility containing unsealed radioactive g from past activities—		
	(a)	ap	plicati	on fee	\$1 997.00	
	(b)	lic	ence f	ee or fee for renewal of licence	\$7 992.00	

(2)	For a licence in respect of a facility used for the storage or handling of radioactive substances—				
	(a)	application fee	\$1 334.00		
	(b)	licence fee or fee for renewal of licence	\$3 996.00		
(3)	For a lie operation where—				
	(a)	the radioactive substances are not subjected to a process of chemical treatment and the amount of radioactive substance processed is less than 10 tonnes of ore per calendar month; or			
	(b)	the radioactive substances are subjected to a process of chemical treatment including leaching, dissolution, solvent extraction or ion exchange and the amount of radioactive substance involved in the operation is less than 10 tonnes of ore per year—			
		(i) application fee	\$1 334.00		
		(ii) licence fee or fee for renewal of licence	\$3 996.00		
7—R	egistrati	on of a sealed radioactive source (section 30 of Act)			
	For regi source-	istration under section 30 of the Act of a sealed radioactive			
	(a)	application fee for each sealed radioactive source	\$1 244.00		
	(b)	registration fee or fee for renewal of registration-			
		(i) for the first source	\$287.00		
		(ii) for each additional source to be registered in the name of the same owner	\$95.50		
8—Li	icence to	o operate radiation apparatus (section 31 of Act)			
(1)	For a licence under section 31 of the Act to operate radiation apparatus—				
	(a)	application fee	\$256.00		
	(b)	licence fee or fee for renewal of licence	\$113.00		
(2)	who app	itional licence fee or application fee is payable by a person plies for a temporary licence and a permanent licence at the me where the subject matter of both applications is the same.			
9—R	egistrati	on of radiation apparatus (section 32 of Act)			
(1)	For regi apparat				
	(a)	application fee	\$479.00		
	(b)	registration fee or fee for renewal of registration	\$228.00		
(2)	For registration under section 32 of the Act of each level 2 radiation apparatus—				
	(a)	application fee	\$515.00		
	(b)	registration fee or fee for renewal of registration	\$243.00		
(3)	For regi apparat	istration under section 32 of the Act of each level 3 radiation us—			

(a) application fee \$623.00

	(b)	registration fee or fee for renewal of registration	\$398.00				
(4)	) For registration under section 32 of the Act of each radiation apparatus other than level 1, 2 or 3 radiation apparatus—						
	(a)	application fee	\$479.00				
	(b)	registration fee or fee for renewal of registration	\$228.00				
10—1	Licence t	o possess a radiation source (section 33A of Act)					
(1)	<ol> <li>For up to 5 apparatus or sealed radioactive sources or up to 2 premises—</li> </ol>						
	(a)	application fee	\$361.00				
	(b)	licence fee or fee for renewal of licence	\$118.00				
<ul><li>(2) For 6 to 10 apparatus or sealed radioactive sources or 3 to 5 premises—</li></ul>							
	(a)	application fee	\$1 025.00				
	(b)	licence fee or fee for renewal of licence	\$281.00				
(3) For more than 10 apparatus or sealed radioactive sources or more than 5 premises—							
	(a)	application fee	\$1 906.00				
	(b)	licence fee or fee for renewal of licence	\$442.00				
		than 1 fee becomes payable under this clause, only the ee must be paid.					
11—4	Accredita	ation of third party service providers (section 33B of Act)					
(1)	Accredit	tation for shielding verifier—					
	(a)	application fee	\$183.00				
	(b)	annual fee	\$57.00				
(2)	(2) Accreditation for tester—						
	(a)	application fee	\$248.00				
	(b)	annual fee	\$57.00				
(3) Accreditation for both shielding verifier and tester—							
	(a)	application fee	\$311.00				
	(b)	annual fee	\$57.00				
12—Miscellaneous fees							
	For a rej	print of a licence or certificate of accreditation or registration	\$18.20				

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 64 of 2016

# **Fire and Emergency Services (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Fire and Emergency Services Act 2005

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Fire and Emergency Services Regulations 2005

4 Substitution of Schedules 17 and 18

Schedule 17—Fees—SAMFS

Schedule 18—Fees—SACFS

### Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Fire and Emergency Services (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Fire and Emergency Services Regulations 2005

### 4-Substitution of Schedules 17 and 18

Schedules 17 and 18—delete the Schedules and substitute:

### Schedule 17—Fees—SAMFS

1 Fee for fire alarm monitoring—

(a)	in relation to the primary alarm system	\$636.00
plus		
(b)	in relation to each secondary alarm system	\$258.00 per
		system

2	Fee for attending in response to a false alarm (with the following classifications of premises or places being determined by SAMFS)—				
	(a)	A Class	\$793.00		
	(b)	B Class	\$566.00		
	(c)	C Class	\$405.00		
3	Fees for	fire safety services—			
	(a)	new alarm connection fee	\$125.00		
	(b)	smoke testing—per hour	\$136.00		
	(c)	on-site inspections—per hour	\$136.00		
	(d)	plan appraisals/meetings-per hour	\$136.00		
	(e)	land agent searches-process fee	\$45.00		
	(f)	land agent—document fee—per page	\$4.10		
	(g)	fire report copies-per set	\$112.00		
	(h)	hydrant system test/inspection-			
		(i) per person—per hour	\$136.00		
		(ii) per flow test unit—per hour	\$136.00		
		(iii) per fire appliance—per hour	\$173.00		
		(iv) per station officer—per hour	\$69.00		
		(v) per fire-fighter—per hour	\$52.50		
		(vi) equipment hire—per hour	\$10.30		
	(i)	evacuation training—per hour	\$136.00		
4	Fee for	the emergency response vessel—per hour	\$422.00		
5	Salvage	/fire watch—			
	(a)	per fire appliance—per hour	\$173.00		
	(b)	per station officer—per hour	\$69.00		
	(c)	per fire-fighter—per hour	\$52.50		
	(d)	equipment hire—per hour	\$10.30		
6	Meals for	or fire safety services and salvage/fire watch will be at cost			
So	chedu	le 18—Fees—SACFS			

1	Fee for f	Fee for fire alarm monitoring—			
	(a)	in relation to the primary alarm system	\$636.00		
	plus				
	(b)	in relation to each secondary alarm system	\$258.00 per system		
2		attending in response to a false alarm (with the following ations of premises or places being determined by			
	(a)	A Class (very high risk premises or place)	\$793.00		
	(b)	B Class (high risk premises or place)	\$566.00		

(c)	C Class (significant, medium and low risk premises or place)	\$405.00
3 Fees fo	or fire safety services—	
(a)	new alarm connection fee	\$125.00
(b)	smoke testing—per hour	\$136.00
(c)	on-site inspections—per hour	\$136.00
(d)	plan appraisals/meetings—per hour	\$136.00
(e)	fire report copies—per set	\$112.00
(f)	hydrant system test/inspection—	
	(i) per person—per hour	\$136.00
	(ii) per flow test unit—per hour	\$136.00
	(iii) per fire appliance—per hour	\$173.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 65 of 2016

#### 2173

# South Australia **Police (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Police Act 1998

# **Contents**

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Police Regulations 2014* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

1 Interpretation 2

Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Police (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Police Regulations 2014

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

#### **1—Interpretation**

In this Schedule—

concession cardholder means a person who is the holder of-

- a current card or pass that entitles the person to travel on public (a) passenger vehicles in this State at a concession fare; or
- (b) any other current concession card approved by the Minister;

*national police certificate* means a certificate issued in respect of a specified person on due application following a national police check carried out in respect of the person;

*volunteer* means a person who acts on a voluntary basis (irrespective of whether the person receives out-of-pocket expenses).

#### 2—Fees

1	For a na person–	tional police certificate in respect of a specified	
	(a)	if the applicant is a natural person (other than where paragraph (b) or (c) applies)	\$60.50
	(b)	if the applicant is a concession cardholder (other than where paragraph (c) applies)	\$43.50
	(c)	if the applicant is a volunteer who is required to obtain a national police certificate for the purposes of volunteering	\$39.25
	(d)	if application is made on behalf of a Commonwealth, State or local government agency	\$60.50
	(e)	if application is made on behalf of a commercial organisation	\$60.50
2		port on a search of fingerprint records in respect cified person	\$125.00
3		port on a search of fingerprint and other criminal records in respect of a specified person	\$185.00
4	notificat	port on a search of police records to provide tion about the existence of a specified person's l history (other than where item 1 applies)	\$68.00
5	notificat	port on a search of police records to provide tion about the existence of a specified person's nsion history (other than where item 1 applies)	\$71.50
6		port on a search of police incident reports in respect of each PIR	\$71.50
7		port on a search of vehicle collision reports in respect of each VCR—	
	(a)	if the applicant is an approved insurer under Part 4 of the <i>Motor Vehicles Act 1959</i> ; or	\$26.75
	(b)	in any other case	\$71.50

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 66 of 2016

# **Firearms (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Firearms Act 1977

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Firearms Regulations 2008* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Firearms (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of *Firearms Regulations 2008*

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

The fees set out in the table do not include any GST that may be payable in respect of a particular fee.

- Application for grant or renewal of firearms licence for prescribed \$66 firearms
   Application for grant or renewal of firearms licence for firearms other than prescribed firearms—

   (a) if term of licence does not exceed 1 year
   \$81
  - (b) if term of licence exceeds 1 year but does not exceed \$213

	(c)	if term of licence exceeds 3 years but does not exceed 5 years	\$339
3		tion for grant or renewal of dealer's licence authorising in firearms or firearms and ammunition—	
	(a)	if term of licence does not exceed 1 year	\$422
	(b)	if term of licence exceeds 1 year but does not exceed 3 years	\$1 227
	(c)	if term of licence exceeds 3 years but does not exceed 5 years	\$2 036
4		tion for grant or renewal of dealer's licence that only es dealing in ammunition—	
	(a)	if term of licence does not exceed 1 year	\$124
	(b)	if term of licence exceeds 1 year but does not exceed 3 years	\$339
	(c)	if term of licence exceeds 3 years but does not exceed 5 years	\$554
5	Applica	tion for variation of licence	\$49
6		tion for registration of firearm in name of owner of firearm or e of duplicate certificate of registration	\$32
7	Applica	tion for licence to replace licence lost, stolen or destroyed	\$49
8	Applica	tion for permit to acquire ammunition	\$32
9	Fee to v Act	vitness the transfer of a firearm under Part 3 Division 2A of	\$23
	immedi	er, if a firearm is registered in the name of the owner ately after the transfer of the firearm is witnessed by a police the witnessing fee is not payable.	
10	Admini	strative fee on late renewal of a licence	\$34

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 67 of 2016

# **Retirement Villages (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Retirement Villages Act 1987

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of *Retirement Villages Regulations 2006*

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Retirement Villages (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Retirement Villages Regulations 2006

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 2—Fees

1	Applicat	ion for exemption under section 4(2) of the Act	\$302.00
2		tion of information required for register under section 12 of n relation to a retirement village—	
	•	if the retirement village comprises not more than 10 residences	\$17.70
	•	if the retirement village comprises more than 10 residences but not more than 50 residences	\$48.25
	•	if the retirement village comprises more than 50 residences but not more than 150 residences	\$181.00

23 June 2016

	• if the retirement village comprises more than 150 residences but not more than 300 residences	\$483.00
	• if the retirement village comprises more than 300 residences	\$606.00
3	Notification of additional stage within a retirement village	\$60.50
4	Application for exemption under section 18(2) of the Act	\$96.50
5	Application for authorisation under section 34 of the Act	\$96.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 68 of 2016

# Hydroponics Industry Control (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Hydroponics Industry Control Act 2009

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Hydroponics Industry Control Regulations 2010

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Hydroponics Industry Control (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Hydroponics Industry Control Regulations 2010

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees

1 Applica	1 Application for hydroponic equipment dealer's licence—		
(a)	\$740		
(b)	if the applicant is a natural person	\$457	
2 Applica	tion for approval as hydroponics industry employee	\$457	
3 Annual	fee for licence holders—		
(a)	if the licence holder is a body corporate	\$812	

(b)	if the licence holder is a natural person	\$621
4 Annual	fee for approved person	\$296
5 Penalty	for default (regulation 14(5))	\$170

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

# Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 69 of 2016

# **Disability Services (Assessment of Relevant History) (Fees)** Variation Regulations 2016

under the Disability Services Act 1993

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Disability Services (Assessment of Relevant History)* Regulations 2014

4 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

# **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Disability Services* (Assessment of Relevant History) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Disability Services (Assessment of Relevant History) Regulations 2014

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

(1) Schedule 1, clause 1, table, item 1—delete "\$51.00" and substitute:

\$52.00

(2) Schedule 1, clause 1, table, item 2—delete "\$92.50" and substitute:

\$94.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 70 of 2016

# **Criminal Law (Clamping, Impounding and Forfeiture of Vehicles) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Criminal Law (Clamping, Impounding and Forfeiture of Vehicles) Act 2007

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Criminal Law (Clamping, Impounding and Forfeiture of Vehicles) Regulations 2007

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Prescribed fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Criminal Law (Clamping, Impounding and Forfeiture of Vehicles) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Criminal Law (Clamping, Impounding and Forfeiture of Vehicles) Regulations 2007

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Prescribed fees

Fees payable to Commissioner in relation to impounding of a motor vehicle (section 9 of Act)

1 Administration fee (to be charged once only in relation to the impounding of a particular motor vehicle in relation to a particular offence)

\$85.00

23 June 2016

2	Fee for transportation of vehicle to storage facility	\$272.0
3	Vehicle storage fee	\$22.80 per day (or par thereof) during which the vehicle i impounded or remain uncollected
	es payable to Commissioner in relation to clamping of a mor Act)	tor vehicle (section 9
4	Administration fee (to be charged once only in relation to the clamping of a particular motor vehicle in relation to a particular offence)	\$36.2
5	Fee for attending to attach clamps to motor vehicle	\$85.00 plus a fee o \$1.10 per kilometro travelled to and from the location at which the clamps are attached
6	Fee for attending to remove clamps from motor vehicle	\$85.00 plus a fee o \$1.10 per kilometry travelled to and from the location at which the clamps are removed
	es payable to Sheriff in relation to impounding or forfeiture $12(1)(b)$ of Act)	of motor vehicle
7	Administration fee (to be charged once only in relation to the impounding or forfeiture of a particular motor vehicle in relation to a particular offence)	\$67.50
8	Seizure fee	\$94.50
9	Fee for transportation of vehicle to storage facility	\$272.00
10	Vehicle storage fee (for impounded vehicles only)	\$22.80 per day (or par thereof) during which the vehicle is impounded or remain uncollected
*	If a person entitled to custody of an impounded motor vehicle the impounding period and during ordinary business hours ar	

\* If a person entitled to custody of an impounded motor vehicle has, after the end of the impounding period and during ordinary business hours, applied to the relevant authority for release of the motor vehicle and has attended to collect the vehicle in accordance with any instructions of the relevant authority, no vehicle storage fee is payable in respect of any day occurring after the date of that application.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 71 of 2016

# **Summary Offences (Weapons) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Summary Offences Act 1953

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Summary Offences (Weapons) Regulations 2012

4 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Summary Offences (Weapons) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Summary Offences (Weapons) Regulations 2012

### 4-Variation of Schedule 1-Fees

Schedule 1, clause 1—delete "\$47" and substitute:

\$48

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 72 of 2016

# **Expiation of Offences (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Expiation of Offences Act 1996

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Explation of Offences Regulations 2011

- 4 Variation of regulation 5—Reminder notices
- 5 Variation of regulation 6—Expiation enforcement warning notices

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Expiation of Offences (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Expiation of Offences Regulations 2011

#### 4—Variation of regulation 5—Reminder notices

Regulation 5(a)—delete "\$52.00" and substitute:

\$53.00

#### 5—Variation of regulation 6—Expiation enforcement warning notices

Regulation 6(a)—delete "\$52.00" and substitute:

\$53.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 73 of 2016

# **Livestock (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Livestock Act 1997

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Livestock Regulations 2013* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Livestock (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Livestock Regulations 2013

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 3—Fees

1 Application for registration or renewal of registration under \$40.75 section 17 of the Act as a beekeeper

No fee is payable under item 1 if—

- (a) the beekeeper keeps less than 5 hives; or
- (b) the bees are kept for the purposes of instruction in an educational institution approved by the Chief Inspector.

4	2		tion for registration or renewal of registration under 17 of the Act as a deer keeper	\$81.50
		less than made to	rm for which registration is to be granted or renewed is a or more than 24 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be the amount of the fee under item 1 or 2 by applying the on that the number of whole months in the term bears to hs.	
		No regis	stration fee is payable under item 2 if—	
		(a)	the application is accompanied by an application for the allocation or renewal of a PIC for the land where the deer are or are to be kept; and	
		(b)	the proposed term of registration is no longer than the proposed term for which the PIC will be current; and	
		(c)	a fee is payable for the application for the allocation or renewal of the PIC that is not less than the fee that would be payable for registration apart from this provision.	
ŝ	3		tion for registration or renewal of registration of an breeding centre	\$71.00
	3a	Fee for i	inspection of an artificial breeding centre	\$117.00 per hour plus a fee of \$0.85 per kilometre travelled to and from the location of the artificial breeding centre
2	4	an artific (The san renewal	tion for registration or renewal of registration authorising cial breeding procedure ne fee applies in relation to an applicant for, or for of, registration authorising more than 1 category of breeding procedure).	\$71.00
4	5		tion for registration or renewal of registration of a ic laboratory	\$441.00
(	6	Late app	lication fee for renewal of registration	\$42.00
-	7	Replace	ment certificate of registration	\$35.50
8	8	Applicat each coc	tion for allocation or renewal of identification code—for le	\$81.50
		less than made to	rm for which the code is to be allocated or renewed is a or more than 24 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be the amount of the fee under item 7 by applying the on that the number of whole months in the term bears to hs.	
Ģ	9	Late app	lication fee for renewal of PIC	\$42.00
	10		xtract from the register of identification codes comprised or associated pig tattoo code and related details—	
		(a)	for each PIC	\$36.50
		(b)	to a maximum of	\$196.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 74 of 2016

# **Fisheries Management (Fees) (No. 2) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Fisheries Management Act 2007

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Fisheries Management (Fees) Regulations 2007

4 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Fisheries Management (Fees) (No. 2) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Fisheries Management (Fees) Regulations 2007

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

- (1) Schedule 1, Part 1, Division 1, table, item 19A—delete "\$368.00" and substitute: \$374.00
- (2) Schedule 1, Part 1, Division 1, table, item 19B—delete "\$4 545.00" and substitute:
   \$4 622.00
- (3) Schedule 1, Part 1, Division 1, table, item 19C—delete "\$368.00" and substitute:\$374.00
- (4) Schedule 1, Part 1, Division 1, table, item 19D—delete "\$2 103.00" and substitute:\$2 139.00

#### (5) Schedule 1, Part 1, Division 3—delete Division 3 and substitute:

### **Division 3—Miscellaneous fees**

32	On appli	\$422.00	
33	On appli fishery li	\$114.00	
34	On appli	cation to vary the registration of a master	\$114.00
35	On appli	cation to vary a quota entitlement under a fishery licence	\$142.00
36	36 On application to vary a rock lobster pot entitlement under a licence in respect of the Northern Zone Rock Lobster Fishery or Southern Zone Rock Lobster Fishery		\$142.00
	a rock lo Northern Lobster l	ixed by this clause is not payable if an application to vary bster pot entitlement under a licence in respect of Zone Rock Lobster Fishery or Southern Zone Rock Fishery is made at the same time as an application to vary rab or rock lobster quota entitlement under the licence.	
37	On appli licence	cation for registration of an additional boat under a fishery	\$114.00
38	On appli	cation for—	
	(a)	notation of an interest in a fishery licence on the register of authorities	\$184.00
	(b)	removal from the register of authorities of such a notation	\$184.00

(6) Schedule 1, Parts 2, 3 and 4—delete Parts 2 to 4 (inclusive) and substitute:

# Part 2—Processing

# **Division 1—Registration application fees**

# Registration fees payable by an applicant for registration as a fish processor (section 64(1)(d) of Act)

39	On application person	on for registration as a fish processor made by an eligible	\$184.00	
40	On application other than an			
	(a) bas	e fee	\$1 060.00	
	(b) add	litional fee—		
	(i)	if the applicant proposes to process abalone ( <i>Haliotis</i> spp) under the registration	\$1 373.00	
	(ii)	if the applicant proposes to process King Prawn ( <i>Merlicertus latisulcatus</i> ) under the registration	\$1 373.00	
	(iii)	if the applicant proposes to process Southern Rocklobster ( <i>Jasus edwardsii</i> ) under the registration	\$1 373.00	
	If registration is to be granted for a period of less than 12 months, the fee payable is a proportion of the fee set out above, being the			

If registration is to be granted for a period of less than 12 months, the fee payable is a proportion of the fee set out above, being the proportion that the number of complete months in the term of registration bears to 12.

#### **Division 2—Registration annual fees**

#### Annual fees payable by a registered fish processor (section 66(2)(a) of Act)

41	Annual	fee p	ayable by a fish processor who is an eligible person	\$184.00	
42 Annual fee payable by a fish processor who is not an eligible person—					
	(a)	bas	he fee	\$1 060.00	
	(b)	add	litional fee—		
		(i)	if the fish processor processes abalone ( <i>Haliotis</i> spp) under the registration	\$1 373.00	
		(ii)	if the fish processor processes King Prawn ( <i>Merlicertus latisulcatus</i> ) under the registration	\$1 373.00	
		(iii)	if the fish processor processes Southern Rocklobster (Jasus edwardsii) under the registration	\$1 373.00	
Di	vision	n <b>3</b> —	-Miscellaneous fees		
43	3 On application by a registered fish processor to have additional \$32.25 premises, places, boats or vehicles specified in the certificate of registration				
Pa	art 3-	-R	ecreational fishing		
Fis	heries M	lanage	payable by an applicant for registration under the <i>ement (General) Regulations 2007</i> of a device to be nal fishing		
44			on for registration of a mesh net to be used by a person nal fishing—		

- (a) if the applicant produces evidence to the satisfaction of \$21.30 the Minister that he or she is in receipt of an age or invalid pension or is the holder of a State Concession Card issued by the Department for Communities and Social Inclusion (for each year in the term of the registration)
- in any other case (for each year in the term of the \$42.75 (b) registration)

No fee is payable where the Minister registers a mesh net for a period of less than 1 year for the purpose of achieving a common expiry date for the registration of that mesh net and the registration of any other mesh net owned by the same person.

45 On application for registration of a rock lobster pot to be used by a person for recreational fishing-

	(a)	for registration of 1 rock lobster pot	\$71.00
	(b)	for registration of 2 rock lobster pots	\$197.00
46	11	ication for the issue of a replacement tag for a rock lobster stered for recreational fishing	\$28.50

# Part 4—Miscellaneous

47	On application for a permit under Part 7 Division 2 of the Act	\$114.00
48	On application for an exemption or a variation of an exemption under section 115 of the Act	\$142.00
49	On application for the issue of a duplicate authority under section 68 of the Act	\$28.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 75 of 2016

# Plant Health (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Plant Health Act 2009

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Plant Health Regulations 2009

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Plant Health (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Plant Health Regulations 2009

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 2—Fees

1 In this Schedule-

- (a) *inspection* includes a survey inspection;
- (b) *survey inspection* means an inspection by an inspector of a growing crop to determine if the crop is free from pests;

	(c)	the	charge for a service or time taken to travel to or from site of an audit or inspection is expressed as an ount per hour—	
		(i)	a charge is payable for services provided or travelling time for less than or more than an hour (with a minimum charge payable for 15 minutes for services provided or travelling time); and	
		(ii)	the amount payable is to be determined by multiplying the amount per hour by the proportion that the number of minutes for which the services are provided or the time is taken to travel rounded to the nearest 6 minutes bears to 60 minutes.	
2	Applica	ation f	ees—	
	(a)	the	lodging an application for accreditation authorising carrying out of an activity at only 1 specified mises (section 16 of the Act)	\$401.00
	(b)	the	lodging an application for accreditation authorising carrying out of an activity at more than 1 specified mises (section 16 of the Act)	\$401.00 plus \$401.00 for each additional premises
	(c)		lodging an application for variation of accreditation ction 22 of the Act)—	
		(i)	if the variation is to authorise the carrying out of the activity authorised under the accreditation at additional specified premises	\$401.00 for each additional premises
		(ii)	for any other variation	\$79.00
			Note—	
			If more than 1 application for variation of the type referred to in subparagraph (ii) is made in any year, the fee is payable only on lodging the first such application.	
	(d)		lodging an application for registration as importer ction 26 of the Act)—	
		No	te—	
			An accredited person applying for registration is not required to pay this fee.	
		(i)	if registration is restricted to the importing of diagnostic samples for testing	\$57.50
		(ii)	in any other case	\$158.00
	(e)		lodging an application for variation of registration as porter (section 30 of the Act)	\$43.00
		No	te—	
			An accredited person applying for variation of registration is not required to pay this fee.	
	(f)		lodging an application for review by the Minister ction 35 of the Act)	\$43.00

23 June 2016

3 Anr	nual fe	ees—		
	(a)	out of a	rson whose accreditation authorises the carrying n activity at only 1 specified premises 21 of the Act)	\$158.00
I	(b)	out of a	rson whose accreditation authorises the carrying n activity at more than 1 specified premises 21 of the Act)	\$158.00 plus \$158.00 for each additional premises
	(c)	for a reg	gistered importer (section 29 of the Act)	\$86.00
		Note—		
			A registered importer who is also an accredited person is not required to pay this fee.	
		or defaul turn—	t in payment of an annual fee or lodgment of an	
	(a)	for an a	ccredited person (section 21 of the Act)	\$79.00
	(b)	for a reg	gistered importer (section 29 of the Act)	\$42.75
	for a er the		certificates to be issued by an accredited person	\$31.25
6 Fee	for is	sue of pl	lant health certificate under the Act	\$31.25
7 Fee	s for a	audits an	d inspections—	
	(a)	for an a	udit or inspection during ordinary business hours	\$137.00 per hour
	(b)	for an a	udit or inspection after hours—	
	(	(i) on	a week day	\$206.00 plus \$206.00 per hour
	(	ii) on	a weekend or public holiday—	
		(A)	if the inspection has been prearranged with the auditor or inspector	\$276.00 plus \$276.00 per hour
		(B)	in any other case	\$344.00 plus \$344.00 per hour
	s for t		en to travel to or from the site of an audit or	
Not	es—			
		1	These fees are in addition to the fees under clause 7.	
		2	If, on any particular trip, more than 1 site is visited for an audit or inspection, the fees under this clause will be apportioned on an equitable basis between the persons responsible for the fees charged for the relevant audits or inspections.	
	(a)	for trave busines	elling time to or from the site during ordinary s hours	\$137.00 per hour
	(b)	for trave	elling time to or from the site after hours—	
	(	(i) on	a week day—	
		(A)	if not more than 3 hours	\$206.00 per hour, up to a maximum

(B)	(B) if more than 3 hours	
	Note—	
	If it takes more than 3 hours to travel to or from a site, the fee for the travelling time is set at a fixed rate.	
(ii) o	n a weekend or public holiday	\$276.00 per hour
9 Fee for disposal pest	Actual cost incurred	

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 76 of 2016

# Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Meat Industry) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) Act 2004

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Meat Industry)* Regulations 2006

- 4 Variation of regulation 23—Monetary value of a fee unit and administration fee
- 5 Substitution of regulation 27
- 27 Application fees
- 6 Variation of regulation 29—Annual fee

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Meat Industry) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Meat Industry) Regulations 2006

#### 4—Variation of regulation 23—Monetary value of a fee unit and administration fee

(1) Regulation 23(a)—delete "\$106" and substitute:

\$108

(2) Regulation 23(b)—delete "\$208" and substitute:

\$212

#### 5—Substitution of regulation 27

Regulation 27—delete the regulation and substitute:

#### **27—Application fees**

Application fees under the Act are payable as follows:

(a) application for accreditation—

	(i)	if 6 or fewer full time equivalent positions are to be held by persons engaged in processing or handling meat under the accreditation	\$159
	(ii)	in any other case	\$363
(b)		on for variation of conditions of accreditation or of an approved food safety arrangement—	
	(i)	if 6 or fewer full time equivalent positions are to be held by persons engaged in processing or handling meat under the accreditation	\$159
	(ii)	in any other case	\$363
(c)	applicatio (regulation	on for exemption from compliance with code on 12)	\$363
(d)	no fee is payable on an application for accreditation by the holder of a temporary accreditation under Schedule 1 Part 4 of the Act.		

#### 6—Variation of regulation 29—Annual fee

Regulation 29(da)(i)—delete "\$24.40" and substitute:

\$24.80

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

following compliance by the Minister with section 11(4) of the Act and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

on 20 0 and 2010

No 77 of 2016

# **Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Seafood) (Fees)** Variation Regulations 2016

under the Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) Act 2004

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Seafood) Regulations 2006* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Seafood)* (*Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Seafood) Regulations 2006

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application for accreditation	\$496.00
2	Application for approval of a food safety arrangement other than in conjunction with an application for accreditation	\$496.00
2		¢ 40 < 00

3 Application for variation of an approved food safety arrangement \$496.00

1	Annual	fee navable	hy an acc	redited produce	r who holds
-	Annual	ice payable	by an acc	realieu produce	a who holds—

(a)	an aquaculture licence authorising farming in a subtidal area	\$213.00 + \$143.00 per hectare of the licence area
(b)	an aquaculture licence authorising farming in an intertidal area	\$213.00 + \$301.00 per hectare of the licence area
(c)	a fishery licence authorising the taking of scallop (Family Pectinidae)	\$213.00 + \$261.00 per licence
(d)	a fishery licence subject to a condition fixing a pipi quota entitlement	\$446.00 + \$21.20 per pipi unit under the entitlement
(e)	a fishery licence subject to a condition fixing a cockle quota entitlement in respect of the Coffin Bay cockle fishing zone	\$446.00 + \$0.15 per cockle unit under the entitlement
(f)	a fishery licence subject to a condition fixing a cockle quota entitlement in respect of the Port River cockle fishing zone	\$446.00 + \$21.20 per cockle unit under the entitlement
(g)	a fishery licence subject to a condition fixing a cockle quota entitlement in respect of the West Coast cockle fishing zone	\$446.00 + \$7.55 per cockle unit under the entitlement
Penalty f	for default in payment of an annual fee or lodging of eturn	\$105.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

5

following compliance by the Minister with section 11(4) of the Act and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 78 of 2016

# **Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Plant Products)** (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) Act 2004

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Plant Products) Regulations 2010* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Plant Products) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Plant Products) Regulations 2010

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application for accreditation	\$352
2	Application for approval of a food safety arrangement other than in conjunction with an application for accreditation	\$310

3 Application for variation of an approved food safety arrangement \$310

4	Annual fee	\$310
5	Penalty for default in payment of an annual fee or lodging of annual return	\$117

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

following compliance by the Minister with section 11(4) of the Act and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 79 of 2016

# **Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Egg) (Fees)** Variation Regulations 2016

under the Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) Act 2004

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Egg) Regulations 2012* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

# **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Egg) (Fees)* Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Egg) Regulations 2012

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees

2		¢ 400
2	Application for approval of a food safety arrangement other than in conjunction with an application for accreditation	\$483
1	Application for accreditation	\$483

3 Application for variation of an approved food safety arrangement \$483

4	Annual fee payable by an accredited producer for an egg
	production business that involved at any time during the
	preceding annual return period—

	(a)	less than 1 000 laying birds	\$199
	(b)	1 000 to 9 999 laying birds	\$739
	(c)	10 000 to 49 999 laying birds	\$1 001
	(d)	50 000 or more laying birds	\$1 593
5	Penalty for default in payment of an annual fee or lodging of annual return		

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

following compliance by the Minister with section 11(4) of the Act and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council

on 23 June 2016

No 80 of 2016

## **Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Citrus Industry)** (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) Act 2004

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Citrus Industry)* Regulations 2006

4 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Citrus Industry) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 April 2017.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) (Citrus Industry) Regulations 2006

### 4-Variation of Schedule 1-Fees

Schedule 1-delete "\$173" wherever occurring and substitute in each case:

\$176

### Made by the Governor

following compliance by the Minister with section 11(4) of the Act and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 81 of 2016

## **Roads (Opening and Closing) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Roads (Opening and Closing) Act 1991

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Roads (Opening and Closing) (Fees) Regulations 2006

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Roads* (*Opening and Closing*) (*Fees*) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Roads (Opening and Closing) (Fees) Regulations 2006

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	On deposit with the Surveyor-General of preliminary plan and	\$246.00
	statement under section 9 of Act	

2 For notification of a proposed road process by the Surveyor-General \$691.00 under section 10 of Act (payable, on deposit of the preliminary plan and statement, by the council commencing the road process) 3 On deposit with the Surveyor-General of a survey plan under section 20 of Act—

(a)	exar	nination fee—	
	(i)	where the plan is an uncertified data plan	\$462.00
	(ii)	where the plan is a survey plan certified by a licensed surveyor	\$922.00
	resu (Ho furth part	a further \$462.00, payable by the surveyor, if the plan is bmitted following rejection by the Surveyor-General. wever, the Surveyor-General may waive or reduce the her fee if he or she considers that appropriate in a icular case having regard to the work involved in mining the resubmitted plan.)	
(b)	adm	inistration fee (payable in addition to examination fee)	\$227.00
section	20 for	any other document with the Surveyor-General under which a fee is not otherwise provided in this Schedule the fees payable in relation to the deposit of a survey	\$169.00 per document
		on of an order or a notice by the Surveyor-General under section 37 of Act (payable prior to notification)	\$169.00
		rawal of a document (other than a survey plan) submitted or-General	\$60.50
On appl under se		n for a road width declaration by the Surveyor-General 38	\$65.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

4

5

6

7

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 82 of 2016

## Valuation of Land (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Valuation of Land Act 1971

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Valuation of Land Regulations 2005

4 Substitution of Schedule 2 Schedule 2—Fees and allowances

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Valuation of Land (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Valuation of Land Regulations 2005

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees and allowances

#### 1—Interpretation

#### In this Schedule—

residential land means-

- (a) land designated on the valuation roll as being subject to residential land use; or
- (b) other vacant land (not exceeding 5 000 square metres) zoned for residential purposes under a Development Plan under the *Development Act 1993*.

2—I	Fees				
(1)	For a co each \$10 the imm came int	13.42 cents			
(2)	On an a	pplication for a review of a valuation (section 25B of Act)—			
	(a)	of land used by the applicant solely as his or her principal place of residence	\$103.00		
	(b)	of any other land	\$254.00		
(3)		rtified copy of, or extract from, any entry in a valuation roll 32 of Act)	\$38.75		
		es for review of valuation under <i>Valuation of Land Act 1971</i> 8)) or <i>Local Government Act 1999</i>	1		
(1)	the appl Valuer-0 involves	not completed—if the panel member has received a copy of ication for review and submissions of the applicant and General but the review is not completed because the review s a question of law, the application for review is withdrawn ome other reason approved by the Valuer-General	\$100.00		
(2)	Completed review—residential land				
	(a)	ordinary review	\$300.00		
	(b)	complex review	\$400.00		
(3)	Comple	ted review—land other than residential land			
	(a)	ordinary review	\$400.00		
	(b)	review of some complexity	\$600.00		
	(c)	review of medium complexity	\$800.00		
	(d)	review of high complexity	\$1 000.00		
(4)		nplexity, or level of complexity, of a review will be ned having regard to the following:			
	(a)	the nature and scale of the review (including the number of			

- hours reasonably required to conduct the review);
- (b) the need for consultation by the valuer with an engineer, planner, surveyor or other expert.

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 83 of 2016

## Motor Vehicles (Accident Towing Roster Scheme) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Motor Vehicles Act 1959

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Motor Vehicles (Accident Towing Roster Scheme)* Regulations 2015

4 Substitution of Schedule 3 Schedule 3—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Motor Vehicles (Accident Towing Roster Scheme)* (*Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Motor Vehicles (Accident Towing Roster Scheme) Regulations 2015

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 3—Fees

#### **Towtruck certificates**

- 1On application for a towtruck certificate\$61
- 2 For a practical test for a towtruck certificate \$62
- 3 For a towtruck certificate—

	(a)	when the holder will be proceeding to and attending at the scene of an accident	\$173 per year		
	(b)	when the holder will not be proceeding to or attending at the scene of an accident	\$86 per year		
4	For a ter	nporary towtruck certificate	\$61		
5	For a du	plicate towtruck certificate	\$61		
Acc	ident tov	ving roster scheme			
6	On appl	ication for the first position on a roster	\$488		
7	On application for renewal of each position on a roster \$289				
8	On late application for renewal of a position on a roster \$244				
9	On application for re-inclusion on a roster \$488				
Boo	oks of for	ms			
10	For auth	ority to tow forms (book of 10)	\$215		
11	For dire	ction to remove vehicle forms (book of 20)	\$11		
12	For quo	tation to repair vehicle contract forms (book of 80)	\$11		
13	For stor	age notice forms (book of 20)	\$11		

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 84 of 2016

## **Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Road Traffic Act 1961

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2014

- 4 Variation of regulation 3—Interpretation
- 5 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Fees

1 Fees for inspections

2 Fees for light vehicle permits

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2014

### 4—Variation of regulation 3—Interpretation

Regulation 3(1), definition of *Transport Department*—delete the definition and substitute:

*Transport Department* means the administrative unit of the Public Service that is responsible for assisting a Minister in the administration of the Act;

### 5—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 3—Fees

### **1—Fees for inspections**

(1) In this clause—

*Central Inspection Authority inspection* means an inspection or examination of a vehicle by the Central Inspection Authority for the purposes of section 163D of the Act;

*further inspection* means an inspection undertaken to determine if faults or defects identified by a previous inspection have been corrected;

*LPG* means liquefied petroleum gas;

*Transport Department inspection* means an inspection or examination of a vehicle by the Transport Department for the purposes of—

- (a) section 145, 161A or 163AA of the Act; or
- (b) regulation 71 (Exemptions); or
- (c) section 139(1)(ab)(i), (ab)(ii) or (ac)(ii)(A) or (B) of the *Motor Vehicles Act 1959*; or
- (d) the *Dangerous Substances Act 1979* where the vehicle has been converted to use liquefied petroleum gas,

other than an inspection or examination for the purposes of an application for a vehicle permit to which clause 2 applies.

(2) The following fees are payable for a Transport Department inspection or Central Inspection Authority inspection of a vehicle (or, if a particular inspection is specified, for a Transport Department inspection or Central Inspection Authority inspection of that kind):

	Type of vehicle and inspection				
1.	Hea	Heavy vehicles and buses			
	(1)	Inspection of a motor vehicle (other than a bus)	\$235		
	(2)	Inspection of—			
		(a) a converter dolly	\$78		
		(b) a trailer other than a converter dolly	\$158		
	(3)	Inspection of a bus	\$235		
	(4)	Further inspection of a vehicle	\$78		
2.	2. Vehicles other than heavy vehicles or buses				
	(1)	Inspection of a vehicle for the purposes of an exemption under section 163AA of the Act or regulation 71	\$235		
	(2)	Inspection of a vehicle for the purposes of section 139(1)(ab)(i) or (ii) or (1)(ac)(ii)(A) or (B) of the <i>Motor Vehicles Act 1959</i>	\$235		
	(3)	Inspection of LPG-converted vehicle for the purposes of the <i>Dangerous Substances Act 1979</i>	\$235		

	Ту	pe of vel	nicle and inspection	Fee
	(4)	Any ot	her inspection of a vehicle	\$158
	(5)	Further	r inspection of a vehicle	\$78
(3)			ee of \$24 is payable to book an inspect on) referred to in subclause (2).	ion (whether a first or
(4)	police o Australi	officer at an Polic	145 of the Act a vehicle is produced f a police station, a fee of \$55 is payable to Department on certification that the e vehicle.	le to the South
(5)	inspecti		ee becomes payable under this regulat amination, only the higher or highest f d.	-
(6)	A fee pa	ayable u	nder this clause for an inspection—	
	(a)		nless otherwise specified, be paid to the ment; and	ne Transport
	(b)	must be	e paid prior to that inspection.	
(7)	A fee pa	ayable u	nder this clause for booking an inspect	tion—
	(a)	must be	e paid to the Transport Department; an	d
	(b)	must be	e paid when the booking is made.	
2—Fe	es for li	ght veh	nicle permits	
(1)	In this c	lause—		
	in relati combina the <i>Roa</i>	on to a c ation in	<i>rmit</i> means an exemption under section dimension limit for a light vehicle or li the <i>Road Traffic (Light Vehicle Standa</i> <i>c (Light Vehicle Mass and Loading Real</i> 13;	ght vehicle ards) Rules 2013 or
	means c	letails of	e specifications in relation to an applic f a vehicle's dimensions and mechanica applied to the Transport Department by	al and other
(2)	The foll	lowing f	ees are payable to the Transport Depar	rtment:
	(a)	on appl \$76;	ication for the issue or renewal of a lig	ght vehicle permit—
	(b)		ication for an assessment of supplied v purposes of a light vehicle permit—	vehicle specifications
		(i)	\$50; and	
		(ii)	for inspection of a vehicle to verify the specifications—\$258;	he supplied vehicle

- (c) if—
  - (i) a detailed or complex assessment is required in relation to an application for the issue or renewal of a light vehicle permit; and

(ii) such an assessment involves the detailed inspection (or inspection other than at Transport Department premises) of a vehicle, the survey or inspection of proposed routes, the assessment of plans, maps or specifications, the examination of bridges or other transport infrastructure, the determination of road work or other work required to enable the use of a proposed route, the consideration of conditions that may be applicable to the permit, or any other exceptional action or costs,

a fee of the Minister's estimate of the reasonable cost of providing that detailed and complex assessment.

(3) A fee under subclause (2)(b) is payable for each vehicle whose specifications are to be assessed (including each vehicle forming part of a combination) and is payable in addition to any fee payable under subclause (2)(a) and (c).

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 85 of 2016

## Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia) Act 2013

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia) (Fees)* Regulations 2013

- 4 Variation of regulation 3—Interpretation
- 5 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia) (Fees) Regulations 2013

### 4—Variation of regulation 3—Interpretation

Regulation 3, definition of *Transport Department*—delete "that, under the responsible Minister, is responsible for" and substitute:

of the Public Service that is responsible for assisting a Minister in

### 23 June 2016

## 5—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

D	escription	Fee
ar	ee payable to the Transport Department in relation to the grant, nendment, cancellation or suspension of a mass or dimension athority, or vehicle standards exemption	
(1	) for an inspection of a heavy vehicle (other than a trailer)	\$313.00
(2	t) for an inspection of a trailer (other than a converter dolly)	\$158.00
(3	b) for an inspection of a converter dolly	\$78.00
(4	<ul> <li>for a further inspection of any vehicle referred to in a preceding subitem</li> </ul>	\$78.00
(5	<ul> <li>for inspecting a special purpose vehicle at premises (within Metropolitan Adelaide) specified by the operator of the vehicle on the request of the operator—in addition to any relevant fee referred to in a preceding subitem</li> </ul>	\$80.00
(6	i) for booking an inspection or further inspection	\$24.00
W	ee payable to the Transport Department in relation to compliance ith a condition of a vehicle standards exemption, or mass or mension authority	
(1	) for an inspection of a heavy vehicle (other than a trailer)	\$313.00
(2	c) for an inspection of a trailer (other than a converter dolly)	\$158.00
(3	b) for an inspection of a converter dolly	\$78.00
(4	<ul> <li>for a further inspection of any vehicle referred to in a preceding subitem</li> </ul>	\$78.00
(5	() for booking an inspection or further inspection	\$24.00
	ee payable to the Transport Department in relation to the approval y the Regulator of a vehicle modification (section 87 of the Law)	
(1	) for an inspection of a heavy vehicle (other than a trailer)	\$235.00
(2	t) for an inspection of a trailer (other than a converter dolly)	\$158.00
(3	b) for an inspection of a converter dolly	\$78.00
(4	<ul> <li>for a further inspection of any vehicle referred to in a preceding subitem</li> </ul>	\$78.00
(5	i) for booking an inspection or further inspection	\$24.00
Fe	ee payable to the Transport Department—	
	• in relation to heavy vehicle standards; or	
	• to ensure the condition of a heavy vehicle, and any of its components or equipment, does not make use of the vehicle unsafe or endanger public safety	
(1	) for an inspection of a heavy vehicle (other than a trailer)	\$235.00
(2	c) for an inspection of a trailer (other than a converter dolly)	\$158.00
(3	b) for an inspection of a converter dolly	\$78.00
(4	) for a further inspection of any vehicle referred to in a preceding subitem	\$78.00

(5) Fee				
Fee	) for booking an inspection or further inspection	\$24.00		
ma	Fee payable to the Transport Department in relation to maintenance management accreditation (including the determination of an application for such accreditation (section 459 of the Law))			
(a)	) if the heavy vehicle is nominated to be used in a class 1, 2 or 3 heavy combination—			
	(1) for an inspection of a heavy vehicle (other than a trailer)	\$313.00		
	(2) for an inspection of a trailer (other than a converter dolly)	\$158.00		
	(3) for an inspection of a converter dolly	\$78.00		
	(4) for a further inspection of any vehicle referred to in a preceding subsubitem	\$78.00		
	(5) for booking an inspection or further inspection	\$24.00		
(b)	) in any other case—			
	(1) for an inspection of a heavy vehicle (other than a trailer)	\$235.00		
	(2) for an inspection of a trailer (other than a converter dolly)	\$158.00		
	(3) for an inspection of a converter dolly	\$78.00		
	(4) for a further inspection of any vehicle referred to in a preceding subsubitem	\$78.00		
	(5) for booking an inspection or further inspection	\$24.00		
by	ee payable to the Transport Department for an inspection required notice under section 522 of the Law in relation to any purpose of otherwise covered under this Schedule—			
(1)	) for an inspection of a heavy vehicle (other than a trailer)	\$235.00		
(2)	) for an inspection of a trailer (other than a converter dolly)	\$158.00		
(3)	) for an inspection of a converter dolly	\$78.00		
(4)	) for a further inspection of any vehicle referred to in a preceding subitem	g \$78.00		
(5)	) for booking an inspection or further inspection	\$24.00		
	ee payable to the Transport Department in relation to clearing a effect notice (section 530 of the Law)			
(1)	) for an inspection of a heavy vehicle (other than a trailer)	\$235.00		
(2)	) for an inspection of a trailer (other than a converter dolly)	\$158.00		
(3)	) for an inspection of a converter dolly	\$78.00		
(4)	) for a further inspection of any vehicle referred to in a preceding subitem	g \$78.00		
(5)	) for booking an inspection or further inspection	\$24.00		
	ee payable to SA Police in relation to clearing a defect notice ection 530 of the Law)			
	for a police officer at a police station inspecting a heavy vehicle and certifying that the required repairs have been made to the vehicle to stop the vehicle from being a defective heavy vehicle			

#### Description Fee 9 Fee payable to a road manager (section 159 of the Law) for a route assessment required for the road manager to decide the fee payable is whether or not to give consent for a mass or dimension the reasonable exemption (permit) or class 2 heavy vehicle authorisation cost of providing (permit) involving (for example) the inspection of a heavy the assessment vehicle, the assessment of plans, maps or specifications, the survey or inspection of proposed routes, the examination of bridges or other transport infrastructure, the determination of road work or other work required to enable the use of a proposed route, the consideration of any conditions that may be applicable to the permit, etc

## Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 86 of 2016

#### 2223

### South Australia

## **Crown Land Management (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Crown Land Management Act 2009

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Crown Land Management Regulations 2010

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Crown Land Management (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Crown Land Management Regulations 2010

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 Dedication
  - (a) application fee for—

(i)	dedication of land	\$407.00
(ii)	alteration of purpose of dedication	\$407.00
(iii)	revocation of dedication	\$407.00
(iv)	consent to lease of dedicated land	\$407.00

If an application relating to a dedication involves more than 1 of the items referred to in paragraph (a) above, only 1 fee amount is payable.

	is payable.			
	(b)	doc	cument preparation fee for—	
		(i)	dedication of land	\$271.00
		(ii)	alteration of purpose of dedication	\$271.00
		(iii)	revocation of dedication	\$271.00
2	Disposa	al of la	and	
	(a)	app	plication fee for—	
		(i)	transfer or grant of fee simple in land to a custodian, lessee or licensee	\$407.00
		(ii)	transfer or grant of fee simple in land subject to Crown condition agreement	\$407.00
		(iii)	variation or revocation of Crown condition agreement	\$407.00
		(iv)	expression of interest in purchasing Crown land	\$55.50
	Note—	-		
		tha	In application relating to a disposal of land involves more n 1 of the items referred to in paragraph (a) above, only 1 fee ount is payable.	
	(b)	doc	cument preparation fee for—	
		(i)	grant or alteration of grant of fee simple in land (whether or not purchased on the open market)	\$271.00
		(ii)	Crown condition agreement	\$537.00
		(iii)	variation or revocation of Crown condition agreement	\$271.00
3	Easeme	ents		
	(a)	app	plication fee for easement	\$407.00
	(b)	doc	cument preparation fee for—	
		(i)	easement	\$271.00
		(ii)	plan of Crown land showing easements intended to be granted by Minister	\$271.00
		(iii)	plan of Crown land showing instrument relating to each such easement	\$271.00
4	Leases			
	(a)	app	olication fee for—	
		(i)	lease	\$407.00
		(ii)	consent to assign, transfer, mortgage, sublet or otherwise deal with lease or part of lease	\$407.00
		(iii)	surrender of lease	\$407.00
	Note—			

If an application relating to a lease involves more than 1 of the items referred to in paragraph (a) above, only 1 fee amount is payable.

(b) document preparation fee for—

	(i)	lease	\$271.00
	(ii)	assignment, transfer, mortgage, sublease or other dealing with lease or part of lease	\$271.00
	(iii)	discharge of mortgage over lease	\$271.00
	(iv)	surrender of lease	\$322.00
	(v)	surrender of part of lease	\$537.00
	(vi)	certificate where lease is altered, renewed or revived	\$271.00
(	(vii)	determination of lease on completion of purchase	\$322.00
(	(viii)	resumption of land	\$322.00
	(ix)	resumption of part of land	\$537.00
Licence	s		
(a)	app	lication fee for licence	\$407.00
(b)	app lice	lication fee for consent to transfer or otherwise deal with ence	\$407.00
Note—			
	the	n application relating to a licence involves more than 1 of items referred to in paragraph (a) or (b) above, only 1 fee ount is payable.	
Reviews	8		
(a)	app	lication fee for Ministerial review	\$221.00
(b)	app	lication fee for valuation review	\$221.00
Miscella	aneou	IS	
(a)	gra	for preparing a request by the Minister to alter or cancel a nt of fee simple in land or certificate of title on behalf of other party	\$271.00
(b)		lication fee for a duplicate or amended consent granted ler any provision of the Act	\$29.25
(c)	sup	for correcting an error in the name or other particulars plied by or on behalf of a lessee, purchaser or other party in Crown land register	\$271.00
(d)	whi req	for processing a transaction (other than a transaction for ich an application fee has been paid) under the Act at the uest of any person for the benefit of that person or some er person nominated by that person	\$407.00
	Not	te—	
		Document preparation fees are payable in addition to the fee for processing a transaction.	
(e)		for preparing or checking definitions for notices under Act—	
	(i)	minimum fee	\$283.00
	(ii)	additional fee where the time spent in preparing or checking definitions exceeds 2 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> hours	\$112.00 per hour

#### Notes-

1	Lands Titles Office fees and stamp duty are not included in the fees
	in this Schedule but will, in appropriate circumstances, be payable.
2	This Schedule of fees also applies in relation to the Irrigation (Land

*Tenure) Act 1930.* The *Irrigation (Land Tenure) Act 1930* is, under section 3 of that Act, incorporated with the *Crown Land Management Act 2009.* 

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 87 of 2016

## National Parks and Wildlife (Wildlife) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Wildlife) Regulations 2001

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

- 5 Substitution of Schedule 9
  - Schedule 9—Royalty

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *National Parks and Wildlife (Wildlife) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Wildlife) Regulations 2001

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1 On application for a take permit under section 53(1)(d) of the Act

\$53.00

or section 60J, of the Act:		
Permits	Fee for a period of 1, 3 or 5 years (a period of less than 1 year but more than 6 months will be taken to be 1 year) ending on 30 June	Fee for a period of 6 months or less ending on 30 June
Keep and sell permits under section 58 of the Act		
Class 1	\$70.00 per year	\$38.50
Class 1A	Nil	Nil
Class 2 (Schedule 6 animals only)	\$1 059.00 per year	\$583.00
Class 2 (Schedule 6 and specialist animals)	\$1 516.00 per year	\$832.00
Class 3	\$123.00 per year	\$67.00
Class 3A	Nil	Nil
Class 7	\$2 088.00 per year	\$1 146.00
Class 8	\$1 042.00 per year	\$574.00
Class 10	Nil	Nil
Class 11	\$36.00 per year	\$19.60
Farming permits under section 60C of the Act		
Class 12 (Emus)	\$464.00	\$253.00
plus, for each additional property to which permit applies	\$187.00	\$102.00
Harvesting permits under section 60J of the Act		
Class 13 (Kangaroos)	\$524.00 per year	\$287.00
Class 14 (Kangaroos)	\$1 042.00 per year	\$573.00
On application for an additional record or regulation 9A(2)	return book under	\$11.40
On application for approval of premises u	under regulation 10 or 11	\$216.00

2 On application for the following permits under section 58, section 60C or section 60J, of the Act:

## 5—Substitution of Schedule 9

Schedule 9—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 9—Royalty

1 An animal taken in accordance with a notice under section 52 of the Act or pursuant to a permit granted under section 53(1)(a), (b) or (d) of the Act, being—

(a)	an animal of an endangered species	\$326.00
(b)	an animal of a vulnerable species	\$161.00
(c)	an animal of a rare species	\$80.50
(d)	an animal of any other species of protected animal	\$40.25

2 A kangaroo taken for personal use pursuant to a permit granted under \$1.60 section 53(1)(c) of the Act
3 An animal taken pursuant to a permit granted under section 60J of the \$1.60

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

Act

No 88 of 2016

## National Parks and Wildlife (Hunting) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Hunting) Regulations 2011

4 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

Schedule 1—Fees

1 Interpretation

2 Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *National Parks and Wildlife (Hunting) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Hunting) Regulations 2011

### 4—Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

### 1—Interpretation

In this Schedule—

concession cardholder means a person who is the holder of-

- (a) a current concession card issued by Centrelink or the administrative unit of the Public Service that is, under a Minister, responsible for the administration of the *Family and Community Services Act 1972*; or
- (b) a current student identification card issued to a student of a secondary or tertiary educational institution by that institution;

*junior* means a person of or over the age of 14 years but under the age of 18 years;

subjunior means a person under 14 years of age.

### 2—Fees

1	1 General hunting permit—		
	(a)	in the case of a concession cardholder or a junior	\$12.10
	(b)	in the case of a subjunior	\$7.75
	(c)	in any other case	\$24.30
2	Open se	ason quail hunting permit—	
	(a)	in the case of a concession cardholder or a junior	\$22.80
	(b)	in any other case	\$44.00
3	Open se	ason duck hunting permit—	
	(a)	in the case of a concession cardholder or a junior	\$22.80
	(b)	in any other case	\$44.00
4	Permit t	o take Galahs or Little Corellas other than by shooting	\$86.00

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 89 of 2016

## National Parks and Wildlife (Protected Animals—Marine Mammals) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Protected Animals—Marine Mammals) Regulations 2010

4 Substitution of Schedule 2 Schedule 2—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the National Parks and Wildlife (Protected Animals— Marine Mammals) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Protected Animals—Marine Mammals) Regulations 2010

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees

- 1 On application for the issue of a permit under section 68(2) of the Act authorising acts or activities in relation to marine mammals that are contrary to these regulations—
  - (a) in the case of an application for a permit subject only to \$385.00 standard conditions

	(b) in any other case	\$606.00
2	On application for the issue of a duplicate permit	\$22.10

23 June 2016

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 90 of 2016

## **Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Act 1978

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Regulations 2007

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of *Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium* Regulations 2007

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

#### 1—Admission charges

The Conservatory (during usual opening hours)-

(a)	for each adult	\$5.65

- (b) for each child (4 to 15 years) or concession cardholder \$3.25
- (c) for each family \$12.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

on the recommendation of the Board of the Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 91 of 2016 T&F16/026CS

## **Historic Shipwrecks (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Historic Shipwrecks Act 1981

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Historic Shipwrecks Regulations 2014* 

4 Variation of regulation 4—Fee for copy of Register

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Historic Shipwrecks* (*Fees*) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Historic Shipwrecks Regulations 2014

### 4—Variation of regulation 4—Fee for copy of Register

Regulation 4—delete "\$1.70" and substitute:

\$1.75

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 92 of 2016

## **Animal Welfare (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Animal Welfare Act 1985

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Animal Welfare Regulations 2012

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Animal Welfare (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Animal Welfare Regulations 2012

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 Application for a licence or renewal of a licence under Part 4 of the Act \$80 (Teaching and research involving animals)
- 2 Application for a permit under section 34 of the Act (Permits to hold rodeos) \$80

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 93 of 2016

## Heritage Places (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Heritage Places Act 1993

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Heritage Places Regulations 2005

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Heritage Places (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Heritage Places Regulations 2005

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees

1	Heritag	d copy of an entry in the Register in relation to a State e Place, or an object identified by the Council under 14(2) of the Act	\$32.50
2		tion for a certificate of exclusion in relation to land residential" under the relevant Development Plan—	
	(a)	initial application fee plus	\$161
	(b)	if the Council determines to invite public submissions	\$1 465

3	Application for a certificate of exclusion in relation to any other land	5% of Valuer-General's	
		assessment of site value	
4	Application for a permit under Part 5 Division 1 of the Act	\$161	

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 94 of 2016

## **Pastoral Land Management and Conservation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Pastoral Land Management and Conservation Act 1989

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Pastoral Land Management and Conservation* Regulations 2006

4 Substitution of Schedule 1—Fees Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Pastoral Land Management and Conservation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Pastoral Land Management and Conservation Regulations 2006

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1—Fees

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 Dealing with an application—
  - (a) under section 28(1) of the Act for consent to transfer etc a lease or part of a lease—

		(i) for 1 lease or part of 1 lease	\$409.00
		(ii) for each additional lease or part of each additional lease	\$193.00
	(b)	for a duplicate or amended consent under section 28(1) of the Act	\$29.25
2	Prepari	ng—	
	(a)	a lease	\$538.00
	(b)	a surrender or resumption of a lease	\$322.00
	(c)	a surrender or resumption of part of a lease	\$538.00
	(d)	on the request of a lessee, a notice of alteration of boundaries under section 31 of the Act	\$272.00
	(e)	an agreement between a lessee and any other person or body for the acquisition or extinguishment of easement rights by that other person or body	\$272.00
3		ing on the register any error in particulars supplied by or on of a lessee, purchaser or other party to a transaction	\$272.00
4	security adminis	ing a lease at the Lands Titles Office on the request of a lessee as where the lease is in possession for other purposes of the strative unit of the Public Service that is, under the Minister, bible for the administration of the Act	\$161.00
5	-	ng or checking a definition for a notice to be published in the under section 44 or 45 of the Act by the Board on request	\$283.00
6	one in r	ing on request any other transaction under the Act (not being respect of which an application fee has been paid under these rons—see item 1)	\$408.00
NI.	4.0		

The fees in this Schedule do not include LTO fees or stamp duty that may be payable.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 95 of 2016

## **Native Vegetation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Native Vegetation Act 1991

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Native Vegetation Regulations 2003* 

4 Variation of regulation 8—Application for consent

## Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Native Vegetation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Native Vegetation Regulations 2003

### 4—Variation of regulation 8—Application for consent

Regulation 8(2)—delete "28(3)(b)(iii) of the Act, the prescribed fee is \$573" and substitute:

28(3)(b)(ii)(C) of the Act, the prescribed fee is \$583

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 96 of 2016

## Natural Resources Management (General) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Natural Resources Management Act 2004

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Natural Resources Management (General) Regulations 2005

4 Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Natural Resources Management (General) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Natural Resources Management (General) Regulations 2005

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 4—Fees

1 Application for a permit under Chapter 7 of the Act, other \$54.00 than an application for a permit to drill a well or to undertake work on a well

2	Applicat work on	ion for a permit to drill a well or to undertake a well	\$85.00 plus a technical assessment fee of an amount not exceeding \$146.00 determined by the Minister after taking into account any advice from his or her department about the costs associated with assessing the application
3	Maximu	m fee under section 138 of the Act	\$1.75 per page
4	Applicat	ion for a well driller's licence—	
	(a)	for a new licence	\$252.00
	(b)	for the renewal of a licence	\$130.00
5	Applicat	ion for the variation of a well driller's licence	\$192.00
6	Applicat	ion for a water licence	\$227.00
7	Maximu	m fee under section 149 of the Act	\$1.75 per page
8	Applicat	ion to transfer a water licence	\$422.00 plus a technical assessment fee of \$284.00
9	allocatio	ion to vary a water licence on transfer of an n, other than in relation to the River Murray ed watercourse	\$422.00 plus a technical assessment fee of \$284.00
9A	In relation	on to the River Murray prescribed watercourse-	
	(a)	application to transfer a water access entitlement	\$422.00
	(b)	application to vary a water allocation	\$248.00
	(c)	application to transfer a water allocation	\$248.00
	(d)	application for a water resource works approval	\$422.00
	(e)	application to vary a water resource works approval	\$422.00
	(f)	application for a site use approval	\$422.00 plus a technical assessment fee of \$284.00
	(g)	application to vary a site use approval	\$422.00 plus a technical assessment fee of \$284.00
10	expert ur	al fee where Minister directs an assessment by an ader the Act (and the expenses of the assessment paid by the applicant in addition to this fee)	\$186.00
11	Applicat	ion to vary a licence for any other reason	\$422.00 plus a technical assessment fee of \$284.00
12	Applicat	ion for a permit under section 188 of the Act—	
	(a)	in relation to a Category 1 or Category 2 animal	\$353.00
	(b)	in relation to a Category 1 or Category 2 plant	\$98.50
	(c)	in relation to a Category 3 animal or plant	\$98.50
13	Maximu Act	m fee for a copy of an annual report under the	\$1.75 per page
14	Maximu of the Ac	m fee for a copy of a submission under section 42	\$1.75 per page

15	Maximum fee for a copy of the State NRM Plan or any amendments to the State NRM Plan	\$1.75 per page
16	Maximum fee for a copy of a document under section 83 of the Act	\$1.75 per page
17	Maximum fee for a copy of an agenda or minutes under Schedule 1 of the Act	\$1.75 per page
18	Application for notation on NRM Register or for the removal of a notation	\$8.75
19	Fee for providing information required by the Land and Business (Sale and Conveyancing) Act 1994	\$25.25
20	Application for a forest water licence	\$227.00
21	Application to vary a water allocation attached to a forest water licence	\$422.00 plus a technical assessment fee of \$284.00
22	Application to transfer the whole or a part of the water allocation attached to a forest water licence	\$422.00 plus a technical assessment fee of \$284.00
23	Application to vary a condition to a forest licence	\$422.00 plus a technical assessment fee of \$284.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 97 of 2016

#### 2247

### South Australia

## Natural Resources Management (Financial Provisions) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Natural Resources Management Act 2004

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Natural Resources Management (Financial Provisions) Regulations* 2005

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Natural Resources Management (Financial Provisions) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Natural Resources Management (Financial Provisions) Regulations 2005

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

1 Rent for meter for a period of 12 months or less ending on 30 June—

Nominal size of meter-

(a) less than 50 mm

	(b)	50 to 100 mm	\$299
	(c)	150 to 175 mm	\$443
	(d)	200 to 380 mm	\$507
	(e)	407 to 610 mm	\$607
2	Fee for t	testing meter under section 106(4) of the Act	Estimated cost determined by the Minister
3	Fee for 1	reading meter at request of licensee	Estimated cost determined by the Minister

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 98 of 2016

## Water Industry (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Water Industry Act 2012

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Water Industry Regulations 2012

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Water Industry (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Water Industry Regulations 2012

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application for provision of certificate of amounts paid for retail services (regulation 11)	\$8.90
2	Application for provision of statement of existence or non-existence of easements or other encumbrances in favour of water industry entity or Technical Regulator (regulation 12(1))	\$8.90
2	A galiantian for anomician of statement of existence or any existence of	¢0.00

3 Application for provision of statement of existence or non-existence of \$8.90 testable back flow prevention devices (regulation 12(3))

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 99 of 2016

## Marine Parks (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Marine Parks Act 2007

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Marine Parks Regulations 2008* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Marine Parks (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Marine Parks Regulations 2008

### **4—Substitution of Schedule 1**

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

#### Fees relating to permits

- 1 Application fee for permit—
  - (a) in the case of a permit for an activity referred to in \$385.00 regulation 8(3)(g) to (k) (inclusive) of the *Marine Parks* (*Zoning*) *Regulations 2012*
  - (b) in any other case \$606.00

If the application is for a permit authorising an activity	
under both paragraphs (a) and (b) above, the higher fee	
applies.	
Application fee for variation of condition of permit	\$187.00
Application fee for consent to transfer a permit	\$187.00

		-	
4	Issue of duplicate permit		\$22.10

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

2

3

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 100 of 2016

## Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel) National Law (Application) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel) National Law (Application) Act 2013

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

1 Short title

2 Commencement

3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel) National Law (Application) Regulations 2013

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

### Schedule 1—Transitional provision

1 Transitional provision

## Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel) National Law (Application) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations come into operation on the day on which they are made.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel) National Law (Application) Regulations 2013

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

	cription	Fee
Fees rel	ating to certificates of operation	
Applica operatio	tion for issue or variation of certificate of n—	
(a)	for human-powered and sail vessels equal to or less than 5 m in length	\$56.00
(b)	for motorised vessels equal to or less than 5 m in length	\$137.00
(c)	for all other vessels	\$137.00
Applica	tion for issue of unique identifier (per vessel)	\$36.00
Assessn	nent of vessel not in survey	\$172.00 per hour
	travel to the vessel or operator's preferred or location	reasonable travel costs incurred (including travel time)
Assessn	nent or audit of safety management system	\$172.00 per hour
Applica operatio	tion for issue of replacement certificate of n	\$71.00
Fees rel	ating to certificates of competency	
	tion for certificate of competency (including mpt at final assessment)—	
(a)	General Purpose Hand NC	\$137.00 plus an assessment fee of \$67.00 per hour
(b)	Coxswain Grade 2 NC	\$330.00 plus an assessment fee of \$67.00 per hour
(c)	Coxswain Grade 1 NC	\$511.00 plus an assessment fee of \$67.00 per hour
(d)	Master <24 m NC	\$764.00 plus an assessment fee of \$67.00 per hour
(e)	Master (Inland waters)	\$638.00 plus an assessment fee of \$67.00 per hour
(f)	Master <35 m NC	\$871.00 plus an assessment fee of \$67.00 per hour
(g)	Mate <80 m NC	\$871.00 plus an assessment fee
(8/		of \$67.00 per hour
(b)	Master <80 m NC	of \$67.00 per hour \$887.00 plus an assessment fee of \$67.00 per hour
	Master <80 m NC Marine Engine Driver Grade 3 NC	\$887.00 plus an assessment fee

Fee desc	ription	Fee
(k)	Marine Engine Driver Grade 1 NC	\$662.00 plus an assessment fee of \$67.00 per hour
(1)	Engineer Class 3 NC	\$781.00 plus an assessment fee of \$67.00 per hour
Second of	or subsequent attempt at final assessment—	
(a)	Coxswain Grade 2 NC	\$50.00
(b)	Coxswain Grade 1 NC	\$153.00
(c)	Master <24 m NC	\$253.00
(d)	Master (Inland waters)	\$253.00
(e)	Master <35 m NC	\$332.00
(f)	Mate <80 m NC	\$332.00
(g)	Master <80 m NC	\$388.00
(h)	Marine Engine Driver Grade 3 NC	\$106.00
(i)	Marine Engine Driver Grade 2 NC	\$132.00
(j)	Marine Engine Driver Grade 1 NC	\$203.00
(k)	Engineer Class 3	\$332.00
Cost of t	ravel for purposes of final assessment	reasonable travel costs incurred (including travel time)
Renewal	of certificate of competency	\$86.00
Re-valid	ation of certificate of competency	\$137.00
Applicate competer	ion for issue of variation of certificate of ncy	\$137.00
Applicat competer	ion for issue of replacement certificate of ncy	\$71.00
Fees rela	ating to certificates of survey	
	ion for issue of certificate of survey for a new commercial vessel	\$137.00
	a subsequent certificate of survey relating to survey of a vessel	\$100.00
Applicat survey	ion for issue of replacement certificate of	\$71.00
Applicat	ion for issue of variation of certificate of survey	\$137.00
Searchin vessel in	\$36.00	
	al assessment of vessel survey report and endation submitted by accredited marine	\$172.00 per hour
	ating to survey of vessels (not including hire re houseboats)	
For surve houseboa	ey of vessels (not including hire and drive ats)—	
(a)	for initial survey, according to length of vessel as follows:	

Fee description	on	Fee
(i)	not more than 5 m	\$773.00
(ii)	more than 5 m but not more than 6 m	\$923.00
(iii)	more than 6 m but not more than 7 m	\$1 078.00
(iv)	more than 7 m but not more than 8 m	\$1 239.00
(v)	more than 8 m but not more than 9 m	\$1 404.00
(vi)	more than 9 m but not more than 10 m	\$1 572.00
(vii)	more than 10 m but not more than 11 m	\$1 744.00
(viii)	more than 11 m but not more than 12 m	\$1 917.00
(ix)	more than 12 m but not more than 13 m	\$2 097.00
(x)	more than 13 m but not more than 14 m	\$2 277.00
(xi)	more than 14 m but not more than 15 m	\$2 462.00
(xii)	more than 15 m but not more than 16 m	\$2 647.00
(xiii)	more than 16 m but not more than 17 m	\$2 836.00
(xiv)	more than 17 m but not more than 18 m	\$3 029.00
(xv)	more than 18 m but not more than 19 m	\$3 223.00
(xvi)	more than 19 m but not more than 20 m	\$3 417.00
(xvii)	more than 20 m but not more than 21 m	\$3 615.00
(xviii)	more than 21 m but not more than 22 m	\$3 813.00
(xix)	more than 22 m but not more than 23 m	\$4 016.00
( <b>xx</b> )	more than 23 m but not more than 24 m	\$4 217.00
(xxi)	more than 24 m but not more than 25 m	\$4 425.00
(xxii)	more than 25 m but not more than 26 m	\$4 632.00
(xxiii)	more than 26 m but not more than 27 m	\$4 843.00
(xxiv)	more than 27 m but not more than 28 m	\$5 049.00
(xxv)	more than 28 m but not more than 29 m	\$5 262.00
(xxvi)	more than 29 m but not more than 30 m	\$5 476.00
(xxvii)	more than 30 m but not more than 31 m	\$5 692.00
(xxviii)	more than 31 m but not more than 32 m	\$5 906.00
(xxix)	more than 32 m but not more than 33 m	\$6 123.00
(xxx)	more than 33 m but not more than 34 m	\$6 344.00
(xxxi)	more than 34 m but not more than 35 m	\$6 564.00
(xxxii)	more than 35 m but not more than 36 m	\$6 786.00
(xxxiii)	more than 36 m but not more than 37 m	\$7 009.00
(xxxiv)	more than 37 m but not more than 38 m	\$7 235.00
(xxxv)	more than 38 m but not more than 39 m	\$7 460.00
(xxxvi)	more than 39 m but not more than 40 m	\$7 688.00
(xxxvii)	more than 40 m but not more than 41 m	\$7 915.00
(xxxviii)	more than 41 m but not more than 42 m	\$8 144.00
(xxxix)	more than 42 m but not more than 43 m	\$8 375.00

descripti	011	Fee
(xl)	more than 43 m but not more than 44 m	\$8 606.00
(xli)	more than 44 m but not more than 45 m	\$8 840.00
(xlii)	more than 45 m but not more than 46 m	\$9 073.00
(xliii)	more than 46 m but not more than 47 m	\$9 308.00
(xliv)	more than 47 m but not more than 48 m	\$9 543.00
(xlv)	more than 48 m but not more than 49 m	\$9 782.00
(xlvi)	more than 49 m but not more than 50 m	\$10 017.00
(xlvii)	more than 50 m	\$10 017.00 plus \$189.00 pe metre for every metre above 50 n
a fir soci	periodic in-water survey of a vessel, being st visit (not surveyed by classification ety), according to length of vessel as ows:	
(i)	not more than 5 m	\$359.0
(ii)	more than 5 m but not more than 6 m	\$441.0
(iii)	more than 6 m but not more than 7 m	\$522.0
(iv)	more than 7 m but not more than 8 m	\$605.0
(v)	more than 8 m but not more than 9 m	\$687.0
(vi)	more than 9 m but not more than 10 m	\$773.0
(vii)	more than 10 m but not more than 11 m	\$858.0
(viii)	more than 11 m but not more than 12 m	\$946.0
(ix)	more than 12 m but not more than 13 m	\$1 032.0
(x)	more than 13 m but not more than 14 m	\$1 121.0
(xi)	more than 14 m but not more than 15 m	\$1 210.0
(xii)	more than 15 m but not more than 16 m	\$1 299.0
(xiii)	more than 16 m but not more than 17 m	\$1 389.0
(xiv)	more than 17 m but not more than 18 m	\$1 478.0
(xv)	more than 18 m but not more than 19 m	\$1 571.0
(xvi)	more than 19 m but not more than 20 m	\$1 663.0
(xvii)	more than 20 m but not more than 21 m	\$1 752.0
(xviii)	more than 21 m but not more than 22 m	\$1 847.0
(xix)	more than 22 m but not more than 23 m	\$1 937.0
(xx)	more than 23 m but not more than 24 m	\$2 030.0
(xxi)	more than 24 m but not more than 25 m	\$2 126.0
(xxii)	more than 25 m but not more than 26 m	\$2 219.0
(xxiii)	more than 26 m but not more than 27 m	\$2 314.0
(xxiv)	more than 27 m but not more than 28 m	\$2 407.0
(xxv)	more than 28 m but not more than 29 m	\$2 502.0
$(\Lambda\Lambda V)$		

on	Fee
more than 30 m but not more than 31 m	\$2 692.00
more than 31 m but not more than 32 m	\$2 789.00
more than 32 m but not more than 33 m	\$2 885.00
more than 33 m but not more than 34 m	\$2 984.00
more than 34 m but not more than 35 m	\$3 076.00
more than 35 m but not more than 36 m	\$3 175.00
more than 36 m but not more than 37 m	\$3 272.00
more than 37 m but not more than 38 m	\$3 368.00
more than 38 m but not more than 39 m	\$3 467.00
more than 39 m but not more than 40 m	\$3 565.00
more than 40 m but not more than 41 m	\$3 665.00
more than 41 m but not more than 42 m	\$3 761.00
more than 42 m but not more than 43 m	\$3 861.00
more than 43 m but not more than 44 m	\$3 960.00
more than 44 m but not more than 45 m	\$4 058.00
more than 45 m but not more than 46 m	\$4 159.00
more than 46 m but not more than 47 m	\$4 256.00
more than 47 m but not more than 48 m	\$4 359.00
more than 48 m but not more than 49 m	\$4 456.00
more than 49 m but not more than 50 m	\$4 557.00
more than 50 m	\$4 557.00 plus \$189.00 per metre for every metre above 50 metres
g a first visit (not surveyed by sification society), according to length of	
not more than 5 m	\$403.00
more than 5 m but not more than 6 m	\$490.00
more than 6 m but not more than 7 m	\$580.00
more than 7 m but not more than 8 m	\$671.00
more than 8 m but not more than 9 m	\$765.00
more than 9 m but not more than 10 m	\$857.00
more than 10 m but not more than 11 m	\$950.00
more than 11 m but not more than 12 m	\$1 049.00
more than 12 m but not more than 13 m	\$1 142.00
more than 13 m but not more than 14 m	\$1 242.00
more than 14 m but not more than 15 m	\$1 338.00
more than 15 m but not more than 16 m	\$1 436.00
	more than 30 m but not more than 31 m more than 31 m but not more than 32 m more than 32 m but not more than 33 m more than 33 m but not more than 34 m more than 34 m but not more than 35 m more than 35 m but not more than 36 m more than 36 m but not more than 37 m more than 37 m but not more than 38 m more than 37 m but not more than 39 m more than 39 m but not more than 40 m more than 40 m but not more than 41 m more than 41 m but not more than 42 m more than 41 m but not more than 43 m more than 41 m but not more than 43 m more than 42 m but not more than 44 m more than 43 m but not more than 45 m more than 44 m but not more than 45 m more than 45 m but not more than 45 m more than 46 m but not more than 45 m more than 45 m but not more than 45 m more than 50 m more than 50 m more than 50 m more than 6 m but not more than 6 m more than 7 m but not more than 7 m more than 50 m

Fee description

descripti	on	Fee
(xiv)	more than 17 m but not more than 18 m	\$1 632.00
(xv)	more than 18 m but not more than 19 m	\$1 735.00
(xvi)	more than 19 m but not more than 20 m	\$1 835.00
(xvii)	more than 20 m but not more than 21 m	\$1 936.00
(xviii)	more than 21 m but not more than 22 m	\$2 037.00
(xix)	more than 22 m but not more than 23 m	\$2 139.00
(xx)	more than 23 m but not more than 24 m	\$2 239.00
(xxi)	more than 24 m but not more than 25 m	\$2 343.00
(xxii)	more than 25 m but not more than 26 m	\$2 447.00
(xxiii)	more than 26 m but not more than 27 m	\$2 552.00
(xxiv)	more than 27 m but not more than 28 m	\$2 656.00
(xxv)	more than 28 m but not more than 29 m	\$2 760.00
(xxvi)	more than 29 m but not more than 30 m	\$2 863.00
(xxvii)	more than 30 m but not more than 31 m	\$2 968.00
(xxviii)	more than 31 m but not more than 32 m	\$3 074.00
(xxix)	more than 32 m but not more than 33 m	\$3 181.00
(xxx)	more than 33 m but not more than 34 m	\$3 287.00
(xxxi)	more than 34 m but not more than 35 m	\$3 394.00
(xxxii)	more than 35 m but not more than 36 m	\$3 498.00
(xxxiii)	more than 36 m but not more than 37 m	\$3 605.00
(xxxiv)	more than 37 m but not more than 38 m	\$3 714.00
(xxxv)	more than 38 m but not more than 39 m	\$3 822.00
(xxxvi)	more than 39 m but not more than 40 m	\$3 930.00
(xxxvii)	) more than 40 m but not more than 41 m	\$4 036.00
(xxxviii)	) more than 41 m but not more than 42 m	\$4 146.00
(xxxix)	more than 42 m but not more than 43 m	\$4 253.00
(xl)	more than 43 m but not more than 44 m	\$4 363.00
(xli)	more than 44 m but not more than 45 m	\$4 448.00
(xlii)	more than 45 m but not more than 46 m	\$4 582.00
(xliii)	more than 46 m but not more than 47 m	\$4 690.00
(xliv)	more than 47 m but not more than 48 m	\$4 802.00
(xlv)	more than 48 m but not more than 49 m	\$4 910.00
(xlvi)	more than 49 m but not more than 50 m	\$5 020.00

(xlvii) more than 50 m

\$5 020.00 plus \$189.00 per metre for every metre above 50 m

(d) for periodic combined in- and out-of-water survey of a vessel, being a first visit (not surveyed by classification society), according to length of vessel as follows:

Fee

Fee description Fee			
(i)	not more than 5 m	\$558.00	
(ii)	more than 5 m but not more than 6 m	\$676.00	
(iii)	more than 6 m but not more than 7 m	\$796.00	
(iv)	more than 7 m but not more than 8 m	\$919.00	
(v)	more than 8 m but not more than 9 m	\$1 041.00	
(vi)	more than 9 m but not more than 10 m	\$1 164.00	
(vii)	more than 10 m but not more than 11 m	\$1 290.00	
(viii)	more than 11 m but not more than 12 m	\$1 418.00	
(ix)	more than 12 m but not more than 13 m	\$1 544.00	
(x)	more than 13 m but not more than 14 m	\$1 675.00	
(xi)	more than 14 m but not more than 15 m	\$1 803.00	
(xii)	more than 15 m but not more than 16 m	\$1 934.00	
(xiii)	more than 16 m but not more than 17 m	\$2 066.00	
(xiv)	more than 17 m but not more than 18 m	\$2 197.00	
(xv)	more than 18 m but not more than 19 m	\$2 332.00	
(xvi)	more than 19 m but not more than 20 m	\$2 463.00	
(xvii)	more than 20 m but not more than 21 m	\$2 598.00	
(xviii)	more than 21 m but not more than 22 m	\$2 735.00	
(xix)	more than 22 m but not more than 23 m	\$2 869.00	
(xx)	more than 23 m but not more than 24 m	\$3 004.00	
(xxi)	more than 24 m but not more than 25 m	\$3 142.00	
(xxii)	more than 25 m but not more than 26 m	\$3 279.00	
(xxiii)	more than 26 m but not more than 27 m	\$3 417.00	
(xxiv)	more than 27 m but not more than 28 m	\$3 556.00	
(xxv)	more than 28 m but not more than 29 m	\$3 695.00	
(xxvi)	more than 29 m but not more than 30 m	\$3 833.00	
(xxvii)	more than 30 m but not more than 31 m	\$3 970.00	
(xxviii)	more than 31 m but not more than 32 m	\$4 113.00	
(xxix)	more than 32 m but not more than 33 m	\$4 254.00	
(xxx)	more than 33 m but not more than 34 m	\$4 396.00	
(xxxi)	more than 34 m but not more than 35 m	\$4 537.00	
(xxxii)	more than 35 m but not more than 36 m	\$4 679.00	
(xxxiii)	more than 36 m but not more than 37 m	\$4 820.00	
(xxxiv)	more than 37 m but not more than 38 m	\$4 964.00	
(xxxv)	more than 38 m but not more than 39 m	\$5 108.00	
(xxxvi)	more than 39 m but not more than 40 m	\$5 251.00	
(xxxvii)	more than 40 m but not more than 41 m	\$5 391.00	
(xxxviii)	more than 41 m but not more than 42 m	\$5 540.00	
(xxxix)	more than 42 m but not more than 43 m	\$5 680.00	

ee de	scripti	on	Fee
	(xl)	more than 43 m but not more than 44 m	\$5 825.00
	(xli)	more than 44 m but not more than 45 m	\$5 940.00
	(xlii)	more than 45 m but not more than 46 m	\$6 117.00
	(xliii)	more than 46 m but not more than 47 m	\$6 262.00
	(xliv)	more than 47 m but not more than 48 m	\$6 412.00
	(xlv)	more than 48 m but not more than 49 m	\$6 556.00
	(xlvi)	more than 49 m but not more than 50 m	\$6 701.00
	(xlvii)	more than 50 m	\$6 701.00 plus \$189.00 per metre for every metre above 50 m
(e)		subsequent survey (where vessel has been veyed by classification society)	\$189.00 per hour
(f)		non-attendance by owner of vessel or nt at survey—	
	(i)	for initial survey	50% of relevant survey fee
	(ii)	for subsequent survey—	
		• in the case of a first visit	50% of relevant survey fee
		• in the case of a second or subsequent visit	\$355.00
	(iii)	of alterations or repairs to vessel	\$355.00
(g)		attendance of surveyor at inclining eriment	\$288.00
(h)		examination and approval of vessel's ility information—	
	(i)	if information is based on simplified stability criteria under the National Standard for Commercial Vessels	\$292.00
	(ii)	in any other case	\$189.00 per hour (minimum fee \$862.00)
es re	elating	to survey of hire and drive houseboats	
r sui	rvey of	hire and drive houseboats—	
(a)		initial survey, according to length of vessel ollows:	
	(i)	not more than 5 m	\$331.00
	(ii)	more than 5 m but not more than 6 m	\$408.00
	(iii)	more than 6 m but not more than 7 m	\$484.00
	(iv)	more than 7 m but not more than 8 m	\$563.00
	(v)	more than 8 m but not more than 9 m	\$646.00
	(vi)	more than 9 m but not more than 10 m	\$729.00
	(vii)	more than 10 m but not more than 11 m	\$816.00
	(viii)	more than 11 m but not more than 12 m	\$903.00
	(ix)	more than 12 m but not more than 13 m	\$991.00
	. /		

descripti	on	Fee
(x)	more than 13 m but not more than 14 m	\$1 082.00
(xi)	more than 14 m but not more than 15 m	\$1 177.00
(xii)	more than 15 m but not more than 16 m	\$1 268.00
(xiii)	more than 16 m but not more than 17 m	\$1 364.00
(xiv)	more than 17 m but not more than 18 m	\$1 458.00
(xv)	more than 18 m but not more than 19 m	\$1 553.00
(xvi)	more than 19 m but not more than 20 m	\$1 652.00
(xvii)	more than 20 m but not more than 21 m	\$1 751.00
(xviii)	more than 21 m but not more than 22 m	\$1 852.00
(xix)	more than 22 m but not more than 23 m	\$1 951.00
(xx)	more than 23 m but not more than 24 m	\$2 056.00
	periodic in-water survey, being a first visit, ording to length of vessel as follows:	
(i)	not more than 5 m	\$218.00
(ii)	more than 5 m but not more than 6 m	\$268.00
(iii)	more than 6 m but not more than 7 m	\$324.00
(iv)	more than 7 m but not more than 8 m	\$379.00
(v)	more than 8 m but not more than 9 m	\$437.00
(vi)	more than 9 m but not more than 10 m	\$494.00
(vii)	more than 10 m but not more than 11 m	\$549.00
(viii)	more than 11 m but not more than 12 m	\$610.00
(ix)	more than 12 m but not more than 13 m	\$667.00
(x)	more than 13 m but not more than 14 m	\$727.00
(xi)	more than 14 m but not more than 15 m	\$786.00
(xii)	more than 15 m but not more than 16 m	\$847.00
(xiii)	more than 16 m but not more than 17 m	\$905.00
(xiv)	more than 17 m but not more than 18 m	\$967.00
(xv)	more than 18 m but not more than 19 m	\$1 027.00
(xvi)	more than 19 m but not more than 20 m	\$1 090.00
(xvii)	more than 20 m but not more than 21 m	\$1 149.00
(xviii)	more than 21 m but not more than 22 m	\$1 213.00
(xix)	more than 22 m but not more than 23 m	\$1 274.00
( <b>xx</b> )	more than 23 m but not more than 24 m	\$1 337.00
surv	periodic combined in- and out-of-water vey, being a first visit, according to length vessel as follows:	
(i)	not more than 5 m	\$314.00
(ii)	more than 5 m but not more than 6 m	\$380.00
(iii)	more than 6 m but not more than 7 m	\$456.00
	more than 7 m but not more than 8 m	\$530.00

Fee description Fee				
(v)	more than 8 m but not more than 9 m	\$605.00		
(vi)	more than 9 m but not more than 10 m	\$680.00		
(vii)	more than 10 m but not more than 11 m	\$757.00		
(viii)	more than 11 m but not more than 12 m	\$834.00		
(ix)	more than 12 m but not more than 13 m	\$912.00		
(x)	more than 13 m but not more than 14 m	\$991.00		
(xi)	more than 14 m but not more than 15 m	\$1 069.00		
(xii)	more than 15 m but not more than 16 m	\$1 115.00		
(xiii)	more than 16 m but not more than 17 m	\$1 230.00		
(xiv)	more than 17 m but not more than 18 m	\$1 310.00		
(xv)	more than 18 m but not more than 19 m	\$1 391.00		
(xvi)	more than 19 m but not more than 20 m	\$1 472.00		
(xvii)	more than 20 m but not more than 21 m	\$1 553.00		
(xviii)	more than 21 m but not more than 22 m	\$1 636.00		
(xix)	more than 22 m but not more than 23 m	\$1 719.00		
(xx)	more than 23 m but not more than 24 m	\$1 802.00		
	periodic out-of-water survey, being a first t, according to length of vessel as follows:			
(i)	not more than 5 m	\$247.00		
(ii)	more than 5 m but not more than 6 m	\$303.00		
(iii)	more than 6 m but not more than 7 m	\$365.00		
(iv)	more than 7 m but not more than 8 m	\$424.00		
(v)	more than 8 m but not more than 9 m	\$487.00		
(vi)	more than 9 m but not more than 10 m	\$550.00		
(vii)	more than 10 m but not more than 11 m	\$612.00		
(viii)	more than 11 m but not more than 12 m	\$677.00		
(ix)	more than 12 m but not more than 13 m	\$741.00		
(x)	more than 13 m but not more than 14 m	\$806.00		
(xi)	more than 14 m but not more than 15 m	\$873.00		
(xii)	more than 15 m but not more than 16 m	\$939.00		
(xiii)	more than 16 m but not more than 17 m	\$1 005.00		
(xiv)	more than 17 m but not more than 18 m	\$1 070.00		
(xv)	more than 18 m but not more than 19 m	\$1 138.00		
(xvi)	more than 19 m but not more than 20 m	\$1 205.00		
(xvii)	more than 20 m but not more than 21 m	\$1 272.00		
(xviii)	more than 21 m but not more than 22 m	\$1 340.00		
(xix)	more than 22 m but not more than 23 m	\$1 410.00		
(xx)	more than 23 m but not more than 24 m	\$1 478.00		

Fee des	cription	Fee
(e)	for non-attendance by owner of houseboat or agent at initial or subsequent survey	50% of relevant survey fee under (a), (b), (c) or (d)
Fees rel etc	ating to survey of vessels and plan approvals	
visit for	sequent survey (being a second or subsequent vessel that has not been surveyed by ation society)	\$189.00 per hour
For surv	ey of alterations or repairs to vessel	\$189.00 per hour
	nination and approval of plans for construction tion of vessel	\$189.00 per hour
	travel to the vessel or operator's preferred or location	Reasonable travel costs incurred (including travel time)
Fees rel	ating to loadline certificates	
Fees for	loadline certificate—	
(a)	application for issue of loadline certificate	\$137.00
(b)	loadline assessment fee	\$189.00 per hour after first hour
Applicat	tion for issue of replacement loadline certificate	\$71.00
Applicat	tion for issue of variation of loadline certificate	\$137.00
	al assessment of loadline report and endation submitted by accredited marine r	\$172.00 per hour
Fees rel	ating to exemptions and endorsements	
Applicat	tion for exemption	\$137.00
	al assessment relating to application for on of domestic commercial vessel	\$172.00 per hour
Applicat compete	tion for endorsement of certificate of ency	\$137.00

## Schedule 1—Transitional provision

### **1—Transitional provision**

- (1) The fees prescribed in respect of an application for a certificate of survey of a vessel, a certificate of operation, or for the renewal or re-validation of a certificate of competency by Schedule 1 of the *Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel) National Law (Application) Regulations 2013*, as substituted by these regulations, apply where the relevant certificate, renewal or re-validation is to take effect on or after 1 July 2016.
- (2) All other fees prescribed in Schedule 1 of the *Marine Safety* (*Domestic Commercial Vessel*) *National Law* (*Application*) *Regulations 2013*, as substituted by these regulations, apply from 1 July 2016.

### (3) Despite regulation 4—

- (a) the fees prescribed in respect of an application for a certificate of survey of a vessel, a certificate of operation, or for the renewal or re-validation of a certificate of competency by Schedule 1 of the *Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel)* National Law (Application) Regulations 2013, as in force immediately before the commencement of these regulations, continue to apply where the relevant certificate, renewal or re-validation is to take effect before 1 July 2016; and
- (b) all other fees prescribed by Schedule 1 of the Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel) National Law (Application) Regulations 2013, as in force immediately before the commencement of these regulations, continue to apply until 1 July 2016.

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 101 of 2016

MTR/16/031

## Harbors and Navigation (Fees No 2) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Harbors and Navigation Act 1993

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Harbors and Navigation Regulations 2009

4 Variation of Schedule 14—Fees 5 Dishonoured cheque or debit card or credit card transactions

## Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Harbors and Navigation (Fees No 2) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Harbors and Navigation Regulations 2009

### 4—Variation of Schedule 14—Fees

Schedule 14—after clause 4 insert:

### 5—Dishonoured cheque or debit card or credit card transactions

If—

 (a) an amount payable to the CE under the Act or these regulations, or lawfully collected by the CE on behalf of any other person or body, is purportedly paid by the giving of a cheque or use of a debit card or credit card; and (b) the cheque is dishonoured on presentation or the amount is not paid to the CE by the body that issued the card or is required to be repaid by the CE,

the CE may, by notice in writing served personally or by post on the person who is liable to make the payment, require the person to pay to the CE (within a period specified in the notice), the amount payable plus an administration fee of \$22.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 102 of 2016

MTR/16/031CS

## **Public Trustee (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Public Trustee Act 1995

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Public Trustee Regulations 2010

4 Variation of Schedule 2—Commission and fees

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Public Trustee (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Public Trustee Regulations 2010

### 4—Variation of Schedule 2—Commission and fees

2

Schedule 2, Part 2, clause 12—delete clause 12 and substitute:

- 12 The fees set out in the table are maximum fees.
  - 1 For the preparation of—

(a)	a contract for the sale of estate property	\$234.00		
(b)	a tenancy agreement	\$234.00		
(c)	a deed	\$234.00		
For the preparation of a document for the purposes of the \$212.00 <i>Real Property Act 1886</i> (other than a document referred to				
in item 1)				

- For the production of a certificate of title \$180.00
  For the preparation of a certificate of interest or any other \$71.50
- 4 For the preparation of a certificate of interest or any other \$71.50 certificate

5	Annual administration and audit fee for each trust estate or \$158.00 fund administered by the Public Trustee					
6		For undertaking work in relation to taxation (per hour, or \$214.00 part of an hour)				
7	requiren	preparation of an affidavit required to satisfy the nents of the Registrar of Probates (other than an 's or administrator's oath)	\$246.00			
8	For securing, prior to the sale of real or leasehold estate, such information as is necessary to comply with all legal requirements					
	Note—					
		The fee referred to in item 8 will not be charged where an agent or auctioneer employed by the Public Trustee in connection with the sale charges agent's commission.				
9	For repl	acing lost documents (per document)	\$360.00			
10	For—					
	(a)	a detailed inspection and report on a building (per hour, or part of an hour)	\$160.00			
	(b)	an inspection of any other property (per hour, or part of an hour)	\$160.00			
11	For services in connection with processing an application for a loan that is to be secured by a mortgage over property—					
	(a)	application fee	\$500.00			
	(b)	fee for valuation of property	\$1 000.00			
Not	es—					
	1	With respect to a service, or action taken, by the Public Trustee and not otherwise dealt with in th regulations, a fee may be charged as agreed with appointing the Public Trustee or requesting the I Trustee to perform the service or take the action	nese n the person Public			
	2 In all cases, the Public Trustee's fees are payable in addition to commission and expenses paid to auctioneers or agents, legal costs and cash disbursed for postage, advertising, surveys, valuation, travelling expenses and other disbursements properly incurred in the administration, management or control of the estate, trust, fund or propert to which the charge relates.					

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 103 of 2016

## **Fees Regulation (Public Trustee Administration Fees)** Variation Regulations 2016

under the Fees Regulation Act 1927

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Fees Regulation (Public Trustee Administration Fees) Regulations 2015* 

- 4 Variation of regulation 3—Fee under Administration and Probate Act
- 5 Variation of regulation 4—Fee under Guardianship and Administration Act

## Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Fees Regulation (Public Trustee Administration Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation in accordance with section 5 of the *Fees Regulation Act 1927*.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Public Trustee Administration Fees) Regulations 2015

### 4-Variation of regulation 3-Fee under Administration and Probate Act

Regulation 3(1)—delete "\$210" and substitute:

\$214

### 5—Variation of regulation 4—Fee under Guardianship and Administration Act

Regulation 4(1)—delete "\$210" and substitute:

\$214

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016 No 104 of 2016 T&F16/026CS

## **Private Parking Areas (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Private Parking Areas Act 1986

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Private Parking Areas Regulations 2014

- 4 Variation of regulation 7—Purpose other than parking
- 5 Variation of regulation 8—Damage to signs etc
- 6 Variation of regulation 10—Owner and driver guilty of offence
- 7 Variation of regulation 11—Further offence each hour
- 8 Variation of regulation 15—Expiation of offences against Act

## Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Private Parking Areas (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Private Parking Areas Regulations 2014

### 4—Variation of regulation 7—Purpose other than parking

Regulation 7, expiation fee—delete "\$48" and substitute:

\$49

#### **5—Variation of regulation 8—Damage to signs etc**

Regulation 8, expiation fee-delete "\$88" and substitute:

\$90

### 6—Variation of regulation 10—Owner and driver guilty of offence

Regulation 10, expiation fee—delete paragraphs (a) to (d) (inclusive) of the expiation fee and substitute:

- (a) for an alleged contravention of regulation 4(1)(a)—\$48;
- (b) for an alleged contravention of regulation 4(1)(b)—\$61;
- (c) for an alleged contravention of regulation 5—\$74;
- (d) for an alleged contravention of regulation 6—\$74.

### 7-Variation of regulation 11-Further offence each hour

Regulation 11, expiation fee-delete "\$47" and substitute:

\$48

### 8—Variation of regulation 15—Expiation of offences against Act

Regulation 15, table—delete the table and substitute:

Section	Fee
section 8(1)	\$91
section 8(2)	\$353
section 8(3)	\$67
section 8(4)	\$65
section 8(5)	\$65
section 8(6)	\$50

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 105 of 2016

## **Development (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Development Act 1993

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of *Development Regulations 2008*

- 4 Variation of regulation 63B—Prescribed fee
- 5 Variation of regulation 93A—Register of private certifiers
- 6 Variation of regulation 117—Regulated and significant trees—further provisions
- 7 Variation of regulation 118—Assessment of requirements on division of land—water and sewerage
- 8 Substitution of Schedule 6

Schedule 6—Fees

9 Variation of Schedule 7—Provisions regulating distribution of fees between authorities

## Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Development (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Development Regulations 2008

### 4—Variation of regulation 63B—Prescribed fee

Regulation 63B(1)(a)—delete "\$1 823" and substitute:

\$1 854

### 5—Variation of regulation 93A—Register of private certifiers

(1) Regulation 93A(2)(b)—delete "\$143" and substitute:

\$145

\$73

# 6—Variation of regulation 117—Regulated and significant trees—further provisions

Regulation 117(4)—delete "\$84" and substitute:

\$85.50

### 7—Variation of regulation 118—Assessment of requirements on division of land water and sewerage

(1) Regulation 118(1)(a)—delete "\$361" and substitute:

\$367

(2) Regulation 118(1)(b)—delete "\$104" and substitute:

\$106

### 8—Substitution of Schedule 6

Schedule 6—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 6—Fees

1 The following fees are payable in relation to an application under Part 4 of the Act:

(1)	) A Lodgement Fee (the <i>base amount</i> )			\$61.00
	plus			
	(a)	the asse deve Dev than rela invo	te application is seeking relevant authority to ess a <i>non-complying</i> elopment under the relopment Plan, other a where the application tes to development that olves the division of l; and	\$98.00
	(b)	the asse	e application is seeking relevant authority to ess an application that tes to the division of	
		(i)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division under the application is equal to or less than the number of existing allotments; or	\$49.00

	<ul> <li>(ii) if the number of allotments resulting from the division under the application is greater than the number of existing allotments; and</li> </ul>	\$144.00
(c)	if the development involves building work that is, under the provisions of the Act, subject to the requirement to obtain building rules consent and the development cost exceeds \$5 000 (including a case where the relevant assessment is undertaken by a private certifier) other than development consisting solely of a swimming pool, spa pool, or a safety fence or barrier for a swimming pool or spa pool; and	\$69.00
(d)	if the development involves the construction or alteration of, or addition to, a swimming pool or spa pool, or a safety fence or barrier for a swimming pool or spa pool	\$182.00
authorit against Develop	pplication requires the relevant y to assess the development the provisions of the relevant oment Plan, other than where ication relates—	
(a)	to a <i>complying</i> development under these regulations or the Development Plan, other than if the development is <i>complying</i> development under Schedule 4 clause 1(2) or (3), 2A or 2B; or	
(b)	to a proposed division of land into allotments which does not involve the performance of building work,	
	opment Plan Assessment Fee ollowing amount:	
(c)	if the development cost does not exceed \$10 000	\$38.25
(d)	if the development cost exceeds \$10 000 but does not exceed \$100 000	\$105.00

	(e) if the development cost exceeds \$100 000			0.125% of the development cost up to a maximum of \$200 000
(3)	If the application relates to a proposed division of land—			
	(a)	<ul> <li>(a) other than where the application relates to <i>complying</i> development under these regulations or the Development Plan, a Land Division Fee of the following amount:</li> </ul>		
		(i)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is equal to or less than the number of existing allotments	\$71.00
		(ii)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is greater than the number of existing allotments	\$155.00 plus \$14.60 for each allotment up to a maximum of \$7 055.00
	and	nd		
	(b)	Rec pur	tatement of quirements Fee for the poses of section 33(1)(c) d) of the Act—	
		(i)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is equal to or less than the existing number of allotments	\$289.00
		(ii)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is greater than the number of existing allotments	\$408.00
	and			
	(c)	Cor	evelopment Assessment mmission Consultation port Fee—	
		(i)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is equal to or less than the existing number of allotments	\$68.00

		(ii)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is greater than the existing number of allotments	\$204.00
	and			
	(d)	Fee	ertificate of Approval for the purposes of ion 51 of the Act—	
		(i)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is equal to or less than the existing number of allotments	\$102.00
		(ii)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is greater than the existing number of allotments	\$340.00
(4)	develop describ	oment ed as a oment	tion relates to a proposed that is of a kind a <i>non-complying</i> under the relevant Plan—	
	(a)	Dev Adr resp for sect	on-complying velopment ninistration Fee (in bect of the requirement a concurrence under tion 35(2) of the (1 fee))	\$124.00
	and			
	(b)	Dev Fee (unl be u imn	on-complying velopment Assessment of the following amount less no assessment is to undertaken due to an mediate refusal of the lication):	
		(i)	if the development cost does not exceed \$10 000	\$52.50
		(ii)	if the development cost exceeds \$10 000 but does not exceed \$100 000	\$124.00
		(iii)	if the development cost exceeds \$100 000	0.125% of the development cost up to a maximum of \$200 000

	(iv)	rela	e application tes to the proposed sion of land—	
		(A)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is equal to or less than the existing number of allotments	\$52.50
		(B)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is greater than the number of existing allotments	\$124.00 plus \$14.60 for each new allotment up to a maximum of \$2 176.00
(5)	body prescril	bed ur	nust be referred to a ider Schedule 8 for ition 37 of the	
	par eac apj refe	ragrap ch bod plicati erred-	the extent that h (b) applies, for y to which the on must be —a Referral Fee of wing amount:	
	(i)	unle subj app	paragraph (ii)	\$217.00
	(ii)		e development cost eeds \$1 000 000	\$363.00
	(b) for	a refe	erral—	
	(i)	amb clau 2(10 refe Env	falls within the bit of Schedule 22 (ses 1(6), 2(7), 2(8), )) or 3(3) for rral to the ironment tection Authority	\$363.00
	(ii)	amb 20 c	falls within the bit of item 19, or 21—for a referral er those items	\$363.00
(6)	Category 2 o	r Cate for th the A	e purposes of	\$105.00

- (7) If the proposed development is a Category 3 development for the purposes of section 38 of the Act—an Advertisement Fee
- (8) If the application requires a relevant authority to assess the development against the provisions of the Building Rules—
  - (a) in the case of a building that  $F = 0.00236 \times CI \times A \times CF$ , has a floor area or \$66.50, whichever is the greater
  - (b) in the case of a building that  $F = 0.00236 \times CI \times S \times CF$ , does not have a floor area
    - or \$66.50, whichever is the greater

An amount determined by the

appropriate to cover its reasonable

costs in giving public notice of the application under section 38(5)(c)

relevant authority as being

*F* is the fee (in dollars) payable under this component (unless the \$66.50 minimum applies)

where----

*CI* is the construction index determined by the Minister from time to time and set out in the Schedule of Construction Indices published in the Gazette

A is the prescribed floor area

*S* is the projected area of the largest side or plane of the building

CF is the complexity factor

- (9) If the application requires a relevant authority to grant consent to a development that is at variance with the Building Rules
- (10) If the application requires referral to the Building Rules Assessment Commission for concurrence before granting consent to a development that is at variance with the performance requirements of the Building Code
- (11) If—
  - (a) a council is the relevant authority with respect to a particular development; and
  - (b) the development requires both development plan consent and building rules consent (including in a case where a private certifier may exercise the powers of a relevant authority to give the building rules consent),

of the Act

\$153.00

\$306.00

		pment Authorisation (Staged 3) Fee, other than where—	\$61.00
	(c)	the application relates to a <i>complying</i> development under these regulations or the Development Plan; or	
	(d)	the applicant applies to the council at the same time for both development plan consent and building rules consent.	
(12) If—	-		\$51.00
	(a)	a council is the relevant authority with respect to a particular development; and	
	(b)	the application is within the ambit of Schedule 1A, other than clause 2,	
	ing a ncil).	fee due and payable to the	
For the purposes of this item:			
(a)	dev	elopment cost does not include any fit-out costs;	
(b)	allo	<b><i>itment</i></b> does not include an allotment for road or op	en space

- (b) *allotment* does not include an allotment for road or open space requirements;
- (c) subject to Schedule 7, a body prescribed under Schedule 8 for the purposes of section 37 of the Act may waive the whole or part of a fee due to the body under component (5), or refund any such fee (in whole or in part);
- (d) if an application must be referred to the same body under more than 1 item in Schedule 8, only 1 fee is payable under component (5) with respect to the referral to that particular body (being, if relevant, the higher or highest fee);
- (e) if—
  - a State agency lodges an application for approval with the Development Assessment Commission under section 49 of the Act; or
  - (ii) a prescribed person lodges an application for approval with the Development Assessment Commission under section 49A of the Act,

then---

- (iii) if—
  - (A) the development cost exceeds \$100 000; or
  - (B) the development involves the division of land and the number of allotments resulting from the division is greater than the existing number of allotments,

23 June 2016

the following fees will be payable to the Development Assessment Commission as if it were a relevant authority (but not so as to require any payment by the Development Assessment Commission to a council under Schedule 7):

- (C) any relevant fee under components (1), (2) and (3) of this item; and
- (D) an amount determined by the Development Assessment Commission as being appropriate to cover the reasonable costs of the public advertisement—
  - in the case of an application lodged by a State agency—under section 49(7d)(a) of the Act; or
  - in the case of an application lodged under section 49A—under section 49A(7d)(a) of the Act;
- (iv) in any other case—no fee is payable;
- (f) no fee is payable in respect of a development—
  - (i) excluded from the provisions of section 49 of the Act by a regulation under section 49(3); or
  - (ii) excluded from the provisions of section 49A of the Act by a regulation under section 49A(3);
- (g) no fee is payable in respect of a development which is to be undertaken by a council, except where the primary reason for the proposed development is to raise revenue for the council;
- (h) an application seeking the variation of a development authorisation previously given under the Act (including a condition imposed in relation to a development) will be subject to the fees prescribed by this item as if it were an application for a new development, but only to the extent that a particular fee imposed in relation to the application reflects the step or steps to be undertaken by the relevant authority or another relevant body on account of the application and not so as to require the payment of a fee for a minor variation that falls within the ambit of regulation 47A or that makes no substantive change to the development authorisation that has been previously given;
- (i) if an application is for a second or subsequent consent because the applicant is seeking the assessment of a particular development in stages, the base amount under component (1) is only payable in relation to the first application (but the base amount will again be payable if the application is to be treated as a new application for a new development in the manner envisaged by paragraph (h) and taking into account the operation of section 39(7)(b) of the Act);

- (j) the Development Authorisation (Staged Consents) Fee is not payable unless or until the council receives an application for building rules consent or, if building rules consent is given by a private certifier, unless or until the private certifier notifies the council of his or her decision to grant the consent under section 93(1)(b) of the Act.
- 2 The following fee is payable in respect of an application for assignment of a classification to a building or a change in the classification of a building for the purposes of section 66 of the Act:

(a)	in the case of a building that has a floor area	$F = 0.00184 \times CI \times A \times CF$ , or \$65.00, whichever is the greater
(b)	in the case of a building that does not have a floor area	$F = 0.00184 \times CI \times S \times CF,$
		or \$65.00, whichever is the greater

where---

*F* is the fee (in dollars) payable under this component (unless the \$65.00 minimum applies)

*CI* is the construction index determined by the Minister from time to time and set out in the Schedule of Construction Indices published in the Gazette

*A* is the prescribed floor area

*S* is the projected area of the largest side or plane of the building

*CF* is the complexity factor.

- 3 A fee of \$43.75 is payable in respect of an application for a certificate of occupancy.
- 4 A fee of \$94.00 is payable in respect of an application under regulation 76(4)(c).
- 5 (1) If the matter involves an application to a private certifier for an assessment of a development against the provisions of the Building Rules, a fee equal to 7% of the fee that would apply under component (8) of item 1 if a council were the relevant authority for that assessment, exclusive of any GST component, is payable by the applicant.
  - (2) The fee must be paid by the applicant to the private certifier at the time of application.
  - (3) The fee must be held by the private certifier pending payment to the Minister under Schedule 7.
  - (4) Except as provided above, the fee to be paid to a private certifier will be determined by agreement between the applicant and the private certifier.
- 6 The following fees are payable in respect of a referral to the Building Rules Assessment Commission under section 36(2b) of the Act:
  - (a) for Class 1 and 10 buildings—\$480;
  - (b) for Class 2 to 9 buildings—\$1 054.

- 7 (1) A fee of \$73.00 is payable in respect of the registration of an agreement under section 57 or 57A of the Act.
  - (2) A fee of \$13.60 is prescribed for the purposes of section 57(2d) or 57A(7) of the Act.
- 8 (1) A fee of \$145 is payable in respect of an application to the Minister for an approval under section 101 of the Act.
  - (2) A fee under this item must be paid in a manner determined by the Minister.
- 9 A fee of \$98.00 is payable in respect of an application to extend a period under regulation 48.
- 10 For the purposes of items 1(8) and 2—
  - (a) the prescribed floor area is—
    - (i) for the purpose of calculating the fee on an application for assessment against the provisions of the Building Rules that consists of the erection of a building or the demolition of a building—the aggregate of the floor areas of the building proposed to be erected or demolished;
    - (ii) for the purpose of calculating the fee on an application for assessment against the provisions of the Building Rules where the building work consists of an alteration to a building—
      - (A) the aggregate of the floor areas of the rooms or compartments to be altered; or
      - (B) if the alteration consists of the fixing or erection of an attachment that does not have a floor area the floor area of the building within a distance of 3 metres of where the attachment is to be fixed or erected;
    - (iii) for the purpose of calculating the fee on application for assignment of a classification to, or a change in the classification of, a building—the aggregate of the floor areas of the building;
  - (b) the floor area of a building is to be measured over any enclosing walls and is to include the area of the floor of any fully or partly covered carport, portico, verandah, balcony, porch or other similar structure attached or to be attached to the building;
  - (c) if a building is without storeys, or has a storey of a height of more than 10 metres, the floor area is to be calculated as if the building contained floors at 10 metre intervals, measured vertically;
  - (d) a building is to be taken not to have any floor area if it is principally of open framework or web construction or solid construction and without any fully or partly enclosed space intended for occupation or use by persons;
  - (e) the *complexity factor* is—
    - (i) except as below—1.0;

- (ii) for building work for the erection or alteration of a building that exceeds 6 storeys—1.3;
- (iii) for building work for the erection or alteration of a building that contains an atrium—1.3;
- (iv) for building work for the erection or alteration of a building that contains an arcade exceeding 40 metres in length—1.3;
- (v) for building work that consists solely of the demolition of a building—0.2;
- (vi) for assignment of classification or a change in classification where no building work is proposed—0.8;
- (f) if a building is made up of parts that have different construction indices, the fee payable for the assessment of building work against the provisions of the Building Rules, the assignment of classification or a change in classification, is the aggregate of the fees calculated in accordance with this Schedule for those parts;
- (g) if an application for the assessment of building work against the provisions of the Building Rules incorporates an application for the assignment of a classification to, or a change in the classification of, the building, 1 fee is payable in respect of the applications, being whichever of the fees for those applications that is of the greater amount.

# 9—Variation of Schedule 7—Provisions regulating distribution of fees between authorities

(1) Schedule 7, clause 2(a)(vii)—delete "\$20.10" and substitute:

\$20.40

(2) Schedule 7, clause 2(b)(i)—delete "\$173" and substitute:

\$176

(3) Schedule 7, clause 2(b)(ii)—delete "\$317" and substitute:

\$322

- (4) Schedule 7, clause 2(c)—delete "\$317" and substitute:\$322
- (5) Schedule 7, clause 3(a)(iv)—delete "\$177" and substitute:\$180
- (6) Schedule 7, clause 3(a)(x)—delete "\$39.75" and substitute:\$40.50
- (7) Schedule 7, clause 3(b)(i)—delete "\$173" and substitute:\$176
- (8) Schedule 7, clause 3(b)(ii)—delete "\$317" and substitute:\$322

(9) Schedule 7, clause 3(c)—delete "\$317" and substitute:

\$322

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 106 of 2016

## **Fees Regulation (Incidental SAAS Services) Variation Regulations 2016**

under section 4 of the Fees Regulation Act 1927

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Incidental SAAS Services) Regulations 2009

4 Variation of regulation 4—Fee for provision of incidental SAAS services

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Fees Regulation (Incidental SAAS Services) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation in accordance with section 5 of the *Fees Regulation Act 1927*.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Incidental SAAS Services) Regulations 2009

#### 4—Variation of regulation 4—Fee for provision of incidental SAAS services

(1) Regulation 4(1)(a)—delete "\$103" and substitute:

\$105

(2) Regulation 4(1)(b)—delete "\$205" and substitute:

\$208

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016 No 107 of 2016 T&F16/026CS

## Food (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Food Act 2001

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Food Regulations 2002

- 4 Variation of regulation 9A—Application fee for food safety auditors
- 5 Variation of regulation 11—Inspection fee

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Food (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Food Regulations 2002

#### 4—Variation of regulation 9A—Application fee for food safety auditors

Regulation 9A(1)—delete "\$137" and substitute:

\$139

#### 5—Variation of regulation 11—Inspection fee

(1) Regulation 11(2)(a)(i)—delete "\$84" and substitute:

\$85.50

(2) Regulation 11(2)(a)(ii)—delete "\$210" and substitute:

\$214

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016 No 108 of 2016 T&F16/026CS

## South Australian Public Health (Legionella) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the South Australian Public Health Act 2011

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of South Australian Public Health (Legionella) Regulations 2013

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *South Australian Public Health (Legionella) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of South Australian Public Health (Legionella) Regulations 2013

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 On application to the relevant authority for registration of a high risk manufactured water system—
  - (a) for registration of 1 system \$36.25
  - (b) for registration of each additional system installed on the same \$24.30 premises

2	On application to the relevant authority for renewal of registration of a high risk manufactured water system (for each system)		
3	For inspection of a high risk manufactured water system—		
	(a)	for inspection of 1 system	\$145.00
	(b)	for inspection of each additional system installed on the same premises	\$96.50
4	On appl	ication to the Minister for a determination or approval under these	\$606.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

regulations

No 109 of 2016

#### 2293

### South Australia

## South Australian Public Health (Wastewater) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the South Australian Public Health Act 2011

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of South Australian Public Health (Wastewater) Regulations 2013

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *South Australian Public Health (Wastewater) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of South Australian Public Health (Wastewater) Regulations 2013

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 Application for a product approval
- 2 Application for a wastewater works approval if the relevant authority is a council—
  - (a) for the installation or alteration of a temporary on-site wastewater system—

\$459.00

	(i)	if the system's capacity does not exceed 10 EP	\$46.00
	(ii)	if the system's capacity exceeds 10 EP	\$92.50
			plus \$22.70 for each 2 EP in excess of 10 EP
(b)	was	the installation or alteration of an on-site stewater system (other than a temporary on-site stewater system)—	
	(i)	if the system's capacity does not exceed 10 EP	\$104.00
	(ii)	if the system's capacity exceeds 10 EP	\$104.00
			plus \$22.70 for each 2 EP in excess of 10 EP
(c)		the connection of an on-site wastewater system community wastewater management system—	
	(i)	in the case of an existing on-site wastewater system	\$104.00
	(ii)	in the case of a new on-site wastewater system—	
		• if the system's capacity does not exceed 10 EP	\$104.00
		• if the system's capacity exceeds 10 EP	\$104.00
			plus \$22.70 for each 2 EP in excess of 10 EP
		or a wastewater works approval if the relevant ne Minister	\$459.00
		or variation or revocation of a condition of a vorks approval—	
(a)	if tl	ne relevant authority is a council	\$104.00
(b)	if tl	ne relevant authority is the Minister	\$459.00
Applica works a		or postponement of expiry of a wastewater val	\$104.00
Inspect	ions—	-	
(a)	app	for an inspection in connection with an lication or other matter under these regulations if relevant authority is a council	\$114.00
(b)	app	for an inspection in connection with an lication or other matter under these regulations if relevant authority is the Minister—	
	(i)	for the first inspection	nil
	(ii)	for each subsequent inspection	\$181.00

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 110 of 2016

## **Associations Incorporation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Associations Incorporation Act 1985

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Associations Incorporation Regulations 2008

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Associations Incorporation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Associations Incorporation Regulations 2008

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees

1	For inspection under section 6(2) of the Act of documents lodged by \$26.00 or in relation to an association		
2	For the s held by t the fee p		
	(a)	in the case of rules of an association or a periodic return of a prescribed association	\$20.40
	(b)	in any other case	\$5.70
3	held by	supply of a certified copy of, or extract from, a document the Commission in relation to an association (in addition to ayable under clause 1)—	
	(a)	in the case of rules of an association or a periodic return of a prescribed association	\$40.75
	(b)	in any other case	\$26.00
4	applicati exercise or by the	ing an application to the Commission (not being an on for which a fee is specified elsewhere in this Schedule) to any of the powers conferred on the Commission by the Act, ose provisions of the <i>Corporations Act 2001</i> of the nwealth applied by the Act to an association	\$63.50
5	0	ing an application to the Minister to exercise any powers d on the Minister by the Act	\$63.50
6	On lodg Act	ing an application for incorporation under section 19 of the	\$188.00
7	On lodg Act	ing an application for amalgamation under section 22 of the	\$188.00
8		ing an application to register an alteration to rules under 24 of the Act (including an application to alter the name of an on)	\$63.50
9		approval of the Commission of an auditor under 35(2)(b) of the Act	\$89.50
10	On lodg	ing a periodic return under section 36 of the Act	\$89.50
11	On submitting to the Commission for examination a draft explanatory statement prior to its registration under the provisions of the <i>Corporations Act 2001</i> of the Commonwealth applied under section 40A of the Act		\$188.00
12		ing an application for the approval of the Commission for n of period under section $41C(4)(a)$ of the Act	\$66.50
13	distribut	ent of the Commission under section 43(1a) of the Act to e surplus assets of an association on winding up among s of the association	\$89.50
14		ing an application to deregister an association under I3A(1) of the Act	\$132.00

	THE	SOUTH AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT GAZETTE	23 June 2016
15		ing a request of the Commission under section 43A(5) of the addition to the fee payable under clause 14)	\$89.50
16	U	ing an application to the Commission to exercise the powers d by section 44A or 46 of the Act	\$89.50
17	For an a	ct done by the Commission—	
	(a)	representing a defunct association or its liquidator under section 44A of the Act	\$89.50
	(b)	under section 46 of the Act	\$89.50
18	-	ing an application to the Commission to exercise the power d by section 53 of the Act	\$89.50
19	On lodg the Act	ing an application to reserve a name under section 53A(1) of	\$132.00
20		ate lodgment of a document (in addition to any lodgment fee d by any other clause for the lodging of that document)—	
	(a)	if lodged within 1 month after the prescribed time	\$35.00

- (b) if lodged more than 1 month but within 3 months after the prescribed time
  (c) if lodged more than 3 months after the prescribed time
  \$153.00
- 21 For the production by the Commission, pursuant to a subpoena, of a document held by it in relation to an association—

	(a)	for the first 2 pages or part of 2 pages	\$26.00
	(b)	for each additional 2 pages or part of 2 pages	\$1.55
22	2	act that the Commission is required or authorised to do on est of a person and for which a fee is not prescribed by any	\$35.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

other clause

No 111 of 2016

## **Authorised Betting Operations (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Authorised Betting Operations Act 2000

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Authorised Betting Operations Regulations 2001

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees and default penalties

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Authorised Betting Operations (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Authorised Betting Operations Regulations 2001

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees and default penalties

1	Application for grant of bookmaker's licence	\$247.00
2	Application for renewal of bookmaker's licence	\$161.00
3	Application for grant or renewal of agent's licence	\$47.50
4	Application for variation of a condition of a licence under Part 3	\$80.50

5	Application for renewal of betting shop licence	
~		¢ = 000 00

6 Penalty for default in lodging annual return or payment of annual fee \$5 000.00 by authorised interstate betting operator (section 40B)

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 112 of 2016

## **Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Act 1996

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Regulations 2011

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Regulations 2011

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application to register change of adult's or child's name (section 24 or 25 of Act)	\$179.00
2	Application to register change of name under another law or by	\$47.75

2 Application to register change of name under another law or by order of a court (section 27(2) of Act) \$47.75

23 June 2016

3	Applica Act)	tion for correction of entry in Register (section 42 of	\$47.75
4	particula	tion for search of entries made in Register about a ar registrable event within a 10 year period or part of a period (sections 44 and 46 of Act)—	
	(a)	inclusive of issue of standard certificate on completion of search	\$47.75
	(b)	inclusive of issue of commemorative certificate package on completion of search	\$67.00
5	Addition clause 4	nal fee for giving priority to an application under (a)	\$36.25

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 113 of 2016

## **Building Work Contractors (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Building Work Contractors Act 1995

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Building Work Contractors Regulations 2011

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Building Work Contractors (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Building Work Contractors Regulations 2011

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1-delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

1 Application fee for licence (section 8(1)(b) of the Act)	\$197.00
--	----------

- 2 Licence fee—payable before the granting of a licence under Part 2 of the Act—
  - (a) for a natural person for the following kinds of building work (as described in Schedule 2 Part 3):
    - (i) any building work \$422.00

	<ul> <li>(ii) light commercial/industrial and residential building work</li> </ul>	\$422.00
	(iii) residential building work	\$422.00
	(iv) other specified building work	\$217.00
	(b) for a body corporate for the following kinds of building work (as described in Schedule 2 Part 3):	k
	(i) any building work	\$929.00
	<ul> <li>(ii) light commercial/industrial and residential building work</li> </ul>	\$929.00
	(iii) residential building work	\$929.00
	(iv) other specified building work	\$478.00
	If the period between the grant of the licence and the next date for payment of a fee under section 11 of the Act is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.	
3	Periodic fee for licence (section 11(2)(a) of the Act)—	
	<ul><li>(a) for a natural person for the following kinds of building work (as described in Schedule 2 Part 3):</li></ul>	
	(i) any building work	\$422.00
	<ul> <li>(ii) light commercial/industrial and residential building work</li> </ul>	\$422.00
	(iii) residential building work	\$422.00
	(iv) other specified building work	\$217.00
	(b) for a body corporate for the following kinds of building work (as described in Schedule 2 Part 3):	k
	(i) any building work	\$929.00
	<ul> <li>(ii) light commercial/industrial and residential building work</li> </ul>	\$929.00
	(iii) residential building work	\$929.00
	(iv) other specified building work	\$478.00
	If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 11 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.	
4	Default penalty (section 11(3) of the Act)	\$168.00
5	Application fee to impose, vary or revoke a licence condition (section 7(2) of the Act)	\$153.00
6	Application fee for registration (section 15(1)(b) of the Act)	\$197.00
7	Registration fee—payable before registration under Part 3 of the Act	\$188.00
	If the period between the grant of the registration and the next date for payment of a fee under section 18 of the Act is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.	

8	Periodic fee for registration (section 18(2)(a) of the Act)	\$188.00
	If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 18 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.	
9	Default penalty (section 18(3) of the Act)	\$168.00
10	Application fee to impose, vary or revoke a condition of registration (section 13(2) of the Act)	\$153.00
11	Application fee for approval as a building work supervisor in relation to a building work contractor's business (section 19(3)(b) of the Act)	\$117.00
12	Application fee for exemption (section 45(1) of the Act)	\$99.50
13	Fee for replacement of licence or certificate of registration	\$26.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 114 of 2016

## **Burial and Cremation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Burial and Cremation Act 2013

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Burial and Cremation Regulations 2014

4 Variation of Schedule 2—Fees

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Burial and Cremation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Burial and Cremation Regulations 2014

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 2—Fees

(1) Schedule 2—delete "\$47" and substitute:

\$47.75

(2) Schedule 2—delete "\$94" and substitute:

\$95.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 115 of 2016

## **Conveyancers (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Conveyancers Act 1994

### **Contents**

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Conveyancers Regulations 2010* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Conveyancers (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Conveyancers Regulations 2010

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

1 Application fee for registration (section $6(1)(b)$ of the Act)	\$278.00
2 Registration fee—payable before registration under Part 2 of the Act—	
(a) for a natural person	\$340.00

(b) for a body corporate \$512.00 If the period between the grant of the registration and the next date for payment of a fee under section 8 of the Act is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

#### 3 Annual fee (section 8(2)(a) of the Act)—

(a)	for a natural person	\$340.00

(b) for a body corporate \$512.00

If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 8 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

4	Default penalty (section 8(3) of the Act)	\$170.00
5	Civil penalty for default (section 24(4) of the Act)	\$354.00
6	Fee for replacement of certificate of registration	\$26.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 116 of 2016

## **Co-operatives (South Australia) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Co-operatives National Law (South Australia) Act 2013

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Co-operatives (South Australia) Regulations 2015

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Co-operatives* (South Australia) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Co-operatives (South Australia) Regulations 2015

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

Column 1 Column 2		Column 3	Column 4
Item	Provision	Subject	Fee
1	CNL (SA) s 26(1)(b)(ii)	Application for registration of proposed co-operative—draft formation disclosure statement required under CNL (SA) s 23	\$359.00

Column 1 Column 2

Item

2

3

4

Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Provision	Subject	Fee
CNL (SA) s 26(1)(b)(ii)	Application for registration of proposed co-operative—draft formation disclosure statement not required under CNL (SA) s 23	\$181.00
CNL (SA) s 31(b)(ii)	Application for registration of existing corporation—draft formation disclosure statement required under CNL (SA) s 23	\$359.00
CNL (SA) s 31(b)(ii)	Application for registration of existing corporation—draft formation disclosure statement not required under CNL (SA) s 23	\$181.00
CNL (SA) s 37(b)(ii)	Issue of duplicate certificate of registration	\$45.25
CNL (SA) s 60	Application for Registrar's prior approval of certain rule amendments	\$89.50

		corporation—draft formation disclosure statement not required under CNL (SA) s 23	¢101.00
5	CNL (SA) s 37(b)(ii)	Issue of duplicate certificate of registration	\$45.25
6	CNL (SA) s 60	Application for Registrar's prior approval of certain rule amendments	\$89.50
7	CNL (SA) s 63(2)	Application for registration of rule amendment, other than where pre-approved under CNL (SA) s 60—per rule (maximum of \$142.00 per lodgement)	\$14.20
		Plus fee for late lodgement-	
		(a) within first 28 days after due date	\$52.50
		(b) after first 28 days after due date	\$162.00
8	CNL (SA) s 63(4)	Application for issue of certificate of registration of rule amendment	\$45.25
9	CNL (SA) s 71(1)	Application for exemption from any or all provisions of Division 2 of Part 2.4 of CNL (SA)	\$359.00
10	CNL (SA) s 82(3)(a)	Application for registration of disclosure statement for compulsory share take up	\$359.00
11	CNL (SA) s 119(5)	Application to extend period for carrying on business with too few members	\$359.00
12	CNL (SA) s 152(3)	Application for determination of a member's eligibility to vote on an active membership resolution	\$181.00
13	CNL (SA) s 171	Application for exemption of co-operative from any or all provisions of Division 5 of Part 2.6 of CNL (SA) (former member entitlements)	\$359.00
14	CNL (SA) s 213(1)(d)	Application for approval to keep register at another office	\$45.25
15	CNL (SA) s 220(7)	Use of "co-operative", "co-op" etc— application for exemption by Registrar (cl 5 of this regulation)	\$359.00
16	CNL (SA) s 221(1)	Application to approve omission of	\$45.25

"Limited" or "Ltd" in name

Colum	n 1 Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Item	Provision	Subject	Fee
17	CNL (SA) s 222(e)	Application to approve abbreviation or elaboration of name	\$45.25
18	CNL (SA) s 224	Application to approve change of name	\$45.25
19	CNL (SA) s 225(2)	Restriction on use of "co-operative", "co-op" etc—application for exemption by Registrar (cl 6 of this regulation)	\$45.25
20	CNL (SA) s 226(4)	Lodgement of notice of change of address	nil
		Fee for late lodgement—	
		(a) within first 28 days after due date	\$52.50
		(b) after first 28 days after due date	\$162.00
21	CNL (SA) s 226(6)	Application for exemption for a small co-operative or class of small co-operatives from CNL (SA) s 226(3) requirement for a notice about the name of a co-operative and its registered office	\$89.50
22	CNL (SA) s 233(2)	Application by member for review of voting entitlement	\$359.00
23	CNL (SA) s 243(2)(c)(ii)	Filing fee for registration of special resolution—per resolution (maximum of \$226.25 per lodgement)	\$45.25
		Plus fee for late lodgement—	
		(a) within first 28 days after due date	\$52.50
		(b) after first 28 days after due date	\$162.00
24	CNL (SA) s 244(3)	Application for certificate of registration of special resolution	\$45.25
25	CNL (SA) s 248(3)	Application for approval of disclosure statement for special postal ballot	\$359.00
26	CNL (SA) s 289	Lodgement of annual financial reports by large co-operative	\$89.50
		Plus fee for late lodgement—	
		(a) within first 28 days after due date	\$52.50
		(b) after first 28 days after due date	\$162.00
27	CNL (SA) s 290	Lodgement of half yearly reports by co-operative that is a disclosing entity	nil
		Fee for late lodgement—	
		(a) within first 28 days after due date	\$52.50
		(b) after first 28 days after due date	\$162.00
28	CNL (SA) s 293	Lodgement of annual return by small co-operative	\$89.50
		Plus fee for late lodgement—	
		(a) within first 28 days after due date	\$52.50
		(b) after first 28 days after due date	\$162.00

(b)

after first 28 days after due date

\$162.00

Column	1 Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Item	Provision	Subject	Fee
29	CNL (SA) s 316(1)	Application for exemption of certain persons (in relation to a co-operative) from all or specified requirements of "target provisions"	\$359.00
30	CNL (SA) s 317(1)	Application for exemption of certain persons (in respect of a class of co-operatives) from all or specified requirements of "target provisions"	\$359.00
31	CNL (SA) s 319(1)	Application for exemption of certain persons from all or specified requirements of "target provisions"	\$359.00
32	CNL (SA) s 320(1)	Application for exemption of certain persons (in respect of classes of audit firms or audit companies) from all or specified requirements of "target provisions"	\$359.00
33	CNL (SA) s 322	Application for exemption from a provision of CNR (SA) made under Part 3.3 (Financial reports and audit) of CNL (SA)	\$359.00
34	CNL (SA) s 337	Lodgement of disclosure documents for issue of securities other than an issue of securities under CNL (SA) s 338	\$2 547.00
35	CNL (SA) s 337	Application for exemption or modification of disclosure provisions under Chapter 6D of Corporations Act (as applied)	\$359.00
36	CNL (SA) s 338(3)	Application for approval of disclosure statement for issue of non-share securities to members or employees of co-operative	\$359.00
37	CNL (SA) s 343(3)(a)	Application for approval of disclosure statement for compulsory loan from members to co-operative	\$359.00
38	CNL (SA) s 343(10)	Application for exemption from all or specified provisions of CNL (SA) s 343 (requirements for compulsory loans from members to co-operative)	\$359.00
39	CNL (SA) s 350(1)(b) and (c)	Application for approval of the statement and terms of issue of CCUs	\$359.00
40	CNL (SA) s 359(3)	Application for exemption from a provision of CNL (SA) s 248 and s 359 (requirements in respect of disposal or acquisition of significant assets)	\$359.00
41	CNL (SA) s 363(2)	Application to permit a higher maximum level of share interest than 20% in particular co-operative	\$359.00
42	CNL (SA) s 372(1)	Application by an individual from the	\$359.00

Colum	1 Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Item	Provision	Subject	Fee
43	CNL (SA) s 374(1)(b)	Application for approval of share offers provided for in CNL (SA) s 373 that may result in structural change of co-operative	\$359.00
44	CNL (SA) s 376(5)	Application to extend time permitted for board to consider a share offer of the kind specified in CNL (SA) s 373(1)	\$89.50
45	CNL (SA) s 380(1)	Application for exemption from a provision of Division 2 of Part 3.5 and s 248 of CNL (SA) (requirements for share offers under Division 2 of Part 3.5 of CNL (SA))	\$359.00
46	CNL (SA) s 396(2)	Application for consent to merger or transfer of engagements by way of board approval	\$89.50
47	CNL (SA) s 397(2)	Application for approval of disclosure statement for purposes of a merger or transfer of engagements	\$359.00
48	CNL (SA) s 397(4)	Application for exemption of co-operative from complying with CNL (SA) s 397 in relation to disclosure statement about a merger or transfer of engagements	\$359.00
49	CNL (SA) s 398(1)	Application for approval of merger or transfer of engagements	\$359.00
50	CNL (SA) s 404(4)	Application for exemption from a provision of CNL (SA) s 248 and s 404 (requirements for transfer of incorporation)	\$359.00
51	CNL (SA) s 416(1)(a)	Application for Registrar's permission to shorten notice	\$89.50
52	CNL (SA) s 418(1)(	f) Application for direction exempting from disqualification from administering compromise or arrangement	\$359.00
53	CNL (SA) s 424(1)(b)	Application for Registrar's statement of no objection to compromise or arrangement	\$359.00
54	CNL (SA) s 425(4)	Lodgement of Supreme Court order with Registrar relating to compromise or arrangement	\$45.25
		Plus fee for late lodgement—	
		(a) within first 28 days after due date	\$52.50
		(b) after first 28 days after due date	\$162.00
55	CNL (SA) s 428(1)	Application for Registrar's approval of explanatory statement for compromise or arrangement	\$897.00
56	CNL (SA) s 445(3)	Application for exemption from a provision of CNL (SA) s 248 or s 445 (requirements for voluntary winding up)	\$359.00
57	CNL (SA) s 453	Application to Registrar to exercise powers in respect of property of a deregistered co-operative	\$352.00

Column	1 Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Item	Provision	Subject	Fee
58	CNL (SA) s 476(2)(a)	Application to local Registrar to consent to merger or transfer of engagements occurring as a result of approval by special resolution or decision by the board— merger between local and participating co-operatives	\$89.50
59	CNL (SA) s 477(2)	Application for approval by appropriate Registrar of disclosure statement for merger or transfer of engagements—local and participating co-operatives	\$359.00
60	CNL (SA) s 477(4)	Application to appropriate Registrar for exemption from requirements of CNL (SA) s 477 applying to a merger or transfer of engagements—local and participating co-operatives	\$359.00
61	CNL (SA) s 478(1)	Application for approval of merger or transfer of engagements—local and participating co-operatives	\$359.00
62	CNL (SA) s 531(1)(a)	Application to Registrar for special meeting	\$359.00
63	CNL (SA) s 531(1)(b)	Application to Registrar for inquiry	\$897.00
64	CNL (SA) s 588(1)	Application to Registrar for a certificate stating that a thing had or had not been done within a specified period or by a specified date	\$89.50
65	CNL (SA) s 588(2)	Application to Registrar for a certificate stating that requirements of the Law had or had not been complied with or had been complied with at a specified date or within a specified period	\$89.50
66	CNL (SA) s 588(3)	Application to Registrar for a certificate stating that on a specified date a body was not or had ceased to be registered as a co-operative under the Law	\$44.25
67	CNL (SA) s 601(1)(a)	Inspection of register of co-operatives	\$26.00
68	CNL (SA) s 601(1)(b)	Inspection of documents kept by Registrar relating to a co-operative and prescribed by the National Regulations	\$26.00
69	CNL (SA) s 601(1)(c)	Extract from register of co-operatives inspected under CNL (SA) s 601(1)(a)—	
		first page	\$5.70
		each additional page	\$1.55

Column	1 Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Item	Provision	Subject	Fee
70	CNL (SA) s 601(1)(d)	Certified copy of document that may be inspected under CNL (SA) s 601(1)(b)—	
		first page	\$26.00
		each additional page	\$1.55
71	CNL (SA) s 601(1)(e)	Copy of document that may be inspected under CNL (SA) s 601(1)(b)—	
		first page	\$5.70
		each additional page	\$1.55
72	CNL (SA) s 609(1)	Application for extension or shortening of time	\$89.50
73	CNL (SA) s 611(2)(c)(iii)	Application for permission to give notice to members by newspaper	\$89.50
74	CNR (SA) reg 1.4(5)	Application by co-operative for declaration that it is a small co-operative for a particular financial year	\$254.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 117 of 2016

# **Criminal Law (Sentencing) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Criminal Law (Sentencing) Act 1988

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Criminal Law (Sentencing) Regulations 2014

- 4 Variation of regulation 9—Amounts unpaid or unrecovered for more than certain period
- 5 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Criminal Law* (Sentencing) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Criminal Law (Sentencing) Regulations 2014

# 4—Variation of regulation 9—Amounts unpaid or unrecovered for more than certain period

Regulation 9—delete "\$268" and substitute:

\$273

#### 5—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2-delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 2—Fees

1 Fee payable by issuing authority under section 61(2) of the Act \$18.70

2	Fee payable by debtor to enter into arrangement (section 70(1) of the Act)	\$18.70
3	Reminder notice fee (section 70H(3) of the Act)	\$52.50

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 118 of 2016

# **Dangerous Substances (Dangerous Goods Transport)** (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Dangerous Substances Act 1979

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Dangerous Substances (Dangerous Goods Transport)* Regulations 2008

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Dangerous Substances (Dangerous Goods Transport)* (*Fees) Variation Regulations 2016*.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Dangerous Substances (Dangerous Goods Transport) Regulations 2008

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 Application for dangerous goods driver licence or for renewal of dangerous goods driver licence—
  - (a) for a period of 1 year or less

\$25.00

	(b)	for a period of more than 1 year but not more than 2 years	\$50.50	
	(c)	for a period of more than 2 years	\$75.50	
2		tion for dangerous goods vehicle licence or for renewal of us goods vehicle licence—		
	(a)	for a period of 1 year or less	\$151.00	
	(b)	for a period of more than 1 year but not more than 2 years	\$302.00	
	(c)	for a period of more than 2 years	\$452.00	
3	Applica determin	tion for determination under regulations or for variation of nation	\$327.00	
4	Applicat	tion for approval under regulations or for variation of approval	\$327.00	
5	Applicat	tion for exemption under section 36 of Act	\$327.00	
6	Replace stolen	ment licence, label, approval or exemption if lost, defaced or	\$25.00	

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 119 of 2016

## **Dangerous Substances (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Dangerous Substances Act 1979

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Dangerous Substances Regulations* 2002

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Dangerous Substances* (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Dangerous Substances Regulations 2002

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 2—Fees

- 1 Subject to clause 2, the following fees are payable to the Director:
  - (1) Annual fee for a licence or renewal of a licence to keep-
    - (a) liquefied petroleum gas (Class 2)\*—for each licensed premises in which the aggregate capacity of tanks, packaging and cylinders—
      - (i) exceeds 560 litres (water capacity) but does not \$185.00 exceed 20 kilolitres
      - (ii) exceeds 20 kilolitres (water capacity) but does not \$523.00 exceed 100 kilolitres

		(iii)	exceeds 100 kilolitres (water capacity)	\$847.00
		*	For the purposes of calculating fees, the water capacity of a 45 kilogram liquefied petroleum gas cylinder must be taken to be 109 litres.	
	(b)	pre	mmable liquids (Class 3)—for each licensed emises in which the aggregate capacity of tanks, ckaging and cylinders—	
		(i)	exceeds 120 litres but does not exceed 1 kilolitre	\$96.50
		(ii)	exceeds 1 kilolitre but does not exceed 25 kilolitres	\$185.00
		(iii)	exceeds 25 kilolitres but does not exceed 250 kilolitres	\$455.00
		(iv)	exceeds 250 kilolitres but does not exceed 2 500 kilolitres	\$1 555.00
		(v)	exceeds 2 500 kilolitres but does not exceed 10 000 kilolitres	\$5 227.00
		(vi)	exceeds 10 000 kilolitres	\$8 600.00
	(c)	wh ma	ass 6 or 8 substances—for each licensed premises, here the sum of the maximum volume in litres and here in kilograms of Class 6 or 8 substances that may kept in the premises pursuant to the licence—	
		(i)	does not exceed 1 000	\$96.50
		(ii)	exceeds 1 000 but does not exceed 25 000	\$185.00
		(iii)	exceeds 25 000 but does not exceed 250 000	\$455.00
		(iv)	exceeds 250 000 but does not exceed 2 500 000	\$1 555.00
		(v)	exceeds 2 500 000	\$5 227.00
(2)	Fee for permit	a per	mit, renewal of a permit or the issue of a duplicate	\$107.00
(3)	Fee for	the is	ssue of a compliance plate to the holder of a permit	\$10.70
(4)	Fee for of a per		ssue of a blank certificate of compliance to the holder	\$4.25
(5)	In resp of the <b>(</b>		an application lodged by or on behalf of a Minister	no fee
(1)	1 year,	the fe	s to be issued or renewed for a term of more than be prescribed by clause 1 must be multiplied by the hole years in the term of the licence.	
(2)	1 year, being t	the fe he pro	s to be issued or renewed for a term of less than be is a proportion of the fee prescribed by clause 1, opportion that the number of whole months in the term be bears to 12.	

2

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 120 of 2016

# **Employment Agents Registration (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Employment Agents Registration Act 1993

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Employment Agents Registration Regulations 2010

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Employment Agents Registration (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Employment Agents Registration Regulations 2010

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 2—Fees

The following fees are payable:

- 1Application for licence (section 7(1)(d) of Act)\$14.50
- 2 Application for renewal of licence (section 9(1)(c) of Act) \$14.50
- 3 Late application fee (section 9(3) of Act) \$14.50

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 121 of 2016

# **Expiation of Offences (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Expiation of Offences Act 1996

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Expiation of Offences Regulations 2011

- 4 Variation of regulation 4A—Fee to enter arrangement
- 5 Variation of regulation 8—Enforcement determination fee
- 6 Variation of regulation 9—Fee for application for revocation of enforcement determination
- 7 Variation of regulation 11—Amounts unpaid or unrecovered for more than certain period

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Expiation of Offences (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Expiation of Offences Regulations 2011

### 4—Variation of regulation 4A—Fee to enter arrangement

Regulation 4A(1)(b)—delete "\$18.40" and substitute:

\$18.70

#### 5—Variation of regulation 8—Enforcement determination fee

Regulation 8(1)(b)—delete "\$18.40" and substitute:

\$18.70

# 6—Variation of regulation 9—Fee for application for revocation of enforcement determination

Regulation 9(1)—delete "\$23.10" and substitute:

\$23.50

# 7—Variation of regulation 11—Amounts unpaid or unrecovered for more than certain period

Regulation 11(1)—delete "\$268.00" and substitute:

\$273.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 122 of 2016

# **Explosives (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Explosives Act 1936

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Explosives Regulations 2011* 

4 Substitution of Schedule V Schedule V—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Explosives (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016*.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Explosives Regulations 2011

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule V

Schedule V—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule V—Fees

(Section 52, regulation 15.09)

#### 1—Classification of explosives (Part 2)

Fee for-

(a)	application for classification of explosive	\$173.00
-----	---	----------

- (b) amendment of classification of explosive \$98.50
- 2—Licensing of factories (Part 3)
  - Licence fee for a factory to manufacture explosives \$318.00

#### 3—Licence to mix and use Ammonium Nitrate mixture (Part 4) Licence to mix and use Ammonium Nitrate mixture of Classification Code 1.1D-(a) for 1 place only \$58.50 \$148.00 (b) for more than 1 place 4—Licence to carry explosives (Part 7) Licence fee for a carrier to carry-(a) up to 60 kg of explosives \$37.00 up to 265 kg of explosives (b) \$58.50 (c) up to 1 000 kg of explosives \$63.50 (d) \$186.00 over 1 000 kg of explosives 5—Licence to store on premises (Part 10) Licence fee for storing explosives on premises in which the quantity of explosives to be storeddoes not exceed 30 kg \$58.50 (a) exceeds 30 kg but does not exceed 60 kg \$107.00 (b) 6-Licensing of magazines (Part 11) (1) Licence fee for portable magazine in which the quantity of explosive to be storeddoes not exceed 60 kg \$127.00 (a) exceeds 60 kg but does not exceed 1 000 kg \$373.00 (b) \$647.00 (c) exceeds 1 000 kg (2) Licence fee for any other magazine in which the quantity of explosive to be stored-\$186.00 does not exceed 1 000 kg (a) exceeds 1 000 kg \$322.00 (b) 7—Licence to import explosives (Part 13) Licence fee to import explosives-(a) of classification code 1.2G, 1.3G, 1.4G or 1.4S \$63.50 \$107.00 of another classification code (b) 8—Inspection or testing of explosives Fee for-(a) examination of fuse \$38.75 (b) examination of detonator \$38.75 physical examination of firework or firework composition \$38.75 (c) (d) liquefaction test \$38.75 exudation test \$38.75 (e) \$38.75 (f) heat test 9—Blaster's licence Fee for application for blaster's licence \$71.50

Fee for application for renewal of blaster's licence \$71.50

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 123 of 2016

## **Explosives (Fireworks) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Explosives Act 1936

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of *Explosives (Fireworks) Regulations 2001*

4 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Explosives (Fireworks) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Explosives (Fireworks) Regulations 2001

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 3—Fees

1	Pyrotechnician's licence or renewal of pyrotechnician's licence	\$234.00
2	Pyrotechnic displays business licence or renewal of pyrotechnic displays business licence	\$157.00
3	Pyrotechnic sales business licence or renewal of pyrotechnic sales business licence	\$157.00
4	Exempt display permit	\$31.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 124 of 2016

# **Explosives (Security Sensitive Substances) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Explosives Act 1936

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Explosives (Security Sensitive Substances) Regulations 2006

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Explosives (Security Sensitive Substances) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Explosives (Security Sensitive Substances) Regulations 2006

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application for grant or renewal of licence or permit (regardless of	\$61.00
	the number of licences or permits to be granted to the applicant, or	
	held by the applicant to be renewed, at the same time)	

2 Application for variation of licence or permit \$61.00

3 If a licence or permit is to be granted or renewed for a period that is less than or more than 36 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of the licence or permit period in months bears to 36 months.

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 125 of 2016

# Fair Work (Representation) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Fair Work Act 1994

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Fair Work (Representation) Regulations 2009

4 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Fees

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Fair Work (Representation) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Fair Work (Representation) Regulations 2009

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 3—Fees

- 1 On lodging an application for registration as a registered agent—for each \$232 year of registration
- 2 Renewal fee (during the continuation of registration)—for each year of \$232 registration

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 126 of 2016

# **Freedom of Information (Fees and Charges) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Freedom of Information Act 1991

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Freedom of Information (Fees and Charges) Regulations 2003

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees and charges

### Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Freedom of Information (Fees and Charges) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Freedom of Information (Fees and Charges) Regulations 2003

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees and charges

1 On application for access to an agency's document \$33.50 (section 13(c))

2 (1)	documen	ing with an application for access to an agency's and in respect of the giving of access to the (section $19(1)(b)$ and (c))—	
	(a)	in the case of a document that contains information concerning the personal affairs of the applicant—	
	(	i) for up to the first 2 hours spent by the agency in dealing with the application and giving access	no charge
	(	ii) for each subsequent 15 minutes so spent by the agency	\$12.50
	(b)	in any other case—for each 15 minutes so spent by the agency	\$12.50
(2)	fees are p	n to the fees specified in subclause (1), the following ayable in respect of the giving of access to an locument:	
	(a)	where access is to be given in the form of a photocopy of the document (per page)	\$0.20
	(b)	where access is to be given in the form of a written transcript of words recorded or contained in the document (per page)	\$7.55
	(c)	where access is to be given in the form of a copy of a photograph, x-ray, video tape, computer tape or computer disk	the actual cost incurred by the agency in producing the copy
No	te—		
	deliv	e applicant requires that a document be posted or rered, the applicant must pay the actual costs incurred as agency in posting or delivering the document.	
3		ation for review by an agency of a determination he agency under Part 3 of the Act (section 29(2)(b))	\$33.50

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 127 of 2016 T&F16/026CS

# **Gaming Machines (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Gaming Machines Act 1992

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Gaming Machines Regulations* 2005

4 Substitution of Schedule 2 Schedule 2—Fees and charges

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Gaming Machines (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Gaming Machines Regulations 2005

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 2—Fees and charges

1	Application for a gaming machine licence, gaming machine dealer's licence or gaming machine service licence	\$539.00
2	Application for the gaming machine monitor licence	\$539.00
3	Application for consent to the transfer of a gaming machine licence	\$539.00
4	Application for approval of a person as a gaming machine technician	\$125.00

5	Application for approval of a person to assume a position of authority in body corporate—		
	(a)	if the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 38 of the Act	No fee
	(b)	if an approval referred to in paragraph (a) is not in force but the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 71 of the <i>Liquor</i> <i>Licensing Act 1997</i>	\$10.80
	(c)	in any other case	\$125.00
6	Applicat	ion for approval of a gaming machine	\$539.00
7	Applicat	\$539.00	
8	Applicat	\$539.00	
9	Applicat	\$539.00	
10		ion for approval of an agreement or nent (section 68(2) of Act)	\$539.00
11	11	ion to vary licence conditions (other than a condition to number of gaming machines on licensed premises)	\$116.00
12	Application to vary a licence condition relating to number of gaming machines on licensed premises		
13	For the issue of an identification badge \$19.		
14	For inve	stigation of a natural person—for each person	\$62.50

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 128 of 2016

# Land Agents (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Land Agents Act 1994

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Land Agents Regulations 2010

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Land Agents (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Land Agents Regulations 2010

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

1 Application fee for registration (section 7 of Act)—

(a)	as an agent	\$278.00			
(b)	as an agent and auctioneer	\$278.00			
(c)	as a sales representative	\$278.00			
(d)	as a sales representative and auctioneer	\$278.00			
(e)	as an auctioneer	\$116.00			

- 2 Registration fee (payable on grant of registration under Part 2 of Act)—
  - (a) for an agent who is a natural person \$340.00

#### THE SOUTH AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT GAZETTE

	(b)	for an agent that is a body corporate	\$512.00
	(c)	for a sales representative	\$217.00
	payment than 12 r additiona	riod between the grant of the registration and the next date for of a fee under section 9 of the Act is less than or more nonths, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the al fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period 12 months.	
3		ion for variation or revocation of condition of registration 8B of Act)	\$116.00
4	Annual f	ee (section 9 of Act)—	
	(a)	for an agent who is a natural person	\$340.00
	(b)	for an agent that is a body corporate	\$512.00
	(c)	for a sales representative	\$217.00
	If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 9 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.		
5	Default p	penalty (section 9(3) of the Act)	\$170.00
6	Civil per	halty for default (section 22(4) of the Act)	\$354.00
7	Fee for r	eplacement of certificate of registration	\$26.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 129 of 2016

# Land and Business (Sale and Conveyancing) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Land and Business (Sale and Conveyancing) Act 1994

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Land and Business (Sale and Conveyancing) Regulations 2010

4 Substitution of Schedule 8

Schedule 8—Contracts for sale of land or businesses—fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Land and Business (Sale and Conveyancing) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Land and Business (Sale and Conveyancing) Regulations 2010

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 8

Schedule 8—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 8—Contracts for sale of land or businesses fees

#### 1—Fees payable to councils

For a council search report to be provided by a council-

	(a)	for	partic	ulars in the report—	
		(i)	in re	elation to 1 strata unit	\$22.80
		(ii)	in re	elation to 2 strata units on the same strata plan	\$45.50
		(iii)	in re plan	elation to 3 or more strata units on the same strata	\$68.00
		(iv)	Prop	each certificate of title to land under the <i>Real</i> perty Act 1886, or Crown lease, in respect of which iculars are to be provided—	
			(A)	if the applicant requests that the particulars be provided within 24 hours after receipt of the request	\$34.00
			(B)	in any other case	\$22.80
	(b)			nentary material in the report—the actual cost by the council in producing a copy of the document.	
2—I	Fees pay	able	to stat	utory authorities or prescribed bodies	
(1)	(1) For particulars and documentary material to be provided by a statutory authority or prescribed body (other than where particulars are to be provided for the purposes of a property interest report)—				
	(a)	for	partic	ulars—	
		(i)	in re	elation to 1 strata unit	\$17.10
		(ii)	in re	elation to 2 strata units on the same strata plan	\$31.75
		(iii)	in re plan	elation to 3 or more strata units on the same strata	\$49.00
		(iv)	to la	ny other case—in relation to each certificate of title and under the <i>Real Property Act 1886</i> , or Crown e, in respect of which particulars are to be provided	\$17.10
	(b)	sta		nentary material—the actual cost incurred by the authority or prescribed body in producing a copy of ment.	
(2)	For a p	roper	ty inter	rest report or update—	
	(a)	De	partme	perty interest report to be provided by the ent in relation to a certificate of title to land under <i>Property Act 1886</i> or a Crown lease	\$284.00

	(b)	for an update of such a report (where the application is made not more than 90 days after the original report was issued) to be provided by the Department	\$142.00
(3)	For a property interest report or update for a related title—		
	(a)	for a property interest report to be provided by the Department in relation to a related title	\$42.75

 (b) for an update of such a report (where the application is made not more than 90 days after the original report was issued) to be provided by the Department

#### 3—Interpretation

In this Schedule-

*Department* means the Department of Planning, Transport and Infrastructure;

*related title* means a certificate of title to, or a Crown lease of, land that—

- (a) is contiguous with, and owned or held pursuant to a Crown lease by the same person as, land in relation to which a property interest report is to be provided by the Department; and
- (b) is valued by the Valuer-General under the *Valuation of Land Act 1971* conjointly with, and is to be sold at the same time as, the land in relation to which the property interest report is to be provided;

*strata unit* includes a community lot (or development lot) and *strata plan* includes a community plan.

Note—

The fees payable to a strata corporation or a community corporation for the provision of information are fixed by regulations under the *Strata Titles Act 1988* and the *Community Titles Act 1996*, respectively.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 130 of 2016

# Liquor Licensing (General) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Liquor Licensing Act 1997

### Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Liquor Licensing (General) Regulations 2012* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Fees and default penalties

### **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Liquor Licensing (General) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

### Part 2—Variation of Liquor Licensing (General) Regulations 2012

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 3—Fees and default penalties

1	Application for the grant of a licence other than a limited licence			
2	Application for the grant of a limited licence (single applicant)—			
	(a) wh	ere the application is made within the prescribed time—		
	(i)	if the licence is sought for 1 function lasting 1 day or less	\$80.50	
	(ii)	if the licence is sought for more than 1 function held on the same day (for each function)	\$80.50	

- (iii) if the licence is sought for 1 or more functions lasting more than 1 day (for each day of each function or part of a day)
- (b) where the application is not made within the prescribed time—the fee determined in accordance with paragraph (a) of this item plus \$80.50

However, no fee is payable for an application for a limited licence if the licence is granted for a function or functions that, in the opinion of the licensing authority, are to be held for charitable or other community purposes.

For the purposes of this item, the *prescribed time*, in relation to an application, is the time prescribed under section 51(1)(c) of the Act as the time within which the application must be made (see regulation 11).

- 2A Application for the grant of a limited licence (multiple applicants)—
  - (a) where the application is made within the prescribed time and there are—
    - (i) 2 or 3 applicants \$157.00
    - (ii) more than 3 but not more than 6 applicants \$312.00
    - (iii) more than 6 but not more than 10 applicants \$547.00
    - (iv) more than 10 but not more than 15 applicants \$833.00
    - (v) more than 15 but not more than 20 applicants \$1 198.00
    - (vi) more than 20 applicants \$1 562.00
  - (b) where the application is not made within the prescribed time—the fee determined in accordance with paragraph (a) of this item plus \$80.50

However, no fee is payable for an application for a limited licence if the licence is granted for a function or functions that, in the opinion of the licensing authority, are to be held for charitable or other community purposes.

For the purposes of this item, the *prescribed time*, in relation to an application, is the time prescribed under section 51(1)(c) of the Act as the time within which the application must be made (see regulation 11).

3	Application for an extended trading authorisation				
4	Application for removal of a licence				
5	Application for transfer of a licence				
6	Applica	tion for—			
	(a)	approval of an alteration or proposed alteration to licensed premises	\$116.00		
	(b)	redefinition of licensed premises as defined in the licence	\$116.00		
	(c)	designation of part of licensed premises as a dining area or reception area	\$116.00		
7	Application by holder of producer's licence for additional licensed \$116 premises to be shared in accordance with section 39(1b) of the Act (a collective outlet)				
8	Application for authorisation to sell liquor in an area adjacent to \$116.00				

Application for authorisation to sell liquor in an area adjacent to \$116.00 licensed premises

\$80.50

9	Application for a variation of trading hours or for the imposition,
	variation or revocation of a condition of a licence—

	(a)	in relation to a limited licence	\$41.75	
	(b)	in any other case	\$539.00	
	hours or	r, no fee is payable if the application is to reduce the trading reduce the capacity of the licensed premises contemplated by ce so as to effect a reduction in the annual fee for the licence.		
10	or manag assumpti	ion for approval of a natural person or persons as the manager gers of the business conducted under the licence or the ion by a person of a position of authority in the trust or e entity that holds the licence—		
	(a)	if the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 38 of the <i>Gaming</i> <i>Machines Act 1992</i>	no fee	
	(b)	in any other case	\$116.00	
11	Applicat licence	ion for conversion of a temporary licence into an ordinary	\$539.00	
12	Application for consent of the licensing authority to use part of the licensed premises or area adjacent to the licensed premises for the purpose of providing entertainment \$53			
13	Additional fee on an application where an identification badge is issued			
14	Application for approval to act as a crowd controller for licensed premises			
15	Licence fee on grant of a limited licence if—			
	(a)	the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past 1 am, the licensed premises are outdoors and the licence states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons exceeding 300; or		
	(b)	the licence contemplates boxing, wrestling or other entertainment that, in the opinion of the licensing authority, should be regarded as adult entertainment being provided at the licensed premises during the whole or part of the hours that the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor; or		
	(c)	the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past 1 am and the product of the number of persons stated in the licence as the maximum capacity of the licensed premises and the number of days on which the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor exceeds 1 000; or		
	(d)	the product of the number of persons stated in the licence as the maximum capacity of the licensed premises and the number of days on which the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor exceeds 5 000; or		
	(e)	the licensing authority determines on other grounds that the nature of the special occasion or series of special occasions to which the licence will relate has required or will require the devotion of significant resources for the purposes of the administration or enforcement of the Act in relation to the licence.		

However, no fee is payable if-

- (a) no fee was payable for the application for the licence; or
- (b) the licence is granted to the holder of a licence (other than a limited licence) and the licensed premises of the limited licence comprise the whole or a part of the licensed premises of the other licence held by the licensee.

The Commissioner may refund a licence fee if the special occasion or series of special occasions to which the licence relates is cancelled and significant resources have not been devoted for the purposes of the administration or enforcement of the Act in relation to the licence.

For the purposes of this item, a licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past 1 am if it authorises the sale or supply of liquor immediately before and immediately after 1 am on any 1 or more days.

- 16 Annual fee for a licence—
  - (a) for a hotel licence or entertainment venue licence—

	(i)	if the licence does not authorise the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons not exceeding 200	level 1 fee
	(ii)	if the licence does not authorise the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons exceeding 200	level 2 fee
	(iii)	if the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons not exceeding 200	level 3 fee
	(iv)	if the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons exceeding 200 but not exceeding 400	level 4 fee
	(v)	if the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons exceeding 400	level 5 fee
(b)	for a	a club licence (other than a limited club licence)—	
	(i)	if the licence does not authorise the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons not exceeding 1 000	level 1 fee
	(ii)	if the licence does not authorise the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons exceeding 1 000	level 2 fee
	(iii)	if the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past	level 3 fee

	(iv)	2 ai	ne licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past m and states the maximum capacity of the licensed mises as a number of persons exceeding 1 000	level 5 fee
(c)	for	for a residential licence or restaurant licence—		
	(i)		ne licence does not authorise the sale or supply of nor past 2 am	level 1 fee
	(ii)	2 ai	ne licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past m and states the maximum capacity of the licensed mises as a number of persons not exceeding 200	level 2 fee
	(iii)	2 ai	ne licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past m and states the maximum capacity of the licensed mises as a number of persons exceeding 200	level 4 fee
(d)	for	a pro	ducer's licence—	
	(i)		ne licence does not authorise consumption of liquor the licensed premises	level 1 fee
	(ii)		ne licence authorises consumption of liquor on the onsed premises and—	
		(A)	the licence does not authorise the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am	level 1 fee
		(B)	the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons not exceeding 200	level 2 fee
		(C)	the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed premises as a number of persons exceeding 200	level 4 fee
(e)			ail liquor merchant's licence, wholesale liquor t's licence or direct sales licence	level 2 fee
(f)		for a special circumstances licence for a bus, limousine, level 1 fo boat, train, aeroplane, caterer or retirement village		
(g)	oth	for a special circumstances licence for licensed premises other than a bus, limousine, boat, train, aeroplane, caterer or retirement village—		
	(i)	liqu the	ne licence does not authorise the sale or supply of for past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of licensed premises as a number of persons not eeding 200	level 1 fee
	(ii)	liqu the	ne licence does not authorise the sale or supply of nor past 2 am and states the maximum capacity of licensed premises as a number of persons eeding 200	level 2 fee
	(iii)	2 ai	ne licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past m and states the maximum capacity of the licensed mises as a number of persons not exceeding 200	level 3 fee
	(iv)	2 an pre	ne licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past m and states the maximum capacity of the licensed mises as a number of persons exceeding 200 but not eeding 400	level 4 fee

- (v) if the licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past
   2 am and states the maximum capacity of the licensed
   premises as a number of persons exceeding 400
- (h) for a small venue licence

No annual fee is payable for a limited club licence.

The Commissioner may-

- (a) if the business operated under a licence is, in the opinion of the Commissioner, so similar to that under another licence class for which a lower annual fee is payable as to warrant a reduction in the fee, reduce the annual fee to that applicable to a licence of that other class; and
- (b) if the annual fee payable is a level 2 fee, reduce the fee to a level 1 fee for a particular year on grounds of financial hardship.

For the purposes of this item-

- (a) a level 1 fee is 111.00; and
- (b) a level 2 fee is \$771.00; and
- (c) a level 3 fee is \$771.00 plus, if the licence authorises the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises past 2 am, \$771.00 plus, if the licence authorises the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises past 4 am, a further \$771.00; and
- (d) a level 4 fee is \$771.00 plus, if the licence authorises the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises past 2 am, \$1 543.00 plus, if the licence authorises the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises past 4 am, a further \$1 543.00; and
- (e) a level 5 fee is \$771.00 plus, if the licence authorises the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises past 2 am, \$2 754.00 plus, if the licence authorises the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises past 4 am, a further \$8 262.00; and
- (f) a licence authorises the sale of liquor past 2 am if it authorises the sale or supply of liquor immediately before and immediately after 2 am on any 1 or more days (disregarding sale or supply to a lodger); and
- (g) a licence authorises the sale or supply of liquor past 4 am if it authorises the sale or supply of liquor immediately before and immediately after 4 am on any 1 or more days (disregarding sale or supply to a lodger).
- 17 Penalty for default payable under section 50A(4) of Act

20% of the amount outstanding

level 1 fee

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 131 of 2016

# Lottery and Gaming (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Lottery and Gaming Act 1936

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Lottery and Gaming Regulations 2008

4 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Lottery and Gaming (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

## **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Lottery and Gaming Regulations 2008

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 3—Fees

1	Applicat	ion for lottery licence	\$8.10
2	11	ion for trade promotion lottery licence—standard fee d on the basis of the total value of all prizes in the lottery as	
	(a)	for a total value of not more than \$10 000	\$187.00
	(b)	for a total value of more than \$10 000 but not more than \$50 000	\$686.00
	(c)	for a total value of more than \$50 000 but not more than \$100 000	\$1 199.00

	(d)	for a total value of more than \$100 000 but not more than \$200 000	\$2 056.00
	(e)	for a total value of more than \$200 000	\$3 770.00
	among a fee is to	r, if the terms of the lottery provide for allocation of prizes number of States or Territories of the Commonwealth, the be calculated on the basis of the total value of only those at are capable of being awarded to winners in this State.	
3	the licent the appli	lication for a trade promotion lottery licence requests that ce be granted 5 business days or less from the day on which cation is received by the Minister—fee calculated on the the total value of all prizes in the lottery as follows:	
	(a)	for a total value of not more than \$10 000	\$375.00
	(b)	for a total value of more than \$10 000 but not more than \$50 000	\$1 373.00
	(c)	for a total value of more than \$50 000 but not more than \$100 000	\$2 393.00
	(d)	for a total value of more than \$100 000 but not more than \$200 000	\$4 112.00
	(e)	for a total value of more than \$200 000	\$7 540.00
	among a fee is to	r, if the terms of the lottery provide for allocation of prizes number of States or Territories of the Commonwealth, the be calculated on the basis of the total value of only those at are capable of being awarded to winners in this State.	
4		ion by holder of trade promotion lottery licence to Minister tion of terms of lottery to which licence applies	\$61.00
5	Applicat	ion for grant of supplier's licence	\$1 732.00
6	Applicat	ion for renewal of supplier's licence	\$171.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 132 of 2016

# **Partnership (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Partnership Act 1891

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Partnership Regulations 2006

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Partnership (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Partnership Regulations 2006

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application for registration of limited partnership (section 52(1) of Act)	\$181.00
2	Application for registration of incorporated limited partnership (section 52(1) of Act)	\$408.00
3	Inspection of Register (section 54(3) of Act)	\$26.00
4	Copy (whether certified or not) of information in the Register (section 54(3) of Act)—	
	(a) for first page	\$26.00
	(b) for each additional page	\$1.55

	THE SOUTH AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT GAZETTE	23 June 2016
5	Notification of change in registered particulars (section 55(1) of Act)	\$36.50
6	Late notification of change in registered particulars (section 55 of Act)—	
	(a) if lodged not more than 1 month late	\$35.50
	(b) if lodged more than 1 month late but not more than 3 months late	\$72.00
	(c) if lodged more than 3 months late	\$153.00
7	Issue, on application, of certificate as to formation and registered particulars of limited partnership or incorporated limited partnership (section 56(2) of Act)—	
	(a) for first page	\$28.50
	(b) for each additional page	\$1.55
8	Lodging copy of document evidencing incorporated limited partnership's status under <i>Venture Capital Act 2002</i> (Commonwealth) or <i>Income Tax Assessment Act 1936</i> (Commonwealth) (section 71E(1) or (2) of Act)	\$36.50
9	Notification by incorporated limited partnership of revocation or cessation (section 71E(3) or (4) of Act)	\$20.30
10	Application for extension or exemption (section 81 of Act)	\$86.50

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 133 of 2016

# **Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Act 1995

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Regulations 2010

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Regulations 2010

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	Applicat	ion fee for licence (section 8(1)(b) of the Act)	\$197.00
2	Licence fee—payable before the grant of a licence under Part 2 of the Act—		
	(a)	for a natural person	\$359.00
	(b)	for a body corporate	\$526.00

If the period between the grant of the licence and the next date for payment of a fee under section 11 of the Act is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

#### 3 Periodic fee for licence (section 11(2)(a) of the Act)—

- (a) for a natural person \$359.00
- (b) for a body corporate \$526.00

If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 11 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

4	Default penalty (section 11(3) of the Act)	\$168.00
5	Application fee to impose, vary or revoke a licence condition (section 7(2) of the Act)	\$117.00
6	Application fee for registration (section 15(1)(b) of the Act)	\$197.00
7	Registration fee—payable before the grant of registration under Part 3 of the Act	\$245.00
	If the period between the grant of the registration and the next date for payment of a fee under section 18 of the Act is less than or more than 36 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 36 months.	
8	Periodic fee for registration (section 18(2)(a) of the Act)	\$245.00
	If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 18 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 36 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 36 months.	
9	Default penalty (section 18(3) of the Act)	\$63.00
10	Application fee to impose, vary or revoke a condition of registration (section 14(2) of the Act)	\$117.00
11	Fee for replacement of licence or certificate of registration	\$26.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 134 of 2016

# Second-hand Vehicle Dealers (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Act 1995

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Regulations 2010

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Second-hand Vehicle Dealers (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

## **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Regulations 2010

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1-delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application	fee for licence (section 8(1)(b) of the Act)	\$268
2	Licence fee- Division 1 of	–payable before the granting of a licence under Part 2 f the Act—	
	(a) for	a natural person—	
	(i)	for carrying on the business of buying or selling second-hand vehicles consisting only of motorcycles	\$197
	(ii)	in any other case	\$413

	(b) for	a body corporate—	
	(i)	for carrying on the business of buying or selling second-hand vehicles consisting only of motorcycles	\$288
	(ii)	in any other case	\$619
	payment of a 12 months, a	between the grant of the licence and the next date for fee under section 11 of the Act is less than or more than pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the e by applying the proportion that the length of that period nonths.	
3	Annual fee (s	section 11(2)(a) of the Act)—	
	(a) for	a natural person—	
	(i)	for carrying on the business of buying or selling second-hand vehicles consisting only of motorcycles	\$197
	(ii)	in any other case	\$413
	(b) for	a body corporate—	
	(i)	for carrying on the business of buying or selling second-hand vehicles consisting only of motorcycles	\$288
	(ii)	in any other case	\$619
	Act and the n nominated by pro rata adjust	between a date for payment of a fee under section 11 of the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as y the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a stment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the nat the length of that period bears to 12 months.	
4	Default penal	lty (section 11(3) of the Act)	\$170
5	Application f (section 14(2	fee for separate application to register premises () of the Act)	\$51
6		See for permission to carry on business as a dealer at a place e registered premises of the licensee (section 14(4) of the	\$51
7	Application f the Act)	fee with respect to a duty to repair a vehicle (section 24(2) of	\$51
8	Fee for replace	cement of licence or certificate of registration	\$26

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 135 of 2016

# Security and Investigation Industry (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Security and Investigation Industry Act 1995

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Security and Investigation Industry Regulations 2011

4 Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—Fees and default penalties

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Security and Investigation Industry (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Security and Investigation Industry Regulations 2011

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 4—Fees and default penalties

- 1 Application fee for licence (section 8(1)(b) of the Act)—
  - (a) for natural person \$457
  - (b) for body corporate \$740
- 2 Licence fee—payable before the granting of a licence under Part 2 of the Act—

	(a) for natural person—	
	(i) if licence subject to employee condition or employee (supervision condition)	\$296
	(ii) in the case of a security industry trainers licence	\$296
	(iii) in any other case	\$621
	(b) for body corporate	\$812
	If the period between the grant of the licence and the next date for payment of a fee under section 7C of the Act is less than or more tha 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.	
3	Annual fee (section 7C(1)(a) of the Act)—	
	(a) for natural person—	
	(i) if licence subject to employee condition or employee (supervision condition)	\$296
	(ii) in the case of a security industry trainer	\$296
	(iii) in any other case	\$621
	(b) for body corporate	\$812
	If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 7C o the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (a nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 month a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.	IS
4	Penalty for default in paying fee or lodging return (section $7C(2)$ of the Act)	\$170
5	Application fee to impose, vary or revoke a licence condition (section $7A(3)$ of the Act)	\$278
6	Fee for replacement of licence	\$26
7	Civil penalty for default in lodging audit statement or declaration (regulation 36(4))	\$354

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 136 of 2016

# **Sexual Reassignment (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Sexual Reassignment Act 1988

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Sexual Reassignment Regulations 2015

- 4 Variation of regulation 5—Applications for recognition certificates
- 5 Variation of regulation 6—Registration of certificates

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Sexual Reassignment (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Sexual Reassignment Regulations 2015

#### 4—Variation of regulation 5—Applications for recognition certificates

Regulation 5(1)(b)(iv)—delete "\$84.50" and substitute:

\$86

#### 5—Variation of regulation 6—Registration of certificates

Regulation 6—delete "\$50.50" and substitute:

\$51.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016 No 137 of 2016 T&F16/026CS

# South Australian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the South Australian Civil and Administrative Tribunal Act 2013

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of South Australian Civil and Administrative Tribunal Regulations 2015

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *South Australian Civil and Administrative Tribunal* (*Fees*) *Variation Regulations* 2016.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of South Australian Civil and Administrative Tribunal Regulations 2015

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

a Application for commencement of rifbunar proceedings $\phi/0.0$	1	Application for con	mmencement of Tribunal proceedings	\$70.00
---	---	---------------------	------------------------------------	---------

- 2 Referral of matter to Tribunal under—
  - (a) section 29 of the *Residential Parks Act* 2007 \$70.00
  - (b) section 63 of the *Residential Tenancies Act 1995* \$70.00

	(c)	section 105M of the Residential Tenancies Act 1995	\$70.00
3		tion for an internal review of a decision of the I under section 70 of the Act	\$509.00
4	For each Tribuna	n request to search and inspect a record of the	\$22.00
5		vision of a transcript (or part of a transcript) on of a person	\$169.00 for first 30 minutes or less requested, <b>plus</b> for each additional 30 minutes or part thereof requested— \$127.00
6	-	where item 7 applies, for copy of documentary e—per page	\$7.30
7		py of any photograph, map, plan or other document greater than A4 in size	\$7.30 per page, or the actual cost of copying (whichever is greater)
8		ection or copy of evidence in the form of slides, film, pe, audio tape or other form of recording—per item	\$22.00
9	For copy	y of reasons for decision or order—per page	\$7.30
	Note—		
		A party to proceedings is entitled to 1 copy of the reasons without charge.	
10	For copy	y of any other document—per page	\$4.45
11		ection or copy of a video, audio or other recording of l proceedings	\$24.40
12		ning the Registry (or the Registry remaining open) ars for urgent execution of process—for each hour or n hour	\$363.00
13	-	ning the Tribunal (or the Tribunal remaining open) ars for urgent hearing—for each hour or part of an	\$1 092.00
No	ote—		
	N	o fees are payable in respect of Tribunal proceedings	under the Advance Care

No fees are payable in respect of Tribunal proceedings under the Advance Care Directives Act 2013, the Consent to Medical Treatment and Palliative Care Act 1995, the Guardianship and Administration Act 1993 or the Mental Health Act 2009, other than a request for provision of a transcript under item 5 (see regulation 14(3)) or an application under item 3 where the applicant is not a person who is the subject of the proceedings (see regulation 14(4)).

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 138 of 2016

# **State Records (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the State Records Act 1997

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of State Records Regulations 2013

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the State Records (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of State Records Regulations 2013

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

#### Application fee for public access to official records

1 Applications involving requests for copies of documents—

(a)	for an application made in person (1 to 10 pages inclusive)	nil
(b)	for an application made in person (more than 10 pages)	\$8.85

(c) for an application made in writing or by telephone \$8.85

23 June 2016

	Note—		
		This service is only provided if specific and accurate archive reference numbers are supplied.	
Cop	oies of doc	cuments	
2	Basic pa	aper format (per page)—	
	(a)	A4 black & white (297 mm x 210 mm)	\$0.70
	(b)	A4 colour (297 mm x 210 mm)	\$1.55
	(c)	A3 black & white (420 mm x 297 mm)	\$1.70
	(d)	A3 colour (420 mm x 297 mm)	\$3.35
3	High qu	ality paper format (per page)—	
	(a)	A3 colour (420 mm x 297 mm)	\$5.55
	(b)	A2 colour (594 mm x 420 mm)	\$11.10
	(c)	A1 colour (841 mm x 594 mm)	\$16.60
4	Digital f JPEG)–	format—low resolution (for example, PDF or –	
	(a)	selected pages (1 to 4 pages inclusive)	\$6.30
	(b)	small item (5 to 20 pages inclusive)	\$31.50
	(c)	medium item (21 to 40 pages inclusive)	\$63.00
	(d)	large item (more than 40 pages)	\$95.00
5	Digital f page)	format—high resolution (for example, TIFF) (per	\$21.40
6	Addition	nal fees—	
	(a)	certification of copy (per page)	\$0.60
	(b)	cost of CD	\$1.70
Pub	olications		
7	•	lour and a few blankets: an administrative history of nal affairs in South Australia, 1834-2000	\$26.50
8	Aborigii	nal resource kit	\$49.75
9		rs in archives: a guide for family historians to South a's government archives	\$10.80
10	Distant	voices (DVD)	\$40.75
11	<i>Guide to</i> (5 volur	o records relating to Aboriginal people nes)—	
	(a)	printed copy (per volume)	\$11.40
	(b)	CD	\$30.75
Pro	vision of a	advisory, processing and loans services to agencies	
12	Preparat	tion of disposal schedules (per hour or part of hour)	\$76.50
13	Culling	and sentencing of records (per hour or part of hour)	\$76.50
14	Preparat 15 minu	tion of consignment list (per 15 minutes or part of tes)	\$19.00
15	Preparat	tion of written advice—	
	(a)	per 15 minutes (or part of 15 minutes)	\$19.00

	(b)	per hour	\$76.50
16	Interfilir archive)	ng (placing new files into boxes already held in	
	(a)	per 15 minutes (or part of 15 minutes)	\$19.00
	(b)	per hour	\$76.50
17	Reproce correction	ssing of transfers received requiring further work or on—	
	(a)	per 15 minutes (or part of 15 minutes)	\$19.00
	(b)	per hour	\$76.50
18	Other ad research	lvisory or processing services (including any )—	
	(a)	per 15 minutes (or part of 15 minutes)	\$19.00
	(b)	per hour	\$76.50
19	Loans—		
	(a)	identifying and locating item (including any research)—	
		(i) per 15 minutes (or part of 15 minutes)	\$19.00
		(ii) per hour	\$76.50
	(b)	retrieval (per item)—	
		(i) non-urgent	\$11.80
		(ii) urgent (within 24 hours)	\$16.10
	(c)	restoring original order of item before returning it to the archive—	
		(i) per 15 minutes (or part of 15 minutes)	\$19.00
		(ii) per hour	\$76.50
	(d)	issue of late returns reminder (per item)	\$11.80

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 139 of 2016

# Work Health and Safety (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Work Health and Safety Act 2012

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Work Health and Safety Regulations 2012

4 Variation of Schedule 2—Fees 1 Purpose of Schedule

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Work Health and Safety (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Work Health and Safety Regulations 2012

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 2—Fees

Schedule 2, clause 1—delete the clause and substitute:

#### **1—Purpose of Schedule**

This Schedule specifies fees to be paid under these regulations.

Note—

See the definition of *relevant fee* in regulation 5.

Regulation	Name	Fee
87	Application for high risk work licence	\$76.50
98	Application for replacement licence document	\$41.00

Regulation	Name	Fee
101	Application for renewal of high risk work licence	\$76.50
	Application by high risk work licence holder for addition of new class of high risk work to the licence	\$41.00
116	Application for accreditation of assessors	\$1 183.00
127	Application for replacement of accreditation document	\$111.00
130	Application for renewal of accreditation of assessors	\$1 183.00
250	Application for registration of a plant design	\$118.00
266	Application for registration of an item of plant	\$342.00
277	Application for renewal of a registration of an item of plant	\$342.00
288	Application for replacement registration document	\$111.00
492	Application for asbestos removal licence—Class A	\$23 056.00
	Application for asbestos removal licence—Class B	\$3 513.00
	Application for asbestos assessor licence	\$1 971.00
513	Application for replacement asbestos removal licence	\$111.00
	Application for replacement asbestos assessor licence	\$111.00
516	Application for renewal of asbestos removal licence—Class A	\$23 056.00
	Application for renewal of asbestos removal licence—Class B	\$3 513.00
538	Notification by operators of certain major hazard facilities	No fee
578	Application for major hazard facility licence	
	Tier 1	\$33 048.00
	Tier 2	\$66 097.00
	Tier 3	\$99 145.00
585A	Annual fee payable by operator of major hazard facility (on or before each anniversary of the date on which licence was granted)	
	Tier 1	\$22 032.00
	Tier 2	\$44 064.00
	Tier 3	\$66 097.00
594(4)(b)	Application for replacement major facility licence	\$221.00
596(3)	Application for renewal of major hazard facility licence	

Regulation	Name	Fee
	Tier 1	\$22 032.00
	Tier 2	\$44 064.00
	Tier 3	\$66 097.00
600(2)(b)	Transfer of major hazard facility licence	\$221.00
601(2)(b)	Cancellation of major hazard facility licence	No fee

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 140 of 2016

# Land Tax (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Land Tax Act 1936

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Land Tax Regulations 2010

4 Variation of regulation 9—Certificates in respect of liability to land tax (section 23 of Act)

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Land Tax (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Land Tax Regulations 2010

## 4—Variation of regulation 9—Certificates in respect of liability to land tax (section 23 of Act)

Regulation 9(1)—delete "\$31.25" and substitute:

\$31.75

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 141 of 2016

## **Petroleum Products (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Petroleum Products Regulation Act 1995

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Petroleum Products Regulations 2008

4 Variation of Schedule 3—Fees

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Petroleum Products (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016*.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Petroleum Products Regulations 2008

## 4—Variation of Schedule 3—Fees

Schedule 3—delete "\$244" and substitute:

\$248

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 142 of 2016

#### 2375

### South Australia

# Mines and Works Inspection (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Mines and Works Inspection Act 1920

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Mines and Works Inspection Regulations 2013

4 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Mines and Works Inspection (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

## **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Mines and Works Inspection Regulations 2013

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 3—Fees

1	Application for a certificate under Schedule 1	\$29.25
2	Each subject for examination for a second-class quarry manager's certificate under Schedule 1	\$18.60
3	Examination in mining law, environment and occupational health and safety law under Schedule 1	\$18.60
4	Issue of a certificate under Schedule 1	\$45.75
5	Issue of a replacement certificate	\$29.25

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 143 of 2016

#### 2377

## South Australia

# Mining (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Mining Act 1971

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Mining Regulations 2011

4 Substitution of Schedules 1 and 2

Schedule 1—Fees

Schedule 2—Annual rents

## Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Mining (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Mining Regulations 2011

#### 4—Substitution of Schedules 1 and 2

Schedules 1 and 2-delete the Schedules and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application for registration of mineral claim \$4		
2	Exploration licence—		
	(a)	application fee-the sum of the following components:	
		(i) base component	\$781.00
		(ii) advertising component	\$842.00
	(b)	annual fee-the sum of the following components:	
		(i) administration component	\$157.00

		(ii)	regulation component	\$515.00 or
			The fee payable will be calculated according to the nominal area of the licence, and no allowance will be made for land that is not available for exploration.	\$11.90 per km <sup>2</sup> or part of a km <sup>2</sup> in the area of the licence, whichever is the greater
3	Mining	lease	∽	
	(a)	ap	plication fee—the sum of the following components:	
		(i)	base component	\$1 562.00
		(ii)	advertising component	\$842.00
		(iii)	assessment component—	
			(A) in the case of a mining lease that is authorised to recover, use and sell or dispose of solely extractive minerals or minerals prescribed under regulation 3(3)—	
			• for a mining lease that has an estimated annual production of less than 100 000 tonnes of minerals	\$1 041.00
			• for a mining lease that has an estimated annual production of 100 000 tonnes or more of minerals	\$5 207.00
			(B) in any other case—	
			• if the whole or any part of the mining lease area is within the area of a council or a reserve within the meaning of the <i>National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972—</i>	
			<ul> <li>for a mining lease that has a capital cost of less than \$1 000 000</li> </ul>	\$1 041.00
			<ul> <li>for a mining lease that has a capital cost of \$1 000 000 or more</li> </ul>	0.25% of capital cost up to a maximum of \$200 000
			• if the whole of the mining lease area is outside the area of a council <i>and</i> is outside a reserve within the meaning of the <i>National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972—</i>	
			<ul> <li>for a mining lease that has a capital cost of less than \$1 000 000</li> </ul>	\$1 041.00
			<ul> <li>for a mining lease that has a capital cost of \$1 000 000 or more</li> </ul>	0.125% of capital cost up to a maximum of \$200 000
	(b)	an	nual fee-the sum of the following components:	
		(i)	administration component	\$157.00
		(ii)	regulation component (other than for an extractive minerals lease)	\$309.00
4	Miscell	laneo	us purposes licence—	

<sup>(</sup>a) application fee—the sum of the following components:

(i)	base component	\$1 562.00
(ii)	advertising component	\$842.00
(iii)	assessment component—the sum of the following components:	
	(A) if the whole or any part of the miscellaneous purposes licence area is within the area of a council or a reserve within the meaning of the <i>National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972—</i>	
	• for a licence that has a capital cost of less than \$1 000 000	\$1 041.00
	<ul> <li>for a licence that has a capital cost of \$1 000 000 or more</li> </ul>	0.25% of capital cost up to a maximum of \$200 000
	(B) if the whole of the miscellaneous purposes licence area is outside the area of a council and is outside a reserve within the meaning of the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972	
	• for a licence that has a capital cost of less than \$1 000 000	\$1 041.00
	• for a licence that has a capital cost of \$1 000 000 or more	0.125% of capital cost up to a maximum of \$200 000
(b) and	ual fee-the sum of the following components:	
(i)	administration component	\$157.00
(ii)	regulation component	\$309.00
Retention lea	se—	
(a) app	blication fee—the sum of the following components:	
(i)	base component	\$781.00
(ii)	advertising component	\$842.00
(iii)	assessment component	\$5 207.00
(b) and	nual fee-the sum of the following components:	
(i)	administration component	\$157.00
(ii)	regulation component	\$309.00
Application f	for registration or renewal of access claim	\$88.00
	nt of transfer of mining lease, retention lease, icence or miscellaneous purposes licence	\$157.00
	an agreement (including an indigenous land use r determination with the Mining Registrar under ct	\$550.00
Lodgment of	caveat—per tenement	\$157.00
Late lodgmen (administrati	nt of mining return under section 76 of Act on fee)	\$267.00

Application for—			
(a)	variation of condition of tenement, working conditions or special approval to undertake particular work program	\$550.00	
(b)	Ministerial consent under Act	\$550.00	
Proposa	\$105.00		
Application for issue of duplicate lease or licence \$131.00			
Inspection of Mining Register \$53.50			
Extract from Mining Register comprising copy of mining \$13.50 tenement			
Extract			
(a)	standardised search query (maximum of 10 mining tenements per query)	\$52.50	
(b)	customised search query (maximum of 10 mining tenements per query)	\$105.00	
	(a) (b) Proposa Applica Inspection Extract in Extract in Extract in (a)	<ul> <li>(a) variation of condition of tenement, working conditions or special approval to undertake particular work program</li> <li>(b) Ministerial consent under Act</li> <li>Proposal for a safety net agreement under section 84A of Act</li> <li>Application for issue of duplicate lease or licence</li> <li>Inspection of Mining Register</li> <li>Extract from Mining Register comprising copy of mining tenement</li> <li>Extract from Mining Register comprising results of— <ul> <li>(a) standardised search query (maximum of 10 mining tenements per query)</li> <li>(b) customised search query (maximum of 10 mining</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	

# Schedule 2—Annual rents

1	Mining lease	\$234.00 or \$61.50 for each hectare or part of a hectare in the area of the lease, whichever is the greater
2	Mining lease—Extractives	\$198.00 or \$51.50 for each hectare or part of a hectare in the area of the lease, whichever is the greater
3	Retention lease	\$234.00 or \$31.00 for each hectare or part of a hectare in the area of the lease, whichever is the greater
4	Miscellaneous purposes licence	\$234.00 or \$61.50 for each hectare or part of a hectare in the area of the licence, whichever is the greater

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 144 of 2016 T&F16/026CS

# **Opal Mining (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Opal Mining Act 1995

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Opal Mining Regulations 2012* 

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Opal Mining (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Opal Mining Regulations 2012

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees

- 1 Application for the issue or renewal of a precious stones prospecting \$71.00 permit
- 2 Application for the issue of a duplicate precious stones prospecting \$15.80 permit
- 3 Application for the issue of—
  - (a) a set of identification plates (other than the first set of plates) \$8.50
  - (b) a replacement identification plate \$6.65

4	Application for the registration of—	
-	(a) a small precious stones claim	\$29.25
	(b) a large precious stones claim	\$59.50
	<ul><li>(c) an extra large precious stones claim</li></ul>	\$85.00
	(d) an opal development lease	\$94.00
5	Application for the renewal of the registration of—	φ21.00
5	(a) a small precious stones claim	\$110.00
	(b) a large precious stones claim	\$220.00
	<ul><li>(c) an extra large precious stones claim</li></ul>	\$299.00
6	Lodgment or withdrawal of a caveat	\$299.00 \$71.00
-	C	
7	Lodgment of a bond	nil
8	Submission for registration of an opal mining cooperation agreement	\$88.00
9	Lodgment for registration of—	
	(a) a native title mining agreement	\$187.00
	(b) a native title mining determination	\$187.00
10	Inspection of the Mining Register	\$43.00
11	Extraction of a precious stones claim report	\$6.75
12	Application for an exemption from the obligation to comply with a provision of the Act	\$94.00
13	Recovery of a post stored at an office of the Mining Registrar	\$22.90
14	Application for an exemption from the requirement to remove posts	\$10.80
15	Application for an authorisation under the Act	\$15.90
16	Registration of any other document	\$15.90

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 145 of 2016

# **Petroleum and Geothermal Energy (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Act 2000

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Regulations 2013

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Petroleum and Geothermal Energy (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

## **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Regulations 2013

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

#### Part 1—Application fees

1	Application for a licence under the Act	\$4 254.00
2	Application for the renewal of a licence under the Act	\$2 128.00
3	Application to vary or revoke a discretionary condition of a licence	\$2 128.00

23 June 2016

4			for the approval of the Minister to program	\$2 128.00		
5	Applica retentio	\$2 128.00				
6			for the authorisation of the Minister odify a pipeline	\$2 128.00		
7			o the Minister to consolidate adjacent , or to divide a licence area	\$2 128.00		
8			o the Minister to suspend a licence d period	\$2 128.00		
9	Applica registra		\$2 128.00			
10		Application to have access to material included in \$212.00 the commercial register				
Part	2—Anr	nual li	cence fees (section 78 of Act)			
11	Preliminary survey licence			\$3 599.00 or \$1.35 per km <sup>2</sup> of the total licence area, whichever is the greater		
12	1 2			\$3 599.00 or \$1.35 per km <sup>2</sup> of the total licence area, whichever is the greater		
13	Explora	ation l	icence—			
	(a)	in 1	relation to the first term of the licence	\$3 599.00 or \$1.35 per km <sup>2</sup> of the total licence area, whichever is the greater		
	(b)	) in relation to a licence granted on terms under which the licence is renewable for 1 further term—in relation to the second term		\$3 599.00 or \$2.00 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the second term, whichever is the greater		
	(c)	unc	relation to a licence granted on terms ler which the licence is renewable for urther terms—			
		(i)	in relation to the second term	\$3 599.00 or \$1.65 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the second term, whichever is the greater		
		(ii)	in relation to the third term	\$3 599.00 or \$3.30 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the third term, whichever is the greater		
	(d)	unc	relation to a licence granted on terms der which the licence is renewable for urther terms—			
		(i)	in relation to the second term	\$3 599.00 or \$1.55 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the second term, whichever is the greater		
		(ii)	in relation to the third term	\$3 599.00 or \$2.00 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the third term, whichever is the greater		

		(iii)	in relation to the fourth term	\$3 599.00 or \$4.00 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the fourth term, whichever is the greater	
14	4 Retention licence—				
	(a)	in re lice	elation to a petroleum retention nce	\$3 599.00 or \$455.00 per km <sup>2</sup> of the total licence area, whichever is the greater	
	(b)		elation to a geothermal retention nce or a gas storage retention licence	\$3 599.00 or \$157.00 per km <sup>2</sup> of the total licence area, whichever is the greater	
15	15 Production licence—				
	(a)	in re lice	elation to a petroleum production nce	\$3 599.00 or \$661.00 per km <sup>2</sup> of the total licence area, whichever is the greater	
	(b)		elation to a geothermal production nce or a gas storage licence	\$3 599.00 or \$157.00 per km <sup>2</sup> of the total licence area, whichever is the greater	
16	Pipeline licence		ce	\$3 599.00 or \$362.00 per km, whichever is the greater	
17 Associated activities lice		ated ac	tivities licence—		
	(a)		elation to a licence to which ion 57(1)(a) of the Act applies	\$3 599.00 or \$1 922.00 per km <sup>2</sup> of the total licence area, whichever is the greater	
	(b)		elation to a licence to which ion 57(1)(b) of the Act applies	\$3 599.00	
18	Special	facilit	ies licence	\$3 599.00 or \$1 800.00 per km <sup>2</sup> of the total licence area, whichever is the greater	

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 146 of 2016

# Sheriff's (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Sheriff's Act 1978

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Sheriff's Regulations 2005

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Sheriff's (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Sheriff's Regulations 2005

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	For receiving and entering a summons, notice, order or other document for service (other than in relation to proceedings in the Magistrates Court)—per copy	\$39.50
2	For receiving and entering a warrant (including a summons when issued as a joint process) or other process of execution	\$58.00
3	For serving a summons, claim, notice, order or other document where a written report must be submitted for the preparation of an affidavit of service—per copy	\$43.25

4	For serving a summons, claim, notice, order or other document where a written report does not have to be submitted for the preparation of an affidavit of service—per copy	
5	For conducting inquiries as necessary before executing a warrant or other process of execution	\$43.25
6	For executing a warrant (including serving a summons when issued as a joint process) or other process of execution or making an arrest	\$81.50
7	processed for sale \$46.2 hour an	81.50 plus 5 for each or part of hour after st 3 hours
8	Allowance for travelling expenses incurred in the service of a document or execution of a process kill	\$1.30 per ometre or
	Note— kilom	part of a letre, after
		kilometres
9	Poundage—	
	property), calculated on the amount realised on sale or, if not sold, on the value of the property seized or the \$0.05	per dollar or the first 2 000 and per dollar ver \$2 000
	property, calculated on the annual value (within the meaning of the <i>Valuation of Land Act 1971</i> ) of the real property seized \$0.05	per dollar or the first 2 000 and per dollar ver \$2 000
10	or	5 per hour part hour, er the first hour
11		310.00 per our or part hour

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 147 of 2016

# **Environment, Resources and Development Court (Fees)** Variation Regulations 2016

under the Environment, Resources and Development Court Act 1993

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Environment, Resources and Development Court Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 July 2016

4 Substitution of Schedules 1 and 2

Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

Schedule 2—Fees in proceedings involving native title

Part 3—Variation of *Environment, Resources and Development Court Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 September 2016

5 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

6 Variation of Schedule 2—Fees in proceedings involving native title

# Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Environment*, *Resources and Development Court* (*Fees*) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

- (1) Subject to subregulation (2), these regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.
- (2) Part 3 of these regulations will come into operation on 1 September 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of *Environment, Resources and Development Court Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 July 2016

### 4-Substitution of Schedules 1 and 2

Schedules 1 and 2—delete the Schedules and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

1	On filing or lodging any application or initiating any appeal or other proceedings, other than—		\$226.00
	(a)	an interlocutory application under the rules of the Court; or	
	(b)	an application that relates to a building dispute to which section 86(5) of the <i>Development Act 1993</i> applies; or	
	(c)	an application to the Court for a consent judgment	
2	On an ap summons	plication by a party to proceedings for the issue of a	\$47.50
3		e payable by an applicant where the application relates to g dispute to which section 86(5) of the <i>Development</i> applies	\$373.00
4		payable by the applicant or appellant if a matter to a hearing	\$248.00
5	For each request to inspect any material under section 47(1) of the Act		\$23.10
6	For a copy of a transcript of evidence—per page		\$7.75
7		where clause 8 applies, for a copy of any documentary admitted into evidence—per page	\$7.75
8		by of any photograph, map, plan or other document greater than A4 in size	\$7.75 per page, or the actual cost of copying (whichever is greater)
9	For a cop per page	by of any decision or order given or made by the Court—	\$7.75
	Note—		
		A party to proceedings is entitled to 1 copy of any decision or order given or made by the Court without charge.	
10	-	by of any other document for which a fee has not been ler any other clause—per page	\$4.70
11		ing Registry (or Registry remaining open) after hours for accution of process—for each hour or part of an hour	\$123.00

\$685.00

# Schedule 2—Fees in proceedings involving native title

#### **1**—Applications or notices commencing proceedings

On filing or lodging an application or initiating an appeal commencing proceedings involving a native title question other than a request for mediation

#### Examples—

- (a) an application for registration of a claim to native title in land
- (b) an application for a native title declaration
- (c) an application for variation or revocation of a native title declaration
- (d) an application for a summary determination authorising mining operations on native title land (including under the expedited procedure)
- (e) an appeal against a decision of the Minister to prohibit registration of a native title mining agreement
- (f) an application for a determination of the Court made under an Act authorising a person to enter native title land and carry out operations on the land or to acquire native title land
- (g) an application for review of compensation provisions of determination following native title declaration.

#### 2—Other applications

On filing or lodging any other application in proceedings involving a \$47.50 native title question

#### 3—Inspection and copies of evidentiary material

(a)		each request to inspect material under section 47(1) of Act	\$23.10
(b)	adr	a copy of a transcript of evidence, documentary material nitted into evidence, or a decision or order of the Court plied under section 47(3) of the Act—	l
	(i)	per A4 page (or smaller)	\$7.75
	(ii)	per page that is greater in size than A4	\$7.75 or the actual cost of

		copying
		(whichever is
		greater)
(c)	for a copy of any other document for which a fee has not been charged under paragraph (b)—per page	\$4.70

#### Note—

A party to proceedings is entitled to 1 copy of any decision or order given or made by the Court without charge.

#### 4—Opening Registry after hours

For opening a Registry, or a Registry remaining open, after hours for \$123.00 urgent execution of process—for each hour or part of an hour

6

# Part 3—Variation of *Environment, Resources and Development Court Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 September 2016

### 5—Variation of Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

Schedule 1, table, item 6—delete the entry relating to item 6 and substitute:

5	For a copy of a transcript of evidence		
	(a)	per page in electronic form	\$7.75

(b) per page in hard-copy form \$10.00

### 6—Variation of Schedule 2—Fees in proceedings involving native title

Schedule 2, table, item 3(b)—delete the entry relating to item 3(b) and substitute:

(b)	b) for a copy of a transcript of evidence, documentary material admitted into evidence, or a decision or order of the Court supplied under section 47(3) of the Act—		
	(i)	per A4 page (or smaller) in electronic form	\$7.75
	(ii)	per A4 page (or smaller) in hard-copy form	\$10.00
	(iii)	per page that is greater in size than A4 in electronic form	\$7.75
	(iv)	per page that is greater in size than A4 in hard-copy form	\$10.00 or the actual cost of copying (whichever is greater)

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 148 of 2016

# **District Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the District Court Act 1991

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *District Court (Fees) Regulations 2004* to take effect on 1 July 2016

4 Substitution of Schedules 1 to 3

Schedule 1—Fees in civil division

Schedule 2—Fees in criminal division

Schedule 3—Fees in criminal injuries division

Part 3—Variation of *District Court (Fees) Regulations 2004* to take effect on 1 September 2016

- 5 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees in civil division
- 6 Variation of Schedule 2—Fees in criminal division
- 7 Variation of Schedule 3—Fees in criminal injuries division

# Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the District Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

- (1) Subject to subregulation (2), these regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.
- (2) Part 3 of these regulations will come into operation on 1 September 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of *District Court (Fees) Regulations 2004* to take effect on 1 July 2016

### 4—Substitution of Schedules 1 to 3

Schedules 1 to 3 (inclusive)—delete the Schedules and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees in civil division

1	On filing an application for disclosure of documents before the commencement of a proceeding		
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$219.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$156.00
2		ns fee—on filing a document by which a proceeding an a proceeding specified in clause 3 or 4) is aced	
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$1 708.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$1 212.00
3	commen applicati	ns fee—on filing a document by which a proceeding is aced where a fee has previously been paid for filing an ion for disclosure of documents relating to the matter of the proceeding	
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$1 489.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$1 056.00
4	On filing	g an application under the National Credit Code	\$240.00
5	On filing	g a counterclaim or third party action	
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$1 708.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$1 212.00
6	that does	g or lodging an application, notice or other document s not relate to a proceeding for which a fee has been ler any of the preceding clauses	
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$219.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$156.00
7		ing a certificate or certifying under seal that a nt is a true copy	\$72.50
8	For each	request to search and/or inspect a record of the Court	\$23.10
9	For copy	y of evidence—per page	\$7.75
10	For copy	y of reasons for judgment—per page	\$7.75
	Note—		
		1 copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge	
11	For copy	y of any other document—per page	\$4.70
12	For production of transcript at request of a party where the Court does not require the transcript—per page\$15.70		
13		—for each day or part of a day on which the trial is the Court	

	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$1 708.00
	. ,		
	(b)	for any other person	\$1 212.00
	Note—	The fee for a trial is the fee fixed under clause 13 as in force on the day on which the trial commenced and is payable by the plaintiff or appellant in the proceedings. However, if the Court or a registrar so orders, the fee is payable by another party to the proceedings or by the parties to the proceedings in the proportions ordered.	
14	credited	Fund—on interest collected on funds in Court or to an account, payable on transfer of interest out of the account or at such earlier time or times as required by rt	
	(a)	if the interest is \$10.00 or less	no fee
	(b)	in any other case	3% of amount of interest
15	Adjudic	ation of costs	
	(a)	on filing an itemised schedule of costs	\$72.50
	(b)	on filing an application for adjudication of legal costs	\$72.50
	(c)	for adjudicating an itemised schedule of costs	5% of amount allowed on adjudication (to nearest dollar)
16		ning Registry (or Registry remaining open) after hours nt execution of process—for each hour or part of an	\$372.00
17		ning Court (or Court remaining open) after hours for earing—for each hour or part of an hour	\$1 119.00
So	chedule	e 2—Fees in criminal division	
1	(1) For e Cour	each request to search and/or inspect a record of the t	\$23.10
	or on	e is not payable under subclause (1) for a request by behalf of a person accused or a victim of an acce that is the subject of proceedings before the t	
2		g a certificate or certifying under seal that a is a true copy	\$72.50
3	For copy of	of evidence—per page	\$7.75
4	For copy of	of reasons for judgment—per page	\$7.75
	Note—		
		1 copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.	
5	For copy of	of any other document—per page	\$4.70

# Schedule 3—Fees in criminal injuries division

1	Summons fee—on filing a document by which a proceeding is commenced		
	(a) for a prescribed corporation	\$219.00	
	(b) for any other person	\$156.00	
2	(1) For each request to search and/or inspect a record of the Court	\$23.10	
	(2) A fee is not payable under subclause (1) for a request by or on behalf of a person accused or a victim of an offence that is the subject of proceedings before the Court		
3	For copy of evidence—per page	\$7.75	
4	For copy of reasons for judgment-per page	\$7.75	
	Note—		
	1 copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.		
5	For copy of any other document-per page	\$4.70	
6	For production of transcript at request of a party where the Court does not require the transcript—per page	\$15.70	
7	Adjudication of costs		
	(a) on filing an itemised schedule of costs	\$72.50	
	(b) on filing an application for adjudication of legal costs	\$72.50	
	(c) for adjudicating an itemised schedule of costs	5% of amount allowed on adjudication (to nearest dollar)	
8	For opening Registry (or Registry remaining open) after hours for urgent execution of process—per hour or part of an hour	\$372.00	
9	For opening Court (or Court remaining open) after hours for urgent hearing—per hour or part of an hour	\$1 119.00	

# Part 3—Variation of *District Court (Fees) Regulations 2004* to take effect on 1 September 2016

### 5—Variation of Schedule 1—Fees in civil division

Schedule 1, table, item 9—delete the entry relating to item 9 and substitute:

9	For copy of evidence	
	per page in electronic form	\$7.75
	per page in hard-copy form	\$10.00

### 6-Variation of Schedule 2-Fees in criminal division

Schedule 2, table, item 3—delete the entry relating to item 3 and substitute:

3 For copy of evidence

per page in electronic form	\$7.75
per page in hard-copy form	\$10.00

### 7—Variation of Schedule 3—Fees in criminal injuries division

Schedule 3, table, item 3—delete the entry relating to item 3 and substitute:

3	For copy of evidence	
	per page in electronic form	\$7.75
	per page in hard-copy form	\$10.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

# Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 149 of 2016

# **Supreme Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Supreme Court Act 1935

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Supreme Court Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 July 2016

4 Substitution of Schedules 1 and 2

Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

Schedule 2—Fees in probate jurisdiction

Part 3—Variation of *Supreme Court Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 September 2016

5 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

# Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Supreme Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

- (1) Subject to subregulation (2), these regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.
- (2) Part 3 of these regulations will come into operation on 1 September 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of *Supreme Court Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 July 2016

### 4—Substitution of Schedules 1 and 2

Schedules 1 and 2—delete the Schedules and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

#### Part 1—General

#### **General Fees**

		-	
1	On filing an application for disclosure of documents before the commencement of a proceeding		
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$582.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$411.00
2	On filing commen	g a document by which a proceeding in the court is ced—	
	(a)	in the case where a fee has previously been paid for filing an application for disclosure of documents relating to the subject-matter of the proceeding—	
		(i) for a prescribed corporation	\$2 832.00
		(ii) for any other person	\$2 008.00
	(b)	in any other case—	
		(i) for a prescribed corporation	\$3 414.00
		(ii) for any other person	\$2 419.00
3	On filing	g a counterclaim or third party action	
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$3 414.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$2 419.00
4	On filing	g a summons for permission to appeal	
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$582.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$411.00
5	On filing required	g a notice of appeal for which permission to appeal is	
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$2 832.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$2 008.00
6	On filing	g a notice of appeal in respect of an appeal as of right	
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$3 414.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$2 419.00
	Note—		

#### Note—

No further fee is payable for filing pleadings or particulars or for any interlocutory application, interlocutory motion, application for directions or application for immediate relief, for signing judgment or for any necessary affidavit or document.

7	On—		
	(a)	filing or lodging an application, notice or other document that does not relate to a proceeding for which a fee has been paid under any of the previous clauses	\$72.50
	(b)	sealing a certificate	\$72.50
	(c)	certifying under seal that a document is a true copy	\$72.50
		request to search and/or inspect a record of the court, other isorce or Matrimonial Causes record	\$23.10
	Note—		
		No fee is payable under this clause for a request made in respect of a record relating to criminal proceedings by or on behalf of the defendant or the victim of the offence that is the subject of those proceedings.	
9	For a cop	by of a document (other than a copy of evidence)—per page	\$4.70
10	For a cop	by of evidence—per page	\$7.75
11	For a cop	by of the reasons for judgment—per page	\$7.75
	Note—		
		1 copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.	
	-	uction of a transcript on the request of a party where the es not require the transcript—per page	\$15.70
	Trial fee the court	—for each day or part of a day on which the trial is heard by —	
	(a)	for a prescribed corporation	\$3 414.00
	(b)	for any other person	\$2 419.00
Not	e—		
	the pla or pro	e fee for a trial is the fee fixed under clause 14 as in force on a day on which the trial commenced and is payable by the intiff or appellant in the proceedings. However, if the court Registrar so orders, the fee is payable by another party to the occeedings or by the parties to the proceedings in the oportions ordered.	
Suit	ors' Fun	ıds	
]	payable i	est collected on funds in court or credited to an account, from time to time or prior to the payment or transfer of out of any fund or money in court—	
	(a)	if the interest is \$10.00 or less	no fee
	(b)	in any other case	3% of amount of interest
Fees	s Payabl	e on Adjudication of Costs	
	On filing		
	(a)	an itemised schedule of costs	\$72.50
	(b)	an application for adjudication of legal costs	\$72.50

16 For adjudicating an itemised schedule of costs	5% of amount allowed on adjudication (to nearest dollar)
Miscellaneous	,
17 On serving on a Registrar of the Magistrates Court copies of a notice of appeal to the Supreme Court against a decision of the Magistrates Court pursuant to section 42 of the <i>Magistrates Court Act 1991</i>	\$227.00
Note—	
This fee is payable at the Magistrates Court when the appeal is lodged.	
18 For opening the Registry (or the Registry remaining open) after hours for urgent execution of process—for each hour or part of an hour	\$ \$372.00
19 For opening the court (or the court remaining open) after hours for urgent hearing—for each hour or part of an hour	\$1 119.00
Part 2—Fees payable under rules regulating admission of practitioners	
20 On application for admission or re-admission as a practitioner	\$573.00
Part 3—Fees to be taken by officers of the court or Commissioners for taking affidavits	
21 On taking an affidavit or an affirmation or attestation upon honour or a declaration (for each person making the affidavit, affirmation, attestation upon honour or declaration)—	
<ul> <li>(a) if taken by a Commissioner who has to travel more than 1 kilometre from his or her residence or office or, in the case of an officer of the court, 1 kilometre from the Registry</li> </ul>	\$12.30
(b) in any other case—	
(i) if taken within the State	\$2.60
(ii) if taken outside the State	\$4.80
22 For attesting a document required to be attested by a Commissioner for taking affidavits	\$2.60
23 Commissioner's fee on execution of bail in the Admiralty jurisdiction, including any affidavit of justification	\$19.80
Part 4—Fees to be taken in marshal's office	
24 Receiving and entering a writ of summons, warrant of release, decree, order, commission or other instrument under the seal of the court	\$59.50
25 For—	
(a) service of a writ of summons	\$49.50
(b) execution of a warrant of arrest—for each person	\$103.00
but, if a writ is served and a warrant executed on a person at the same time	\$133.00
26 For execution of a warrant for the seizure of a ship, cargo or other goods	\$103.00
27 For the release of any ship, goods or person from seizure or arrest	\$49.50

1A

1**B** 

28	For the e	execution of a commission of appraisement or sale	\$103.00
29		execution of any decree, order, commission or instrument in 1 otherwise specified in this Part	\$103.00
30	For delive	very of a ship or goods to a purchaser	\$103.00
31		iding the discharge of cargo or removal of a ship or goods— per day or part of a day	\$103.00
32	-	ing office (or office remaining open) after hours for urgent n of process—payable per hour or part of an hour	\$372.00
33	On the g	ross proceeds of any ship or goods sold—	
	(a)	for every \$200 or part of \$200, up to \$20 000	\$20.30
	(b)	for each additional \$200 or part of \$200	\$12.30
34		ning possession of a ship (with or without cargo) or of a rgo—for each day or part of a day	\$59.50
	Note—		

No fee is payable under this Part for the custody and possession of property seized if it consists of money with an ADI, or goods stored in a bonded warehouse, or if it is in the custody of a customs officer or other authorised person.

# Schedule 2—Fees in probate jurisdiction

1	On lodging an application for a grant of probate or administration
	in respect of a deceased estate the gross value of which-

(a)	is \$200 000 or less	\$763.00
(b)	is more than \$200 000 but less than or equal to \$500 000	\$1 526.00
(c)	is more than \$500 000 but less than or equal to \$1 million	\$2 034.00
(d)	is more than \$1 million	\$3 051.00
section 1	ing an application for the sealing of a grant under 7 of the <i>Administration and Probate Act 1919</i> in respect eased estate the gross value of which—	
(a)	is \$200 000 or less	\$763.00
(b)	is more than \$200 000 but less than or equal to \$500 000	\$1 526.00
(c)	is more than \$500 000 but less than or equal to \$1 million	\$2 034.00
(d)	is more than \$1 million	\$3 051.00
Public T	ing an application for an order under section 9 of the <i>Trustee Act 1995</i> in respect of a deceased estate the gross which—	
(a)	is \$200 000 or less	\$763.00
(b)	is more than \$200 000 but less than or equal to \$500 000	\$1 526.00

23 June 2016

	(c)	is more than \$500 000 but less than or equal to \$1 million	\$2 034.00
	(d)	is more than \$1 million	\$3 051.00
Note-			
	The f	ees under clauses 1 to 1B (inclusive) cover-	
	(a	<ul> <li>photocopies required of the will or other document (if any) for the grant and record or other purposes; and</li> </ul>	
	(t	preparing and sealing any probate or letters of administration, with or without the will annexed, and any order to the Public Trustee to administer; and	
	(c	sealing any probate or letters of administration, with or without the will annexed, exemplification or other document under section 17 of the <i>Administration and Probate Act 1919</i> .	
2	grant that	ng an application to amend a grant or for noting on a t the deceased died domiciled in South Australia if not so en the grant was issued (inclusive fee)	\$83.50
3	Inheritan	ng 2 certified photocopies of an order under the <i>ice (Family Provision) Act 1972</i> for annexation to the for the record (inclusive fee)	\$83.50
4	On lodgi fee)	ng an application to revoke or impound a grant (inclusive	\$83.50
5		otographic copy of a will or extract of a will or other t—for each photographic sheet supplied	\$4.00
6	For impr	essing a seal of the court on a copy	\$37.00
	Note—		
		This fee is not payable where the fee under clause 8 is payable.	
7	For the R	egistrar's certificate in verification of a copy	\$37.00
8		cemplification of probate or letters of administration, with at the will annexed (in addition to the fee under clause 5)	\$83.50
9		ntry or withdrawal of a caveat, for a warning to a caveat vice of a warning to a caveat sent by the Registrar he post	\$34.30
10	On enter	ing an appearance—for 1 or more persons	\$59.50
11	For sealing	ng a citation or a subpoena	\$34.30
12		rch for a will or other document filed in the Registry and of a search copy (inclusive fee)	\$20.30
		dition, for handling a search by post—in respect of each her document	\$2.20
13	For depo	siting the will of a deceased person in the Registry—	
	(a)	for safe custody on renunciation of executor (inclusive fee)	\$34.30
	(b)	under the Crown Lands Act 1929 (inclusive fee)	\$34.30

14	custody i	For depositing the will or codicil of a living person for safe \$114.00 custody in the Registry under section 13 of the <i>Administration</i> and Probate Act 1919 (inclusive fee)	
15		drawal of a will under section 15 of the Administration bate Act 1919 (inclusive fee)	\$56.00
16		examination of a person or witness before the Registrar urpose of an inquiry or investigation—for each hour or n hour	\$143.00
17		sing and settling citations, advertisements, oaths, s or other documents—per document	\$43.50
	Note—		
		This fee is not payable on an application under section 16 of the <i>Administration and Probate Act 1919</i> .	
18	On sealin	ng a summons without notice or an inter partes summons	\$289.00
19	On sealin	ng any other summons	\$56.00
	Note—		
		The fee under clause 18 or 19 is not payable where the fee under clause 1 is payable.	
20	nuncupat	ng an application for an order admitting to proof a tive will, a will contained in a copy, a completed draft, a action or other evidence of its contents	\$289.00
21		in chambers or in court where the hearing occupies more nours—for every additional period of 5 hours or part	\$143.00
	Note—		
		The fees under clauses 18, 19 and 20 cover any necessary document, affidavit or search, any interlocutory summons and the entering and sealing of any judgment, decree or order given or made in court or in chambers.	
22		g a renunciation after the issue of a grant by an executor leave was reserved (inclusive fee)	\$56.00
23	For—		
	(a)	a certificate under the hand of the Registrar	\$34.30
	(b)	filing or depositing an affidavit or document in the Registry	\$10.30
	(c)	sealing an order of the court or the Registrar (inclusive fee)	\$56.00
	Note—		
		These fees are not payable where the certificate or the filing, deposit or sealing of the order is included in an application or proceeding for which another fee is payable.	
24	and attes	inistering an oath, taking an affirmation, superintending ting execution of a bond, or for adjudicating or ng a bill of costs	The appropriate fee set out in Schedule 1

The fee payable in respect of a document of foreign origin that is not strictly of a type referred to in this Schedule is that payable in respect of the document specified in this Schedule to which, in the opinion of the Registrar, the foreign document most closely corresponds.

# Part 3—Variation of *Supreme Court Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 September 2016

### 5-Variation of Schedule 1-Fees in general jurisdiction

Schedule 1, table, item 10—delete the entry relating to item 10 and substitute:

10 For a copy of evidence

(a)	per page in electronic form	\$7.75
(a)	per page in hard-copy form	\$10.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 150 of 2016

# **Magistrates Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Magistrates Court Act 1991

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Magistrates Court (Fees) Regulations 2004* to take effect on 1 July 2016

4 Substitution of Schedules 1 to 3

Schedule 1—Fees in Civil (General Claims) Division and Civil (Minor Claims) Division

Schedule 2—Fees in Criminal Division

Schedule 3—Fees in Petty Sessions Division

Part 3—Variation of *Magistrates Court (Fees) Regulations 2004* to take effect on 1 September 2016

- 5 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees in Civil (General Claims) Division and Civil (Minor Claims) Division
- 6 Variation of Schedule 2—Fees in Criminal Division

# Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Magistrates Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

- (1) Subject to subregulation (2), these regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.
- (2) Part 3 of these regulations will come into operation on 1 September 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of *Magistrates Court (Fees) Regulations 2004* to take effect on 1 July 2016

### 4—Substitution of Schedules 1 to 3

Schedules 1, 2 and 3—delete the Schedules and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees in Civil (General Claims) Division and Civil (Minor Claims) Division

1	For issuing a <i>Final Notice of Claim</i> under the rules	\$20.60
2	On commencement of minor civil action	\$140.00
3	On lodging a counterclaim or a third party notice in a minor civil action	\$140.00
4	On commencement of any other action under the <i>Magistrates Court Act 1991</i> —	
	(a) in the case of a prescribed corporation	\$515.00
	(b) in any other case	\$304.00
5	On lodging a counterclaim or a third party notice in any other action under the <i>Magistrates Court Act 1991</i> —	
	(a) in the case of a prescribed corporation	\$515.00
	(b) in any other case	\$304.00
6	For issuing and administering an investigation or examination summons under the <i>Magistrates Court</i> Act 1991	\$53.50
7	On commencement of action under any other Act or \$14 issuing a summons on such action	
8	On lodging a counterclaim or a third party notice in any \$14 action under any other Act	
9	For publishing an advertisement	actual costs reasonably incurred
10	For each request to search and inspect a record of the Court	\$23.10
11	For copy of evidence—per page	\$7.75
12	For copy of reasons for judgment—per page	\$7.75
	Note—	
	1 copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.	
13	For copy of any other document—per page	\$4.70
14	For production of transcript at request of a party where the Court does not require the transcript—per page	\$15.70
15	Adjudication of costs: on lodging a bill of costs (other than in a minor civil action)	\$72.50
16	For opening Registry (or Registry remaining open) after hours for urgent execution of process—for each hour or part of an hour	\$372.00

17 For opening Court (or Court remaining open) after hours \$1 119.00 for urgent hearing-for each hour or part of an hour Schedule 2—Fees in Criminal Division On commencement of proceedings for summary \$260.00 plus if the complaint or 1 applications, summary offences, minor indictable information alleges more than offences or indictable offences 1 offence-\$47.50 2 For issuing a warrant of commitment \$51.50 3 For copy of evidence-per page \$7.75 4 For copy of reasons for judgment-per page \$7.75 (1 copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.) 5 For copy of any other document-per page \$4.70 6 For production of transcript at request of a party \$15.70 where the Court does not require the transcriptper page 7 For each request to search and inspect a record of \$23.10 the Court

# Schedule 3—Fees in Petty Sessions Division

1	On lodging an appeal against an enforcement	\$53.50
	determination under section 14 of the Explation of	
	Offences Act 1996	

# Part 3—Variation of Magistrates Court (Fees) Regulations 2004 to take effect on 1 September 2016

### 5-Variation of Schedule 1-Fees in Civil (General Claims) Division and Civil (Minor Claims) Division

Schedule 1, table, item 11—delete the entry relating to item 11 and substitute:

11 For co	ppy of evidence—	
(a)	per page in electronic form	\$7.75
(b)	) per page in hard-copy form	\$10.00
6—Variation of Sched	ule 2—Fees in Criminal Division	

Schedule 2, table, item 3—delete the entry relating to item 3 and substitute:

3 For copy of evidence-

- \$7.75 (a) per page in electronic form
- \$10.00 (b) per page in hard-copy form

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 151 of 2016

# Youth Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Youth Court Act 1993

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Youth Court (Fees) Regulations 2010* to take effect on 1 July 2016

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Fees

Part 3—Variation of *Youth Court (Fees) Regulations 2010* to take effect on 1 September 2016

5 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Youth Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

- (1) Subject to subregulation (2), these regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.
- (2) Part 3 of these regulations will come into operation on 1 September 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of *Youth Court (Fees) Regulations 2010* to take effect on 1 July 2016

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees

1	On commencement of proceedings for summary applications, summary offences, minor indictable offences or indictable offences	\$260.00 plus if the complaint or information alleges more than 1 offence—\$47.50
2	On application for an adoption order under the <i>Adoption Act 1988</i>	\$167.00
3	For copy of evidence—per page	\$7.75
4	For copy of reasons for judgment-per page	\$7.75
	Note—	
	A party to proceedings is entitled to 1 copy of the reasons without charge.	
5	For copy of any other document-per page	\$4.70
6	For production of transcript at request of a party where the Court does not require the transcript—per page	\$15.70

# Part 3—Variation of *Youth Court (Fees) Regulations 2010* to take effect on 1 September 2016

### 5—Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

Schedule 1, table, item 3—delete the entry relating to item 3 and substitute:

3	3 For copy of evidence—				
	(a)	per page in electronic form	\$7.75		
	(b)	per page in hard-copy form	\$10.00		

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 152 of 2016

# **Coroners (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Coroners Act 2003

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Coroners Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 July 2016

4 Substitution of Schedule 1 Schedule 1—Section 37 fees

Part 3—Variation of *Coroners Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 September 2016

5 Variation of Schedule 1—Section 37 fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Coroners (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

- (1) Subject to subregulation (2), these regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.
- (2) Part 3 of these regulations will come into operation on 1 September 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of *Coroners Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 July 2016

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Section 37 fees

#### Fees under section 37

1 For each application to inspect a record or any other documentary or evidentiary material

2	For a copy of the transcript of evidence, or the findings and any recommendations of the Court, or an order made by the Court	\$7.75 per page
	Note—	
	1 copy will be supplied to a person who appears before the Court under section 20 of the Act free of charge.	
3	For a copy of any other document	\$4.70 per page

# Part 3—Variation of *Coroners Regulations 2005* to take effect on 1 September 2016

### 5—Variation of Schedule 1—Section 37 fees

Schedule 1, table, item 2—delete the entry relating to item 2 and substitute:

- 2 For a copy of the transcript of evidence, or the findings and any recommendations of the Court, or an order made by the Court—
  - (a) in electronic form \$7.75 per page
  - (b) in hard-copy form \$10.00 per page

Note—

1 copy will be supplied to a person who appears before the Court under section 20 of the Act free of charge in electronic form or hard-copy form, as specified by the person.

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 153 of 2016

# **Evidence (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Evidence Act 1929

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Evidence Regulations 2007

- 4 Substitution of Schedule 1
  - Schedule 1—Fee for authorised news representative

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Evidence (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Evidence Regulations 2007

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fee for authorised news representative

1 Fee payable in respect of an authorised news media representative \$606.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 154 of 2016

# **Bills of Sale (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Bills of Sale Act 1886

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Bills of Sale Regulations 2009

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Bills of Sale (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Bills of Sale Regulations 2009

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees

For registering or filing—				
(a)	a document under section 11A of the Act			
(b)	a bill of sale			
(c)	the discharge, extension, transfer or renewal of a bill of sale			

- (d) any other document
- 2 For withdrawing a bill of sale from registration or filing \$60.50

\$73.00 \$73.00

\$73.00 \$73.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 155 of 2016

# **Strata Titles (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Strata Titles Act 1988

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Strata Titles (Fees) Regulations 2001

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees payable to Registrar-General

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Strata Titles (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Strata Titles (Fees) Regulations 2001

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees payable to Registrar-General

1 For lodgement of an application for—			
	(a)	amendment of a strata plan	\$294.00
	(b)	amalgamation of 2 or more strata plans	\$294.00
2 For the examination of—			
	(a)	an amendment to a strata plan	\$462.00
	(b)	an amalgamation of 2 or more strata plans	\$462.00
3 For the deposit of a strata plan		\$142.00	

4	For the issue of a certificate of title—		
4	For the 1		
	(a)	for each unit added to a strata plan or amended by a strata plan	\$83.50
	(b)	for each unit comprised in an amalgamated plan	\$83.50
5	For the a	amendment of a schedule of unit entitlements	\$157.00
6	Applicat	ion for cancellation of a strata plan—	
	(a)	for examination of application (including fees for entering necessary memorials in the Register Book)	\$294.00
	(b)	for each certificate of title issued	\$83.50
7	-	ing a certified copy of a special resolution of a strata ion amending the articles of the corporation	\$157.00
8	On lodgi Act	ing any other document with the Registrar-General under the	\$157.00
9	On givin	g written notice—	
	(a)	of the appointment of an administrator of a strata corporation	\$157.00
	(b)	of the removal or replacement of an administrator of a strata corporation	\$157.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 156 of 2016

# **Community Titles (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Community Titles Act 1996

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Community Titles Regulations 2011

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Community Titles (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Community Titles Regulations 2011

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 2—Fees

- 1 Examination of plan to be lodged with application under Act before application is lodged (section 144 of Act)—
  - (a) for application for division of land by plan of community division (section 14 of Act)—
    - (i) if there are 5 lots or less \$462.00
    - (ii) if there are more than 5 lots \$922.00
  - (b) for any other application \$462.00

2	Applicat (section		
	(a)	for examination of application	\$387.00
	(b)	for examination of plan of community division not subject to prior approval under section 144 of Act—	
		(i) if there are 5 lots or less	\$462.00
		(ii) if there are more than 5 lots	\$922.00
	(c)	for deposit of plan of community division	\$142.00
	(d)	for each lot requiring issue of certificate of title	\$83.50
	(e)	for filing of scheme description	\$157.00
	(f)	for filing of by-laws	\$157.00
	(g)	for filing of development contract	\$157.00
3	Applicat Act)	tion to amend schedule of lot entitlements (section 21 of	\$157.00
4		f copy of certified scheme description as amended 31 of Act)	\$157.00
5	Filing of	f certified copy of by-laws as varied (section 39 of Act)	\$157.00
6		the fee for purchase from corporation of copy of by-laws 44 of Act)	\$47.25
7	Fee for purchase from Registrar-General of copy of by-laws filed with plan of community division (section 44 of Act)		\$10.20
8		f certified copy of development contract as varied or ent to terminate development contract (section 50 of Act)	\$157.00
9		Im fee for purchase from corporation of copy of ment contract (section 51 of Act)	\$47.25
10	Fee for purchase from Registrar-General of copy of development\$10.2contract filed with plan of community division (section 51 of Act)\$10.2		
11		tion for amendment of deposited community plan 52 of Act)—	
	(a)	for examination of application	\$294.00
	(b)	for examination of plan to be substituted or sheets of plan to be substituted or added if plan not subject to prior approval under section 144 of Act	\$462.00
	(c)	for each lot requiring issue of certificate of title	\$83.50
	(d)	for filing of amended scheme description	\$157.00
12	develop	tion for division of development lot in pursuance of ment contract and consequential amendment of community ction 58 of Act)—	
	(a)	for examination of application	\$294.00
	(b)	for examination of plan to be substituted or sheets of plan to be substituted or added if plan not subject to prior approval under section 144 of Act	\$462.00
	(c)	for each lot requiring issue of certificate of title	\$83.50

13	Application for amalgamation of deposited community plans (section 60 of Act)—	
	(a) for examination of application	\$294.00
	<ul> <li>(b) for examination of plan of community division not subject to prior approval under section 144</li> </ul>	\$462.00
	(c) for deposit of plan of community division	\$142.00
	(d) for each lot requiring issue of certificate of title	\$83.50
	(e) for filing of scheme description	\$157.00
	(f) for filing of by-laws	\$157.00
14	Application for cancellation of deposited community plan (sections 64 and 65 of Act)—	
	(a) for examination of application	\$294.00
	(b) if application is for cancellation of primary plan—	
	<ul><li>(i) for examination of plan that delineates outer boundaries of primary parcel</li></ul>	\$462.00
	(ii) for filing of plan	\$142.00
	(c) for each certificate of title to be issued	\$83.50
15	Application to note Court order for cancellation of community plan (sections 64 and 67 of Act)—	
	(a) for noting the order	\$294.00
	(b) if application is for cancellation of primary plan—	
	<ul><li>(i) for examination of plan that delineates outer boundaries of primary parcel</li></ul>	\$462.00
	(ii) for filing of plan	\$142.00
	(c) for each certificate of title to be issued	\$83.50
16	Filing of notice of appointment, removal or replacement of administrator (section 100 of Act)	\$157.00
17	Filing of resolution to elect to use Act (Schedule clause 2)	\$157.00
18	Submission of outer boundary plan (regulation 8)—	
	(a) for examination of plan	\$922.00
	(b) for filing of plan	\$142.00
19	Fee for re-examination of plan when amended after approval for deposit is given	\$142.00
20	Lodgement of any other document required by Act	\$157.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 157 of 2016

# **Registration of Deeds (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Registration of Deeds Act 1935

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Registration of Deeds (Fees) Regulations 2004

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Registration of Deeds (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Registration of Deeds (Fees) Regulations 2004

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 For registering—
  - (a) an instrument of conveyance, a legal or equitable mortgage or \$142.00 any other instrument
  - (b) an instrument of conveyance, mortgage or other instrument that No fee has been dated 30 years or more prior to production for registration

2 For depositing a deed, agreement, writing, assurance, map or plan	\$21.10
3 For enrolling an instrument	\$21.10
4 For a copy of an instrument that has been registered, deposited or enrolled	\$10.20

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 158 of 2016

# Worker's Liens (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Worker's Liens Act 1893

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Worker's Liens Regulations 2014

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Worker's Liens (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Worker's Liens Regulations 2014

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	For lodging a notice of lien (section 10(3))	\$157.00
2	For entering a memorandum of cessation of lien (section 16)	\$157.00

3 If a notice of lien or an application to enter a memorandum of cessation \$60.50 of lien is withdrawn before the appropriate memorandum is entered, the fee payable is reduced to

#### Note—

A fee is payable for entering a memorandum of withdrawal of lien under the *Real Property Act 1886*.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 159 of 2016

# **Development (Open Space Contribution Scheme) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Development Act 1993

# Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Development Regulations 2008

4 Variation of regulation 56—Open space contribution scheme

# Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Development (Open Space Contribution Scheme)* Variation Regulations 2016.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Development Regulations 2008

### 4—Variation of regulation 56—Open space contribution scheme

Regulation 56(2)(a)—delete "\$6 488" and substitute:

\$6 676

### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 160 of 2016

PLN0008/16CS

# **Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) (Expiation Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Road Traffic Act 1961

## Contents

### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2014

4 Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—Expiation of offences

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Expiation of alleged offences
- 2 Photographic detection devices
- 3 Explation fee for certain offences at average speed camera locations
- 4 Expiation fee for certain Road Rules contraventions within 100 metres of Safe-T-Cam photographic detection device
- 5 Lesser expiation fee if motor vehicle not involved
- 6 Prescribed roads—offences against section 45A of Act involving road trains

Part 2—Offences against the Road Traffic Act 1961

Part 3-Offences against the Australian Road Rules

Part 4—Offences against the Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2014

Part 5—Offences against the Road Traffic (Road Rules—Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2014

# Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) (Expiation Fees)* Variation Regulations 2016.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2014

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 4—Expiation of offences

## **Part 1—Preliminary**

### 1—Expiation of alleged offences

- (1) The expiation fees set out in this Schedule are fixed for alleged offences against the Act or the rules or regulations specified in this Schedule.
- (2) Text set out in italic type under a heading in this Schedule commencing with the words "Description of offence" is a description for convenience purposes only and is not to be taken to define the offence for which a particular amount is fixed as the expiation fee.

### 2—Photographic detection devices

The expiation fee for an alleged offence against section 79B(2) of the Act constituted of being the owner of a vehicle that appears from evidence obtained through the operation of a photographic detection device to have been involved in the commission of an expiable offence is the same as the expiation fee payable for that expiable offence.

### 3—Expiation fee for certain offences at average speed camera locations

Despite any other provision of this Schedule, the expiation fee for-

- (a) an alleged offence constituted of a contravention of or failure to comply with—
  - (i) rule 132(2) of the *Australian Road Rules* (Keeping to the left of a dividing line); or
  - (ii) rule 150(1) of the *Australian Road Rules* (Driving on or across a continuous white edge line); or
- (b) an alleged offence against section 164A(1) of the *Road Traffic Act 1961* constituted of a contravention of or failure to comply with section 110 of the Act (Driving on sealed surface),

is \$881 if the contravention or failure to comply takes place within 100 metres of a stub line at an average speed camera location.

### 4—Expiation fee for certain Road Rules contraventions within 100 metres of Safe-T-Cam photographic detection device

Despite any other provision of this Schedule, the explation fee for an alleged offence constituted of contravention by the driver of a heavy vehicle of any of the following provisions of the *Australian Road Rules* is \$541 if the contravention takes place within 100 metres of a Safe-T-Cam photographic detection device:

(a) rule 95(1) (Emergency stopping lane only signs);

- (b) rule 126 (Keeping a safe distance behind vehicles);
- (c) rule 127(1) (Keeping a minimum distance between long vehicles);
- (d) rule 132(2) (Keeping to left of dividing line);
- (e) rule 146(1) (Driving within a single marked lane);
- (f) rule 147 (Moving from one marked lane to another marked lane across a continuous line);
- (g) rule 150(1) (Driving on or across a continuous white edge line);
- (h) rule 215(1) (Using lights when driving at night or in hazardous weather conditions).

### **5**—Lesser expiation fee if motor vehicle not involved

- (1) Despite the fees fixed in the tables in this Schedule, the expiation fee is \$55 for an alleged offence (other than an offence referred to in subclause (2)) constituted of—
  - (a) driving, towing, stopping or parking a vehicle other than a motor vehicle; or
  - (b) travelling in or on a wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy.
- (2) Subclause (1) does not apply in the case of—
  - (a) an offence constituted of failing to comply with the lawful directions of a person; or
  - (b) an offence against section 164A(1) of the Act comprising a contravention of or failure to comply with section 99B(1), 162C(1), 162C(2) or 162C(2a) of the Act; or
  - (c) an offence against rule 240(1), 240(2), 241(1), 244(2), 244B, 244C, 254(2), 256(1), 256(2) or 256(3) of the *Australian Road Rules*.

# 6—Prescribed roads—offences against section 45A of Act involving road trains

- (1) For the purposes of determining the explation fee for an offence against section 45A of the Act, a road train is driven on a prescribed road if it is driven on a length of road with a prescribed speed limit (road trains) of 90 kilometres per hour or more.
- (2) In this clause—

*prescribed speed limit (road trains)* means a prescribed speed limit (road trains) imposed under regulation 8(4) of the *Road Traffic (Road Rules— Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2014.* 

Note—

Different penalties apply in respect of road trains being driven on prescribed roads see the item relating to offences against section 45A in Part 2 of this Schedule.

# Part 2—Offences against the Road Traffic Act 1961

Section	Description of offence against Road Traffic Act 1961	Fee
40H(5)	Engaging in conduct in contravention of direction of authorised officer or police officer to stop vehicle, or not move it, or not interfere with vehicle or its equipment or load—	
	(a) if direction relates to heavy vehicle	\$642
	(b) if direction relates to light vehicle	\$264
40I(2)	Engaging in conduct in contravention of direction of authorised officer or police officer to move vehicle to specified location—	
	(a) if direction relates to heavy vehicle	\$642
	(b) if direction relates to light vehicle	\$264
40J(3)	Engaging in conduct in contravention of direction of authorised officer or police officer to move light vehicle or do anything else reasonably required by officer to avoid causing harm or obstruction	\$264
40K(5)	Engaging in conduct in contravention of direction of authorised officer or police officer to vacate or not occupy driver's seat, or to leave or not enter vehicle—	
	(a) if direction relates to heavy vehicle	\$642
	(b) if direction relates to light vehicle	\$264
40V(4)	Person subject to direction contravening or failing to comply with section—	
	contravention specified in section 40V(4)(b)(i)	\$710
40W(4)	Engaging in conduct in contravention of direction of authorised officer or police officer to produce records, devices or other things	\$710
40X(3)	<i>Person subject to direction contravening or failing to comply with section—</i>	
	contravention specified in section 40X(3)(b)(i)	\$642
40Y(5)	Engaging in conduct in contravention of direction of authorised officer or police officer to provide assistance to officer to enable effective exercise of officer's powers	\$642
45A	Driving at speed exceeding applicable speed limit by 45 kph or more—	
	(a) if vehicle being driven is a road train being driven on a prescribed road	\$1 101
	Note—	
	See clause 6 of this Schedule.	
	(b) in any other case	\$992
47B(1)	Driving whilst having prescribed concentration of alcohol in blood—	
	contravention involving less than 0.08 grams of alcohol in 100 millilitres of blood	\$587
47BA(1)	Driving with prescribed drug in oral fluid or blood	\$587

Section	Descriptio	on of offence against Road Traffic Act 1961	Fee
86A(3)		obtain ticket from parking ticket-vending machine fee payable	\$50
91(3)		bject to direction or request of ferry operator failing with section—	
		failure to comply other than by giving false	\$320
110C(2)		offering for sale for use on roads motor vehicle or bearing vehicle identification plate for that vehicle –	
	C	offence not committed in course of trade or business	\$260
110C(3)	-	otor vehicle or trailer not bearing vehicle ion plate for that vehicle or trailer	\$260
117(1)		cle in breach of light vehicle standards or ace requirement driven on road—being driver of	\$399
118(1)		cle in breach of light vehicle standards or ce requirement driven on road—being operator of	\$399
123		cle not complying with light vehicle mass, dimension straint requirement driven on road—being driver of	
	(a) e	exceeding a mass limit by less than 50%	\$214
	(b) e	exceeding a mass limit by 50% or more	\$428
		contravening a dimension or load restraint requirement	\$214
124(1)		cle not complying with light vehicle mass, dimension straint requirement driven on road—being operator —	
	(a) e	exceeding a mass limit by less than 50%	\$214
	(b) e	exceeding a mass limit by 50% or more	\$428
		contravening a dimension or load restraint requirement	\$214
146(3)	authorised rectify spec load restra	in conduct in contravention of direction of l officer to driver or operator of light vehicle to cified breaches of light vehicle mass, dimension or aint requirement, or move vehicle to specified nd not proceed from there until breaches are rectified	\$264
146(8)	authorisat	in conduct in contravention of condition of ion granted by authorised officer to driver of light thorising vehicle to continue journey	\$264
164A(1)	Contraven	ing or failing to comply with provision of Act	
	Contraven	tion of or failure to comply with—	
	s 33(9)	Failing to comply with direction of police officer	\$264
	s 53B(1)	Selling radar detector or jammer or storing or offering radar detector or jammer for sale	\$410

Section	Descriptio	n of offence against Road Traffic Act 1961	Fee
	s 82(1)	Speeding while passing school bus	
		Exceeding the speed limit while passing a school bus—	
		by less than 10 kph	\$166
		by 10 kph or more but less than 20 kph	\$363
		by 20 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$738
		by 30 kph or more	\$881
	s 83(1)(a)	Speeding in emergency service speed zone	
		Exceeding 25 kph in emergency service speed zone—	
		by less than 10 kph	\$166
		by 10 kph or more but less than 20 kph	\$363
		by 20 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$738
		by 30 kph or more	\$881
	s 83A(1)	Standing etc or placing goods or sign on carriageway, dividing strip or traffic island for purpose of soliciting business etc	\$100
	s 83A(2)	Buying or offering to buy goods from person standing etc on carriageway etc in contravention of section 83A(1)	\$100
	s 85(2)	Leaving stationary vehicle in prohibited area near Parliament House etc without authority	\$118
	s 87	Walking without due care or attention etc	\$47
	s 95	Riding on vehicle without consent of driver	\$100
	s 99A	Bicycle rider riding on footpath or other road-related area failing to give warning to pedestrians etc	\$55
	s 99B(1)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on road without due care or attention etc	
		where riding a wheeled recreational device on a road that is—	\$363
		<ul> <li>a one-way road with 2 or more marked lanes (other than bicycle lanes); or</li> </ul>	
		• a two-way road with 2 or more marked lanes (other than bicycle lanes), on either side of the road, for vehicles travelling in the same direction; or	
		• a road on which the speed limit is greater than 60 kph	
		in any other case	\$55
	s 99B(2)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on footpath or other road-related area abreast of another vehicle etc	\$55

Section	Description	n of offence against Road Traffic Act 1961	Fee
	s 99B(3)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on footpath or other road-related area without giving warning to pedestrians etc	\$55
	s 107(1)	Driving, drawing, hauling, dragging over road any implement, sledge etc	\$233
	s 107(2)	Removing or interfering with road infrastructure, or damaging road infrastructure other than by reasonable use	\$233
	s 108(1)	Depositing certain articles or materials on road	\$223
	s 110	Failing to keep whole of vehicle on sealed surface when driving on sealed road	\$100
	s 145(3)	Failing to comply with direction of police officer or authorised officer to stop light vehicle or produce light vehicle for examination	\$264
	s 145(5f)	Defacing, altering, obscuring or removing defective vehicle label affixed to light vehicle	\$399
	s 145(6)	Driving, selling etc light vehicle contrary to terms of defect notice	\$570
	s 161A(1)	Driving light vehicle to which section 161A applies without Ministerial approval	\$288
	s 162C(1)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy without wearing safety helmet complying with regulations and properly adjusted and securely fastened	\$100
	s 162C(2)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on which is carried child under 16 years not wearing safety helmet complying with regulations and properly adjusted and securely fastened	\$100
	s 162C(2a)	Parent or other person having custody or care of child under 16 years causing or permitting child to ride or be carried on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy without wearing safety helmet complying with regulations and properly adjusted and securely fastened	\$96
167(1)		permitting another person to commit an offence or regulations—	
	ca	ausing or permitting commission of expiable offence	the expiation fee prescribed for the expiable offence
174B	Further offe	ence for continued parking contravention	\$48

# Part 3—Offences against the Australian Road Rules

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
20	Speeding	
	Exceeding applicable speed limit on length of road—	
	by less than 10 kph	\$166
	by 10 kph or more but less than 20 kph	\$363
	by 20 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$738
	by 30 kph or more	\$881
27(1)	Failing to keep left when starting left turn (from other than multi-lane road)	\$309
28(1)	Failing to keep within left lane when starting left turn on multi-lane road	\$309
28(1A)	Failing to use slip lane when starting left turn on multi-lane road	\$309
28(2A)	Bicycle rider starting left turn on multi-lane road from incorrect position in bicycle storage area	\$55
29(1)	Failing to make left turn as indicated by turn line	\$309
31(1)	Starting right turn incorrectly (from other than multi-lane road)	\$309
32(1)	Failing to keep within right lane when starting right turn (on multi-lane road)	\$309
32(2A)	Bicycle rider starting right turn on multi-lane road from incorrect position in bicycle storage area	\$55
33(1)	Making right turn at intersection incorrectly	\$309
34(1)	Making hook turn at "hook turn only" sign incorrectly	\$278
35(2)	Bicycle rider making hook turn at intersection with no "hook turn only" sign etc incorrectly	\$55
36	Bicycle rider making hook turn contrary to "no hook turn by bicycles" sign	\$55
37	Starting U-turn without clear view etc	\$370
38	Failing to give way when making U-turn	\$370
39(1)	Making U-turn contrary to "no U-turn" sign at break in dividing strip	\$348
39(2)	Making U-turn contrary to "no U-turn" sign on length of road	\$348
40	Making U-turn at intersection with traffic lights and no "U-turn permitted" sign	\$348
41	Making U-turn at intersection without traffic lights where "no U-turn" sign	\$348
42	Starting U-turn at intersection from incorrect position	\$370
46(1)	Failing to give left change of direction signal before turning left	\$303
46(4)	Failing to stop giving left change of direction signal after turning left	\$203
48(1)	Failing to give right change of direction signal before turning right	\$303
48(4)	Failing to stop giving right change of direction signal after turning right	\$203
51	Using direction indicator lights when not permitted	\$203

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
53(1)	Failing to give stop signal before stopping or suddenly slowing	\$303
53(2)	Failing to give sufficient warning of stopping	\$303
53(3)	Failing to give stop signal while slowing	\$303
56(1)	Failing to stop for red traffic light	\$444
56(2)	Failing to stop for red traffic arrow	\$444
57(1)	Failing to stop for yellow traffic light	\$444
57(2)	Failing to stop for yellow traffic arrow	\$444
57(3)	Failing to leave intersection showing yellow traffic light or arrow	\$444
59(1)	Proceeding through red traffic light	\$444
60	Proceeding through red traffic arrow	\$444
60A(1)	Proceeding through bicycle storage area before red traffic light	\$348
60A(2)	Proceeding through bicycle storage area before red traffic arrow	\$348
61(2)	Failing to stop at intersection when traffic lights or arrows change to yellow or red	\$444
61(5)	Failing to leave intersection when traffic lights or arrows change to yellow or red	\$444
62(1)	Failing to give way when turning at intersection with traffic lights	\$410
63(2)	Failing to give way at intersection with traffic lights not operating or only partly operating—where traffic light-stop sign	\$410
63(3)	Failing to give way at intersection with traffic lights not operating or only partly operating—where no traffic light-stop sign	\$410
64	Failing to give way at flashing yellow traffic arrow at intersection	\$410
65(2)	Failing to give way at marked foot crossing (except at intersection) with flashing yellow traffic light	\$390
66(1)	Failing to stop for twin red lights (except at level crossing)	\$100
66(4)	Proceeding after stopping for twin red lights (except at level crossing)	\$100
67(1)	Failing to stop and give way at "stop" sign or stop line at intersection without traffic lights	\$410
68(1)	Failing to stop and give way at "stop" sign or stop line at other place	\$348
69(1)	Failing to give way at "give way" sign or give way line at intersection (except roundabout)	\$410
70	Failing to give way at "give way" sign at bridge or length of narrow road	\$410
71(1)	Failing to give way at "give way" sign or give way line at other place	\$348
72(1)	Failing to give way at intersection (except T-intersection or roundabout)	\$410
73(1)	Failing to give way at T-intersection	\$410
74(1)	Failing to give way when entering road from road-related area or adjacent land	\$370
75(1)	Failing to give way when entering road-related area or adjacent land from road	\$370
76(1)	Moving into path of tram travelling in tram lane etc	\$203

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
76(2)	Failing to move out of path of tram travelling in tram lane etc	\$203
77(1)	Failing to give way to bus	\$203
78(1)	Moving into path of police or emergency vehicle	\$410
78(2)	Failing to move out of path of police or emergency vehicle	\$410
79(1)	Failing to give way to police or emergency vehicle	\$410
80(2)	Failing to stop at children's crossing	\$410
80(3)	Failing to obey hand-held "stop" sign at children's crossing	\$348
80(4)	Proceeding while pedestrian on children's crossing	\$410
81(2)	Failing to give way at pedestrian crossing	\$390
82	Overtaking or passing vehicle at children's crossing or pedestrian crossing	\$390
83	Failing to give way to pedestrian in shared zone	\$324
84(1)	Failing to give way when driving through break in dividing strip	\$370
85	Failing to give way on painted island	\$348
86(1)	Failing to give way in median turning bays	\$370
87(1)	Failing to give way when moving from side of road	\$334
87(3)	Failing to give way when moving from median strip parking area	\$334
88(1)	Failing to turn left at intersection with "left turn only" sign	\$348
88(2)	Failing to turn left when in left lane at intersection with "left lane must turn left" sign	\$348
89(1)	Failing to turn right at intersection with "right turn only" sign	\$348
89(2)	Failing to turn right when in right lane at intersection with "right lane must turn right" sign	\$348
90	Turning at intersection with "no turns" sign	\$348
91(1)	Turning left at intersection or other place with "no left turn" sign	\$348
91(2)	Turning at intersection or other place with "no right turn" sign	\$348
92(1)	Failing to drive in direction indicated by traffic lane arrows	\$348
93(1)	Driving or overtaking on bridge or length of road where "no overtaking or passing" sign applies	\$348
94	Overtaking on bridge with "no overtaking on bridge" sign	\$348
95(1)	Driving in emergency stopping lane	\$348
96(1)	Stopping on area of road marked with "keep clear" marking	\$348
97(1)	Driving on length of road where "road access" sign applies	\$348
98(1)	Driving in wrong direction on length of road where "one-way" sign applies	\$410
99(1)	Failing to drive to left of "keep left" sign	\$348
99(2)	Failing to drive to right of "keep right" sign	\$348
100	Driving past "no entry" sign	\$348
101(1)	Failing to stop before hand-held "stop" sign	\$348
101(2)	Proceeding after stopping for hand-held "stop" sign	\$348

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
101A(1)	Driving on safety ramp or arrester bed	\$348
102(1)	Driving past "clearance" or "low clearance" sign	\$348
103(1)	Driving past "bridge load limit (gross mass)" or "gross load limit" sign—vehicle exceeding gross mass indicated by sign	\$348
103(2)	Driving past "bridge load limit (mass per axle group)" sign—vehicle axle group carrying mass exceeding mass indicated by sign	\$348
104(1)	Driving past "no trucks" sign—vehicle GVM exceeding permitted mass	\$348
104(2)	Driving truck past "no trucks" sign—vehicle or combination exceeding permitted length	\$348
104(3)	Driving truck past "no trucks" sign where no mass or length indicated	\$348
105	Failing to enter area indicated by "trucks must enter" sign	\$348
106(1)	Driving bus past "no buses" sign—bus exceeding mass indicated by sign	\$348
106(2)	Driving bus past "no buses" sign—bus exceeding length indicated by sign	\$348
106(3)	Driving bus past "no buses" sign where no mass or length indicated	\$348
107	Failing to enter area indicated by "buses must enter" sign	\$348
108(1)	Failing to drive truck or bus in low gear on length of road where "trucks and buses low gear" sign applies	\$348
111(1)	Failing to enter roundabout from multi-lane road or road with 2 or more lines of traffic travelling in same direction correctly	\$348
112(2)	Failing to give required left change of direction signal before entering roundabout	\$303
112(3)	Failing to continue left change of direction signal while in roundabout	\$303
113(2)	Failing to give required right change of direction signal before entering roundabout	\$303
113(3)	Failing to continue right change of direction signal while in roundabout	\$303
114(1)	Failing to give way when entering roundabout	\$410
114(2)	Failing to give way to tram when driving in roundabout	\$410
115(1)	Failing to drive in roundabout to left of central traffic island	\$410
116	Failing to obey traffic lane arrows when driving in or leaving roundabout	\$348
117(1)	Failing to give left change of direction signal when changing marked lanes or lines of traffic in roundabout	\$303
117(2)	Failing to give right change of direction signal when changing marked lanes or lines of traffic in roundabout	\$303
118(1)	Failing to give left change of direction signal when leaving roundabout	\$303
118(2)	Failing to stop left change of direction signal after leaving roundabout	\$303

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
119	Failing to give way by rider of bicycle or animal to vehicle leaving roundabout	\$55
121	Failing to stop and give way at "stop" sign at level crossing	\$444
122	Failing to give way at "give way" sign or give way line at level crossing	\$444
123	Entering level crossing when train or tram is approaching etc	\$444
124	Failing to leave level crossing as soon as safe to do so	\$444
125(1)	Unreasonably obstructing path of other driver or pedestrian	\$112
126	Failing to keep safe distance behind other vehicles	\$320
127(1)	Failing to keep required minimum distance behind long vehicle	\$233
128	Entering blocked intersection	\$237
128A(1)	Entering blocked crossing	\$237
129(1)	Failing to keep to far left side of road	\$292
130(2)	Driving in right lane on certain multi-lane roads	\$247
131(1)	Failing to keep to left of oncoming vehicles	\$324
132(1)	Failing to keep to left of centre of road	\$370
132(2)	Failing to keep to left of dividing line	\$370
132(2A)	Making U-turn across certain dividing lines	\$370
135(1)	Failing to keep to left of median strip	\$308
136	Driving in wrong direction on one-way service road	\$308
137(1)	Failing to keep off dividing strip	\$233
138(1)	Failing to keep off painted island	\$247
140	Overtaking when not safe to do so	\$292
141(1)	Driver overtaking to left of other vehicle	\$320
141(2)	Bicycle rider overtaking to left of vehicle turning left	\$55
142(1)	Overtaking to right of vehicle turning right	\$334
143(1)	Passing or overtaking to left of turning left vehicle displaying "do not overtake turning vehicle" sign	\$200
143(1A)	Passing or overtaking to left of vehicle displaying "do not overtake turning vehicle" sign	\$200
143(2)	Passing or overtaking to right of turning right vehicle displaying "do not overtake turning vehicle" sign	\$200
144	Failing to keep safe distance when overtaking	\$292
145	Increasing speed while being overtaken	\$290
146(1)	Failing to drive within single marked lane	\$247
146(2)	Failing to drive within single line of traffic	\$247
147	Moving from one marked lane to another marked lane across continuous line	\$247
148(1)	Failing to give way when moving from one marked lane to another marked lane	\$318

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
148(2)	Failing to give way when moving from one line of traffic to another line of traffic	\$318
148A	Failing to give way when diverging left or right within marked lane	\$318
149	Failing to give way when lines of traffic merge into single line of traffic	\$318
150(1)	Driving on or across continuous white edge line	\$100
151(1)	Riding motor bike or bicycle alongside more than 1 other rider on non multi-lane road	\$100
151(2)	<i>Riding motor bike or bicycle alongside more than 1 other rider in marked lane</i>	\$100
151(4)	<i>Riding motor bike or bicycle more than 1.5 metres from another rider</i>	\$100
152(1)	Driving in marked lane to which overhead lane control device applies—failing to comply with rule	\$348
153(1)	Driving in bicycle lane	\$255
154(1)	Driving in bus lane	\$255
155(1)	Driving in tram lane	\$255
155A(1)	Driving in tramway	\$255
156(1)	Driving in transit lane	\$255
157(1)	Driving in truck lane	\$255
159(1)	Driving in marked lane required to be used by particular kinds of vehicles	\$255
160(2)	Passing or overtaking to right of tram not at or near far left side of road	\$320
160(3)	Passing or overtaking left turning etc tram not at or near far left side of road	\$320
161(2)	Passing or overtaking to left of tram at or near the left side of road	\$320
161(3)	Passing or overtaking tram turning right or giving right change of direction signal	\$320
162(1)	Driving past safety zone	\$410
163(1)	Driving past rear of stopped tram at tram stop	\$410
164(1)	Failing to stop when tram stops at tram stop	\$410
164A(1)	Failing to stay stopped if tram stops alongside at tram stop	\$410
167	Stopping where "no stopping" sign applies	\$91
168(1)	Stopping where "no parking" sign applies	\$75
169	Stopping on road with continuous yellow edge line	\$93
170(1)	Stopping in intersection	\$91
170(2)	Stopping within 20 metres of intersection with traffic lights	\$91
170(3)	Stopping within 10 metres of intersection without traffic lights	\$93
171(1)	Stopping on or near children's crossing	\$91
172(1)	Stopping on or near pedestrian crossing (except at intersection)	\$91
173(1)	Stopping on or near marked foot crossing (except at intersection)	\$91

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
174(2)	Stopping at or near bicycle crossing lights (except at intersection)	\$91
175(1)	Stopping on or near level crossing	\$91
176(1)	Stopping on clearway	\$255
177(1)	Stopping on freeway	\$255
178	Stopping in emergency stopping lane	\$255
179(1)	Stopping in loading zone	\$67
179(2)	Stopping in loading zone—exceeding time in loading zone	\$67
180(1)	Stopping in truck zone	\$64
181(1)	Stopping in works zone	\$64
182(1)	Stopping in taxi zone	\$124
183(1)	Stopping in bus zone	\$124
184(1)	Stopping in minibus zone	\$91
185(1)	Stopping in permit zone	\$64
186(1)	Stopping in mail zone	\$64
187(1)	Stopping in bus lane, transit lane or truck lane	\$255
187(2)	Stopping in bicycle lane	\$257
187(3)	Stopping in tram lane or tramway or on tram tracks	\$255
188	Stopping in shared zone	\$64
189(1)	Double parking	\$91
190(1)	Stopping in or near safety zone	\$64
191	Stopping near obstruction	\$112
192(1)	Stopping on bridge, causeway, ramp or similar structure	\$91
192(2)	Stopping in tunnel or underpass	\$112
193(1)	Stopping on crest or curve outside built-up area	\$112
194(1)	Stopping near fire hydrant etc	\$75
195(1)	Stopping at or near bus stop	\$91
196(1)	Stopping at or near tram stop	\$91
197(1)	Stopping on path, dividing strip or nature strip	\$93
197(1A)	Stopping on painted island	\$91
197(1B)	Stopping on traffic island	\$91
198(1)	Obstructing access to and from footpath ramp etc	\$73
198(2)	Obstructing access to and from driveway etc	\$75
199(1)	Stopping near postbox	\$91
200(1)	Stopping heavy or long vehicle on road outside built-up area except on shoulder of road	\$112
200(2)	Stopping heavy or long vehicle on road in built-up area for longer than permitted time	\$112
201	Stopping on road with "bicycle parking" sign	\$64
202	Stopping on road with "motor bike parking" sign	\$64

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
203(1)	Stopping in parking area for people with disabilities	\$355
203A	Stopping in slip lane	\$91
205(1)	Parking for longer than indicated where "permissive parking" sign applies	\$50
207(2)	Failing to pay fee etc for parking where fees payable	\$50
208(1)	Failing to park on road (except in median strip parking area) in accordance with rule—parallel parking	\$67
208A(1)	Failing to park in road-related area (except in median strip parking area) in accordance with rule—parallel parking	\$64
209(2)	Failing to park in median strip parking area in accordance with rule—parallel parking	\$64
210(1)	Failing to park in accordance with rule—angle parking	\$64
211(2)	Parking where there are parking bays—failing to park vehicle wholly within parking bay	\$48
211(3)	Parking where there are parking bays—failing to park long or wide vehicle in minimum number of parking bays needed to park vehicle	\$48
212(1)	Entering or leaving median strip parking area—contrary to sign	\$112
212(2)	Entering or leaving median strip parking area—failing to drive forward	\$112
215(1)	Failing to use lights when driving at night or in hazardous weather conditions	\$233
216(1)	Failing to use lights when towing vehicle at night or in hazardous weather conditions	\$133
217(1)	Using fog lights when not driving in fog or other hazardous weather conditions	\$233
218(1)	Using headlights on high-beam	\$233
219	Using lights to dazzle other road users	\$233
220(1)	Stopping vehicle on road at night—failing to operate lights	\$233
221(1)	Using hazard warning lights	\$123
223	<i>Riding animal-drawn vehicle at night or in hazardous weather conditions—failing to operate lights</i>	\$55
224	Using horn or similar warning device	\$176
225(1)	Driving vehicle with radar detector or similar device in or on vehicle or trailer	\$410
225(2)	Having possession of radar detector or similar device while travelling in or on vehicle or trailer	\$410
226(1)	Driving heavy vehicle not equipped with portable warning triangles	\$100
226(2)	Failing to produce warning triangles on demand	\$100
227(2)	Failing to use portable warning triangles in accordance with rule— vehicle stopped or fallen load where speed limit is 80 kph or more	\$100
227(3)	Failing to use portable warning triangles in accordance with rule— vehicle stopped or fallen load where speed limit is less than 80 kph	\$100
228	Pedestrian passing "no pedestrians" sign	\$47
229	Pedestrian on road to which "road access" sign applies	\$47

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
230(1)	Failing to cross road in accordance with rule	\$47
231(1)	Failing to cross road with pedestrian lights in accordance with rule	\$47
232(1)	Failing to cross road at traffic lights without pedestrian lights in accordance with rule	\$47
233(1)	Crossing road to get on tram—crossing before tram stops at tram stop	\$47
233(2)	Crossing road from tram—failing to comply with rule	\$47
234(1)	Crossing road near crossing for pedestrians	\$47
234(2)	Pedestrian staying on crossing longer than necessary to cross road	\$47
235(1)	Crossing level crossing	\$47
235(2)	Crossing level crossing while warning lights flashing etc	\$47
235(2A)	Failing to finish crossing level crossing in accordance with rule if warning lights start flashing etc	\$47
235A(2)	Crossing pedestrian level crossing while there is a red pedestrian light	\$47
235A(3)	Failing to finish crossing pedestrian level crossing in accordance with rule if red pedestrian light appears	\$47
236(1)	Pedestrian causing traffic hazard	\$47
236(2)	Pedestrian causing obstruction	\$47
237(1)	Getting on or into moving vehicle	\$175
238(1)	Pedestrian travelling along road—failing to use footpath	\$47
238(2)	Pedestrian travelling along road—failing to keep to side or face approaching traffic or walking abreast	\$47
239(1)	Pedestrian on bicycle path or separated footpath	\$47
239(3)	Pedestrian on bicycle path or separated footpath—failing to keep out of path of bicycle etc	\$47
239A	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy past "no wheeled recreational devices or toys" sign	\$55
240(1)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on certain types of roads	
	where travel in or on a wheeled recreational device in contravention of subrule (1) on a road that is—	\$363
	• a one-way road with 2 or more marked lanes (other than bicycle lanes); or	
	• a two-way road with 2 or more marked lanes (other than bicycle lanes), on either side of the road, for vehicles travelling in the same direction; or	
	• a road on which the speed limit is greater than 60 kph	
	in any other case	\$55

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
240(2)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device on declared roads or at night or during certain times	
	where travel in or on a wheeled recreational device in contravention of subrule (2) on a road that is—	\$363
	• a one-way road with 2 or more marked lanes (other than bicycle lanes); or	
	• a two-way road with 2 or more marked lanes (other than bicycle lanes), on either side of the road, for vehicles travelling in the same direction; or	
	• a road on which the speed limit is greater than 60 kph	
	in any other case	\$55
240(3)	Travelling in or on wheeled toy on declared roads or during certain times	\$55
241(1)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on road—failing to keep to left or travelling abreast	
	where travel in or on a wheeled recreational device in contravention of subrule (1) on a road that is—	\$363
	• a one-way road with 2 or more marked lanes (other than bicycle lanes); or	
	• a two-way road with 2 or more marked lanes (other than bicycle lanes), on either side of the road, for vehicles travelling in the same direction; or	
	• a road on which the speed limit is greater than 60 kph	
	in any other case	\$55
242(1)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on footpath or shared path—failing to keep left or give way	\$55
243(1)	Travelling on rollerblades etc on separated footpath designated for pedestrians	\$55
243(2)	<i>Travelling on rollerblades etc on bicycle path etc—failing to keep out of path of bicycle</i>	\$55
244(1)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy that is being towed by vehicle	\$55
244(2)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy while holding onto moving vehicle	\$100
244(3)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy too close to rear of moving motor vehicle	\$55
244B	Travelling on motorised scooter—failing to wear bicycle helmet	\$100
244C	Travelling on motorised scooter on road or road-related area	\$100
245	Riding bicycle not in accordance with rule	\$55
246(1)	Carrying on bicycle more persons than bicycle designed to carry	\$55
246(2)	Passenger on bicycle—passenger failing to sit in passenger seat	\$55
246(3)	Riding bicycle with passenger not sitting in passenger seat	\$55
247(1)	Failing to ride in bicycle lane on road	\$55
247A(1)	Bicycle rider failing to enter bicycle storage area correctly at intersection with red traffic light or arrow	\$55

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
247B(1)	Bicycle rider failing to give way when entering bicycle storage area	\$55
247B(2)	Bicycle rider in bicycle storage area on multi-lane road failing to give way to motor vehicles in certain lanes when traffic lights are green or yellow	\$55
248(1)	Riding bicycle across road on children's crossing or pedestrian crossing	\$55
248(2)	Riding bicycle across road on marked foot crossing	\$55
249	Riding bicycle on separated footpath designated for pedestrians	\$55
250(2)	<i>Riding bicycle on footpath or shared path—failing to keep to left or give way</i>	\$55
251	Riding bicycle on bicycle path etc—failing to keep to left of oncoming bicycle riders on path	\$55
252(1)	Riding bicycle where "no bicycles" sign or no bicycles road marking applies	\$55
253	Bicycle rider causing traffic hazard	\$55
254(1)	Bicycle being towed—riding towed bicycle	\$55
254(2)	Bicycle rider holding onto moving vehicle	\$100
255	Riding bicycle too close to rear of motor vehicle	\$55
256(1)	Riding bicycle—rider failing to wear bicycle helmet	\$100
256(2)	Passenger on bicycle—passenger failing to wear bicycle helmet	\$100
256(3)	Riding bicycle with passenger not wearing bicycle helmet	\$100
257(1)	Riding with person on bicycle trailer	\$55
258	Riding bicycle not equipped with brake or warning device	\$55
259	<i>Riding bicycle at night or in hazardous weather conditions without displaying lights etc</i>	\$55
260(1)	Bicycle rider crossing contrary to red bicycle crossing light	\$55
261(1)	Bicycle rider crossing contrary to yellow bicycle crossing light	\$55
262(1)	Bicycle rider proceeding when bicycle crossing lights change— failing to cross in accordance with rule	\$55
264(1)	Failing to wear approved seatbelt—driver	\$347
265(1)	Failing to wear approved seatbelt, and be seated, in accordance with rule—passenger 16 years old, or older	\$347
265(3)	Failing to ensure passengers 16 years old or older are wearing approved seatbelts, and are seated, in accordance with rule—	
	failure in relation to 1 such passenger	\$347
	failure in relation to more than 1 such passenger	\$410
266(1)	Failing to ensure passengers under 16 years old are restrained and seated in accordance with rule—	
	failure in relation to 1 such passenger	\$347
	failure in relation to more than 1 such passenger	\$410
268(1)	Travelling in or on part of motor vehicle not designed primarily for carriage of passengers or goods	\$347

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
268(2)	Travelling in or on part of motor vehicle designed primarily for carriage of goods unless enclosed and seatbelts fitted	\$347
268(3)	Travelling in or on motor vehicle with part of body outside window or door	\$176
268(4)	Driving motor vehicle with part of passenger's body outside window or door	\$176
268(4A)	Driving motor vehicle with passenger in or on part of vehicle not designed primarily for carriage of passengers or goods	\$347
268(4B)	Driving motor vehicle with passenger in or on part of vehicle designed primarily for carriage of goods unless enclosed and seatbelts fitted	\$347
269(1)	Getting off or out of moving vehicle	\$175
269(3)	Creating hazard by opening door of vehicle, leaving door open etc	\$175
269(4)	Driving bus while doors not closed	\$320
270(1)	<i>Riding motor bike without wearing helmet or with passenger not wearing helmet</i>	\$268
270(2)	Passenger on motor bike failing to wear helmet	\$268
271(1)	Riding on motor bike—rider failing to ride in correct position	\$127
271(2)	Riding on motor bike—passenger failing to ride in correct position	\$127
271(3)	<i>Riding on motor bike—rider riding with passenger not riding correctly</i>	\$127
271(4)	Riding on motor bike—riding with more than 1 passenger (excluding passenger in sidecar or on seat other than pillion seat)	\$127
271(5)	<i>Riding on motor bike—riding with more than permitted number of passengers in sidecar or on seat</i>	\$127
271(5A)	Riding on motor bike—riding with passenger under 8 years old not in sidecar	\$127
271(5B)	<i>Riding on motor bike—passenger in sidecar failing to be seated safely</i>	\$127
271(5C)	Riding on motor bike—riding with passenger in sidecar not seated safely	\$127
272	Passenger interfering with driver's control of vehicle etc	\$320
274	Failing to stop for red T light—tram driver	\$444
275	Failing to stop for yellow T light—tram driver	\$444
277	Proceeding after stopping for a red or yellow T light—tram driver	\$444
279(2)	Proceeding when white T light or white traffic arrow no longer showing—tram driver proceeding before entering intersection	\$444
279(3)	Proceeding when white T light or white traffic arrow no longer showing—tram driver failing to leave intersection	\$444
281	Failing to stop for red B light—bus driver	\$444
282	Failing to stop for yellow B light—bus driver	\$444
284	Proceeding after stopping for red or yellow B light—bus driver	\$444
286(2)	Proceeding when white B light or white traffic arrow no longer showing—bus driver proceeding before entering intersection	\$444

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
286(3)	Proceeding when white B light or white traffic arrow no longer showing—bus driver failing to leave intersection	\$444
288(1)	Driving on path	\$237
288(4)	Driving on path—failing to give way	\$233
289(1)	Driving on nature strip	\$233
289(2)	Driving on nature strip—failing to give way	\$233
290	Driving on traffic island	\$233
291	Making unnecessary noise or smoke while starting or driving	\$199
292	Driving or towing vehicle carrying insecure or overhanging load	\$341
293(2)	Failing to remove from road things fallen from vehicle while driving	\$223
294(1)	Towing vehicle without keeping control of vehicle being towed	\$133
294(2)	Towing trailer without keeping control of trailer	\$133
295(1)	Motor vehicle towing another vehicle with towline not in accordance with rule	\$133
296(1)	Reversing vehicle when not safe to do so	\$410
296(2)	Reversing vehicle further than reasonably necessary	\$247
297(1)	Driving vehicle without having proper control of vehicle	\$176
297(1A)	Driving vehicle with person or animal in lap	\$176
297(2)	Driving motor vehicle without clear view of road etc	\$176
297(3)	Riding motor bike with animal between rider and handlebars or in other position that interferes with control of motor bike etc	\$176
298	Driving motor vehicle towing trailer with person in trailer	\$231
299(1)	Driving motor vehicle with TV or VDU in operation in vehicle	\$100
300(1)	Using mobile phone while driving vehicle	\$320
301(1)	Driver of motor vehicle leading animal	\$100
301(2)	Passenger in or on motor vehicle leading animal	\$100
301(3)	Rider of bicycle leading animal	\$55
302	Rider of animal on footpath or nature strip failing to give way to pedestrian	\$55
303(1)	Riding animal alongside more than 1 other rider on non multi-lane road	\$55
303(2)	Riding animal alongside another rider in marked lane	\$55
303(4)	Riding animal alongside another rider more than 1.5 metres from other rider	\$55
304(1)	Failing to obey direction of police officer or authorised person	\$280

# Part 4—Offences against the Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2014

Regulati	ion Description of offence against <i>Road Traffic (Miscellaneous)</i> Regulations 2014	Fee
39	Evasive action in relation to average speed camera	\$881
40(1)	Heavy vehicles and minimum allowable travel time	\$541
42	Evasive action in relation to Safe-T-Cam photographic detection device	\$541
49(8)	Selling, or offering for sale, for use in motor vehicle seat belt or part of seat belt not complying with requirements of regulation or removed from vehicle in which previously used	\$366
50(5)	Selling, or offering for sale, for use in motor vehicle child restraint, harness etc, or part, not approved	\$366
51(2)	Selling, or offering for sale, for use by motor bike rider or passenger helmet not complying with standard	\$366
51(4)	Selling, or offering for sale, for use by bicycle rider helmet not meeting requirement	\$366
52(2)	Selling, or offering for sale, for use by rider of wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy helmet not meeting requirement	\$366
53(2)	Driving or towing on road light vehicle not complying with requirements of regulation—vehicle altered from original specifications	\$96
56(1)	Bicycle rider towing vehicle other than bicycle trailer complying with regulation or towing more than 1 vehicle	\$55
64(2)	Driving or towing vehicle on certain roads while transporting dangerous substance	\$288
65(2)	Light vehicle towing prohibited number of vehicles	\$288
66(1)	Parking in certain public places	
	parking in City of Adelaide Park Lands	\$134
	parking in other public place	\$64
67(3)	Contravening notice prohibiting fishing or other specified activities from specified bridge or causeway	\$100
68(1)	Failing to ensure dog does not enter or remain on certain bicycle paths	\$210

# Part 5—Offences against the Road Traffic (Road Rules— Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2014

Regulatio	on Description of offence against <i>Road Traffic (Road Rules—</i> Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2014	Fee
8(1)	Speeding while driving road train	
	Exceeding a prescribed speed limit (road trains)—	
	by less than 10 kph	\$440
	by 10 kph or more but less than 20 kph	\$551
	by 20 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$848
	by 30 kph or more	\$992
8(2)	Speeding while driving road train	
	Exceeding 40 kph speed limit—	
	by less than 10 kph	\$166
	by 10 kph or more but less than 20 kph	\$363
	by 20 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$738
	by 30 kph or more	\$881
11A(1)	Driver of motor vehicle failing to pass rider of bicycle at a sufficient distance from the bicycle	\$292
13	Driving or stopping in lane marked "bus only"	\$249
27(1)	Crossing to or from tram stop other than at crossing for pedestrians if within 20 metres of crossing or if tram has stopped	\$47
44(1)	Learner or P1 driver using mobile phone while driving vehicle	\$320

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 161 of 2016

# **Motor Vehicles (Expiation Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Motor Vehicles Act 1959

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of *Motor Vehicles Regulations 2010*

4 Substitution of Schedule 5

Schedule 5—Expiation fees

1 Offences against Motor Vehicles Act 1959

2 Offences against these regulations

# Part 1—Preliminary

### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Motor Vehicles (Expiation Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Motor Vehicles Regulations 2010

### 4—Substitution of Schedule 5

Schedule 5—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 5—Expiation fees

### 1—Offences against Motor Vehicles Act 1959

Section	Description of offence against <i>Motor Vehicles</i> Act 1959	Fee
9(1)	Driving unregistered motor vehicle on road or causing unregistered motor vehicle to stand on road	\$358
9(3)	Being owner of unregistered motor vehicle driven or found standing on road	\$358

245	1
- 243	I

Section	<b>Description of offence against</b> <i>Motor Vehicles</i> <i>Act 1959</i>	Fee
16(9)	Driving motor vehicle without carrying permit under section 16 of Act	\$131
16(11)	Contravening condition of permit under section 16 of Act	\$110
43A(3)	Causing or permitting unregistered heavy vehicle to be driven on road	\$358
43A(7)	Failing to carry temporary configuration certificate in vehicle or to produce it for inspection by police officer or authorised officer	\$53
47(1)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle not bearing number plates	\$662
47(1a)	Being registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle driven, or caused to stand, in contravention of section 47(1) of Act	\$662
47A(7)	Driving motor vehicle to which is attached number plates in respect of which a declaration under section 47A(2) of Act has been made without relevant agreement under section 47A(4)	\$662
47B(2)	Selling or supplying number plates without approval of Minister	\$662
47C(3)	Failing to comply with direction of Registrar under section 47C(2) of Act to return number plates	\$300
47D(1)(a)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle to which is attached number plate bearing number other than number allotted to vehicle	\$662
47D(1)(b)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle to which is attached number plate altered, defaced, mutilated or added to	\$662
47D(1)(c)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle to which is attached colourable imitation of number plate	\$662
47D(1)(d)	Without lawful excuse, having in possession number plate or article resembling number plate	\$662
47D(2)	Being registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle driven, or caused to stand, in contravention of section $47D(1)(a)$ , (b) or (c) of Act	\$662
48(3)	Driving, or causing to stand, registered heavy vehicle not carrying registration label (or amended registration label) issued for vehicle or carrying registration label not in conformity with section 48 of Act or these regulations	\$131
48(3a)	Being registered owner or registered operator of heavy vehicle driven, or caused to stand, in contravention of section 48(3) of Act	\$131
53(1)(a)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle on which is affixed registration label, or in which is carried permit, no longer in force or issued in respect of another vehicle	\$127

Section	<b>Description of offence against</b> <i>Motor Vehicles</i> <i>Act 1959</i>	Fee
53(1)(b)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle on which is affixed registration label, or in which is carried permit, that has been altered, defaced, mutilated or added to	\$127
53(1)(c)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle on which is affixed colourable imitation of registration label or in which is carried colourable imitation of permit	\$127
53(1)(d)	Without lawful excuse, having in possession registration label, permit or article resembling registration label or permit	\$127
53(1a)	Being registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle driven, or caused to stand, in contravention of section $53(1)(a)$ , (b) or (c) of Act	\$127
56	Failing to comply with requirements of section on transfer of ownership of motor vehicle—	
	failing to lodge notice of transfer of ownership of motor vehicle within 14 days after transfer in accordance with section 56(b)(ii) where application for cancellation of registration has not been made in accordance with section 56(a)	\$250
66(2)	If motor vehicle to which trade plates are affixed is driven other than for a prescribed purpose stated in application for issue of the plates, being driver or person to whom plates were issued	\$127
71B(2)	Failure by person to whom replacement number plate, trade plate or prescribed document or duplicate registration label issued to return found or recovered original plate, document or label to Registrar	\$127
72A(2)	Acting as qualified supervising driver while having prescribed concentration of alcohol in blood or prescribed drug in oral fluid or blood	\$260
74(1)	Driving motor vehicle without currently holding appropriate licence or learner's permit	\$454
75A(14)	Contravening condition of learner's permit	\$341
75A(15)(a)	Holder of learner's permit driving motor bike on road while no L plate affixed to bike in accordance with regulations	\$341
75A(15)(b)	Holder of learner's permit driving motor vehicle (other than motor bike) on road while L plates not affixed to vehicle in accordance with regulations—	
	only 1 L plate affixed to vehicle in accordance with regulations	\$199
	no L plates affixed to vehicle in accordance with regulations	\$341
75A(20)	Holder of prescribed learner's permit driving motor bike between midnight and 5.00 a.m. without carrying passenger acting as qualified supervising driver	\$341
81(4)	Contravening condition endorsed on licence or permit under section 81 of Act	\$350

Section	<b>Description of offence against</b> <i>Motor Vehicles</i> <i>Act 1959</i>	Fee
81A(9)	Contravening condition of provisional licence	\$341
81A(13)	Holder of P1 or P2 licence under the age of 25 years driving high powered vehicle	\$341
81A(15)(a)	Holder of P1 licence driving motor bike on road while no P plate affixed to bike in accordance with regulations	\$341
81A(15)(b)	Holder of P1 licence driving motor vehicle (other than motor bike) on road while P plates not affixed to vehicle in accordance with regulations—	
	only 1 P plate affixed to vehicle in accordance with regulations	\$199
	no P plates affixed to vehicle in accordance with regulations	\$341
81A(16)	Holder of P1 licence under the age of 25 years driving between midnight and 5.00 a.m. without being accompanied by a person acting as qualified supervising driver	\$341
81A(18)	Holder of P1 licence under the age of 25 years driving with 2 or more peer passengers in the vehicle without carrying person acting as qualified supervising driver	\$341
81AB(5)	Contravening condition of probationary licence	\$350
81B(3)	Failing to comply with requirement made by Registrar	
	failure to attend lecture	\$112
96(1)	Failing to produce licence or learner's permit on request of police officer	\$187
97A(3)	Failing to carry or produce licence while driving under section 97A of Act	\$187
98AAA(1)	Failing to carry or produce licence while driving heavy vehicle	\$187
98AAB	Failing to carry or produce probationary licence, provisional licence or learner's permit while driving	\$187
102(1)	Driving uninsured motor vehicle on road or causing uninsured motor vehicle to stand on road	\$662
102(2)	Being owner of uninsured motor vehicle driven or found standing on road	\$662
136(1)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of name or residence of natural person who is registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle or holds licence or learner's permit	\$184
136(2)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of name or principal place of business of natural person who holds trade plates	\$184
136(2a)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of principal place of business of body corporate that is registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle or holds trade plates	\$184

Section	<b>Description of offence against</b> <i>Motor Vehicles</i> <i>Act 1959</i>	Fee
136(2b)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of garage address of motor vehicle	\$184
136(2c)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of registered operator of motor vehicle	\$184
136(2d)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of postal address	\$184
143(1)	Causing or permitting another person to do or omit to do anything in contravention of Act or regulations	
	causing or permitting commission of expiable offence	the expiation fee prescribed for the expiable offence

## 2—Offences against these regulations

Regulation	Description of offence against these regulations	Fee
36(1)	Driving motor vehicle on road while number plate or trade plate obscured or distorted by device or substance	\$454
36(4)	Driving motor vehicle on road while number plate on bike rack obscured or distorted by device or substance	\$454
55E	Failing to carry or produce certificate of exemption while driving a high powered vehicle	\$204
74(7)	Contravening or failing to comply with requirements of regulation concerning written-off vehicle notices or notification	
	alleged offence not committed in the course of a trade or business	\$303
75(1)	Driving written-off vehicle to or from place other than place specified in regulation	
	alleged offence not committed in the course of a trade or business	\$303

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 162 of 2016

# Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia) (Expiation Fees) Variation Regulations 2016

under the Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia) Act 2013

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of *Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia) (Expiation Fees) Regulations 2013*

- 4 Variation of regulation 4—Prescribed offences and expiation fees
- 5 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Offences, prescribed offences and expiation fees

Part 1—Offences against the local application provisions of the Act

Part 2—Prescribed offences against the Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia)

Division 1-Prescribed offences for purposes of section 591 of the Law

Division 2-Prescribed offences peculiar to South Australia

Part 3—Prescribed offences against the *Heavy Vehicle (Mass, Dimension and Loading)* National Regulation (South Australia)

Part 4—Prescribed offences against the *Heavy Vehicle (Fatigue Management) National Regulation (South Australia)* 

# Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia)* (*Expiation Fees) Variation Regulations 2016*.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Heavy Vehicle National Law (South Australia) (Expiation Fees) Regulations 2013

### 4—Variation of regulation 4—Prescribed offences and expiation fees

Regulation 4—after subregulation (3) insert:

- (4) Pursuant to section 28(3)(g) of the Act—
  - (a) an offence against the *Heavy Vehicle (Fatigue Management)* National Regulation (South Australia) referred to in a column headed "Regulation" in the table in Part 4 of Schedule 1 is a prescribed offence for the purposes of section 591 of the Law; and
  - (b) the expiation fees set out in a column headed "Fee" in the table in Part 4 of Schedule 1 are the penalties fixed in accordance with section 737 of the Law for alleged prescribed offences against those national regulations and are included for convenience purposes only.

Note—

See <u>https://www.nhvr.gov.au/law-policies/penalties</u> for the Regulator's list of penalties and see regulation 5.

### 5—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Offences, prescribed offences and expiation fees

# Part 1—Offences against the local application provisions of the Act

Section	Description of offence	Fee
19(2)	Failure to comply with a direction given under section 19(1)	\$600
21(1)	Sale or other disposal of a heavy vehicle in respect of which a vehicle defect notice is in force	\$300

# Part 2—Prescribed offences against the *Heavy Vehicle* National Law (South Australia)

## Division 1—Prescribed offences for purposes of section 591 of the Law

Section	Description of offence	Fee
60(1)	Using, or permitting the use of, a heavy vehicle that contravenes a heavy vehicle standard—	
	(a) if the heavy vehicle standard relates to a speed limiter	\$640
	(b) in any other case	\$320
79(2)	Failure to comply with notice to return vehicle standards exemption (permit) to Regulator within specified period	\$426
81(1)	Contravening a condition of a vehicle standards exemption	\$426

### 23 June 2016 THE SOUTH AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT GAZETTE

Section	Description of offence	Fee
81(2)	Using, or permitting the use of, a heavy vehicle that contravenes a condition of a vehicle standards exemption	\$426
81(3)	Using or permitting the use of a heavy vehicle in a way that contravenes a condition of a vehicle standards exemption	\$426
82(2)	Failure of driver to comply with condition under vehicle standards exemption (notice) to keep relevant document in driver's possession	\$320
82(3)	<i>Offence for relevant party if driver commits an offence against section 82(2)</i>	\$320
83(1)	Failure of driver to keep a copy of vehicle standards exemption (permit) in driver's possession	\$320
83(2)	Failure of driver to return copy of vehicle standards exemption (permit) to relevant party when driver stops working	\$320
83(3)	<i>Offence for relevant party if driver commits an offence against section 83(1)</i>	\$320
85(1)	Modifying a heavy vehicle without approval by approved vehicle examiner or Regulator	\$320
85(2)	Using or permitting the use of a heavy vehicle that has been modified without approval by approved vehicle examiner or Regulator	\$320
86(2)	Failure of approved vehicle examiner to give approved certificate and ensure plate or label is fitted or affixed to vehicle	\$320
87A(1)	<i>Tampering with plate or label fitted to or affixed to a heavy vehicle under section 86(2) or 87(3)</i>	\$320
89(1)	Using or permitting the use of an unsafe heavy vehicle	\$640
90(1)	Using or permitting the use of a heavy vehicle not fitted with emission control system for each relevant emission	\$320
90(2)	Using or permitting the use of emission control system that is not operating in accordance with manufacturer's design	\$320
90(3)	Using or permitting the use of an emission control system resulting in a failure to comply with heavy vehicle standard	\$320
92(2)	Using or permitting the use of a heavy vehicle displaying a warning sign where the sign is not required to be displayed	\$320
96(1)	Driving a heavy vehicle where vehicle or components do not comply with mass requirements—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
102(1)(a)	Driving a heavy vehicle that does not comply with dimension requirements where vehicle does not have goods or passengers in it	\$320
102(1)(b)	Driving a heavy vehicle that does not comply with dimension requirements where vehicle has goods or passengers in it—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$320
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$533
109(2)	Using or permitting the use of a heavy vehicle without fixing the required flag or light to back of the load	\$320

Section	Description of offence	Fee
111(1)	Driving a heavy vehicle that does not comply, or whose load does not comply, with loading requirements—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$320
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$533
129(1)	Driver or operator of heavy vehicle contravening a condition of a mass or dimension exemption	\$640
129(2)	Using or permitting the use of a heavy vehicle that contravenes a condition of a mass or dimension exemption	\$640
129(3)	Using or permitting the use of a heavy vehicle in a way that contravenes a condition of a mass or dimension exemption	\$640
130(2)	Failure of driver of pilot or escort vehicle to comply with conditions of a mass or dimension exemption	\$640
130(3)	Offence for operator of a heavy vehicle if driver of pilot or escort vehicle commits an offence against section 130(2)	\$640
131(1)	Failure of driver of a pilot vehicle to ensure that the accompanying heavy vehicle is not contravening a condition of exemption	\$640
132(2)	Failure of driver of class 1 or class 3 heavy vehicle to comply with condition under mass or dimension exemption (notice) to keep relevant document in driver's possession	\$320
132(3)	<i>Offence for relevant party if driver of class 1 or class 3 heavy vehicle commits an offence against section 132(2)</i>	\$320
133(1)	Failure of driver of a class 1 or class 3 heavy vehicle to keep a copy of a mass or dimension exemption (permit) in driver's possession	\$320
133(2)	Failure of driver of a class 1 or class 3 heavy vehicle to return copy of mass or dimension exemption (permit) to relevant party when driver stops working	\$426
133(3)	Offence for relevant party if driver of class 1 or class 3 heavy vehicle commits an offence against section 133(1)	\$320
134(1)	Displaying a heavy vehicle warning sign on a heavy vehicle not being used under a dimension exemption	\$320
134(2)	Displaying a pilot vehicle warning sign on a vehicle not being used as a pilot vehicle for a heavy vehicle being used under a dimension exemption	\$320
137	Using or permitting the use of a class 2 heavy vehicle other than in accordance with a class 2 heavy vehicle authorisation	\$640
150(1)	Driver or operator of a class 2 heavy vehicle contravening a condition of a class 2 heavy vehicle authorisation	\$640
151(2)	Failure of driver of a class 2 heavy vehicle to comply with a condition of a class 2 heavy vehicle authorisation (notice) to keep relevant document in driver's possession	\$320
151(3)	<i>Offence for a relevant party if driver commits an offence against section 151(2)</i>	\$320
152(1)	Failure of driver of a class 2 heavy vehicle to keep copy of class 2 heavy vehicle authorisation (permit) in driver's possession	\$320
152(2)	Failure of driver to return copy of class 2 heavy vehicle authorisation (permit) to relevant party	\$426
152(3)	<i>Offence for relevant party if driver commits offence against section 152(1)</i>	\$320

<u>Section</u>

153(1)

153(2)

153A(1)

181(3)

183(2)

Description of offence	Fee
Failure of driver to keep copy of the PBS vehicle approval in driver's possession	\$320
<i>Offence for relevant party if driver commits offence against section 153(1)</i>	\$320
Using or permitting the use of a restricted access vehicle on a road other than one on which the vehicle is allowed to be used under an applicable mass or dimension authority	\$640
Failure to comply with notice requiring return of permit for mass or dimension authority to Regulator within specified time	\$426
Offence for an employer, a prime contractor or an operator if a relevant offence is committed by the driver of a heavy vehicle—	
(a) for a mass requirement—	
(i) for a minor risk breach	\$426

	(a) for a mass requirement—	
	(i) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(ii) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
	(b) for a dimension requirement—	
	(i) if not carrying any goods or passengers	\$320
	(ii) for a minor risk breach	\$320
	(iii) for a substantial risk breach	\$533
	(c) for a loading requirement—	
	(i) for a minor risk breach	\$320
	(ii) for a substantial risk breach	\$533
184(1)	Driving a heavy vehicle while towing more than 1 other vehicle other than as permitted by section 184(2)	\$320
185(1)	Using or permitting the use of a trailer not securely coupled to the vehicle in front of it in a heavy combination	\$640
185(2)	Using or permitting the use of incompatible or improperly connected components of a coupling in a heavy combination	\$640
190(1)	Responsible entity permitting the transport of a freight container without providing the operator or driver of the heavy vehicle with a complying container weight declaration	\$640
191(1)	Operator of a heavy vehicle permitting the driver of the vehicle to transport freight container without providing the driver with a complying container weight declaration	\$640
191(3)	Failure of operator of a heavy vehicle to provide complying container weight declaration or prescribed particulars to carrier	\$640
192(1)	Driving a heavy vehicle loaded with freight container without a complying container weight declaration for the container	\$640
192(2)	Failure of driver of a heavy vehicle to keep the complying container weight declaration in or about the vehicle and in a way readily available to an authorised officer	\$320
219(1)	Offence against section 219(1)—	

\$320 (a) driver of a heavy vehicle exceeding a speed limit of 50 km/h or 60 km/h

Section	Description of offence	Fee
	(b) driver of a heavy vehicle exceeding a speed limit of 70 km/h or 80 km/h—	
	(i) by less than 15 km/h	\$320
	(ii) by 15 km/h or more	\$533
	<ul> <li>driver of a heavy vehicle other than a road train exceeding a speed limit of 90 km/h—</li> </ul>	
	(i) by less than 15 km/h	\$320
	(ii) by 15 km/h or more	\$533
	(d) driver of a road train exceeding a speed limit of 90 km/h by less than 15 km/h	\$533
	<ul> <li>driver of a heavy vehicle exceeding speed limit of 100 km/h or more by less than 15 km/h</li> </ul>	\$533
250(1)	Failure of solo driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to comply with standard hours—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
251(1)	Failure of two-up driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to comply with standard hours—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
254(1)	Failure of solo driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to comply with BFM hours—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
256(1)	Failure of two-up driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to comply with BFM hours—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
258(1)	Failure of driver of fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to comply with AFM hours—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
260(1)	Failure of driver of fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to comply with exemption hours—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
263(1)	Failure of driver of fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to comply with change of work and rest hours option requirements	\$426
284(2)	Failure to comply with notice to return work and rest hours exemption (permit) to Regulator within specified period	\$640
286(1)	Failure to comply with a condition of a work and rest hours exemption	\$640

Section	Description of offence	Fee
287(2)	Failure of driver of fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle operating under a work and rest hours exemption (notice) to keep a relevant document in driver's possession	\$320
287(3)	<i>Offence for relevant party if driver commits an offence against section 287(2)</i>	\$320
288(1)	Failure of driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to keep a copy of work and rest hours exemption (permit) in the driver's possession	\$320
288(2)	Failure of driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to return copy of work and rest hours exemption (permit) to relevant party in certain circumstances	\$426
288(3)	Offence for relevant party if driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle commits an offence against section 288(1)	\$320
293(1)	Failure of driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to keep a work diary, record required information and keep the diary in the driver's possession	\$640
296(1)	Failure of driver to record required information in work diary in the manner and at the time prescribed by the national regulations	\$160
297(2)	Failure of driver to record required information immediately after starting work on a day	\$640
298(1)	Failure of driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to record the odometer reading as required by the national regulations	\$160
299	Failure of two-up driver to provide details prescribed by the national regulations as requested by the other driver	\$320
301	Failure of driver to comply with requirements for recording information in written work diary	\$160
302	Failure of driver to comply with requirements for recording information in electronic work diary	\$160
303	Failure of driver to record time in work diary according to the time zone of driver's base location	\$160
305(1)	Failure of driver of fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to record required information in supplementary record	\$640
305(2)	Failure to comply with requirements for recording information in supplementary record not in electronic form	\$320
305(3)	Failure of driver to record time in supplementary record according to the time zone of driver's base location	\$160
306	Failure of driver of fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to notify the Regulator within 2 business days in the approved form when a written work diary has been filled up, destroyed, lost or stolen	\$320
307(2)	Failure of driver to notify the Regulator within 2 business days in the approved form when an electronic work diary has been filled up, destroyed, lost or stolen or is not in working order	\$320
307(3)	Failure of driver to ensure electronic work diary is examined and brought into working order within period required by Regulator	\$320
308(1)	Failure of driver to comply with the requirements when an old work diary	\$320

Section	Description of offence	Fee
310(2)	Failure to inform the driver's record keeper within 2 business days of becoming aware of matters specified in section 310(1)	\$640
312(3)	Failure of record keeper to notify the Regulator within 2 business days of destroyed, lost or stolen electronic work diary	\$640
319(1)	Failure of record keeper to comply with requirements specified in section 319(1)	\$640
321(1)	Failure of record keeper to comply with requirements specified in section 321(1)	\$640
321(3)	Failure of record keeper to record information required if driver is operating under BFM or AFM hours	\$640
322(2)	Failure of driver to give copy of work diary entry or supplementary record to each record keeper within 21 days	\$320
323(2)	Failure of driver to give new record keeper a copy of information recorded in a work diary relating to the 28 day period before the change to the new record keeper	\$320
324A(2)	Failure of record keeper to give the driver a copy of the record or make the record available etc	\$160
341(1)	Failure of record keeper to keep records required under Division 3 for 3 years after specified day	\$640
341(2)	Failure of record keeper to keep records required under Division 9 or Division 10 for specified period	\$640
341(3)	Failure of record keeper to ensure record (or copy) is readily available to an authorised officer at the record location	\$320
341(4)	Failure of driver who is his or her own record keeper to ensure record (or copy) is readily available to an authorised officer at the record location	\$320
341(7)	Failure of record keeper to ensure information recorded in an electronic work diary is maintained so as to comply with the Regulator's conditions and manufacturer's instructions	\$160
354(3)	Failure of holder of an electronic recording system approval to comply with a direction of the Regulator	\$640
354(5)	Failure of a person to whom a notice has been given of amended conditions of an electronic recording system approval to give a copy of the notice to each person supplied by that person with an electronic recording system or a device forming part of the system	\$640
355(2)	Failure of holder of approval of an electronic recording system that constitutes a part or the whole of an electronic work diary to remove any electronic message on the system's visual display within the period required by the Regulator	\$640
355(4)	Failure of holder of an approval to comply with a direction of the Regulator	\$640
355(6)	Failure of person to whom a notice that the approval has been cancelled to give a notice to each other person to whom the person has supplied an electronic recording system the subject of the approval that the approval has been cancelled	\$640
373(2)	Failure to comply with notice requiring return of work diary exemption (permit) to Regulator	\$640
375	Contravention of a condition of a work diary exemption	\$640

Section	Description of offence	Fee
376(2)	Failure of driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to comply with a condition under a work diary exemption (notice) to keep relevant document in driver's possession	\$320
376(3)	<i>Offence for relevant party if driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle commits an offence against section 376(2)</i>	\$320
377	Failure of a driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to keep a copy of work diary exemption (permit) in the driver's possession	\$320
392(2)	<i>Failure to comply with notice requiring return of fatigue record keeping exemption (permit) to Regulator</i>	\$640
395	Contravention of a condition of a fatigue record keeping exemption	\$640
396(2)	Failure of owner of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle to maintain odometer in accordance with requirements prescribed by the national regulations	\$640
399(2)	Driving or permitting a person to drive a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle without complying with section 398	\$640
467	Failure of holder of BFM or AFM accreditation to comply with accreditation conditions	\$640
468(1)	Failure of driver operating under BFM accreditation or AFM accreditation to keep certain documents in driver's possession	\$320
468(3)	Offence for operator if driver commits an offence against section 468(1)	\$320
469(2)	Failure of driver operating under a BFM accreditation or AFM accreditation to return document to operator as soon as reasonably practicable	\$426
470(3)	Failure of operator to inform driver operating under AFM accreditation of the AFM hours applying under the accreditation	\$640
470(8)	Failure of operator to comply with a requirement under section 470(7)	\$320
471(2)	Failure of operator to give notice to driver or scheduler of amendment, suspension or cessation of heavy vehicle accreditation	\$640
471(3)	Failure of driver to return to the operator any document relevant to the notice given to the driver by the operator for the purposes of section 468(1)	\$426
476(2)	Failure to return accreditation certificate to Regulator within specified period	\$640
488	Failure to return identity card to Regulator within specified period	\$426
513(4)	Failure to comply with a direction given under section $513(1)$	\$640
514(3)	Failure to comply with a direction given under section $514(1)$	\$640
516(3)	Failure to comply with a direction given under section 516(1)	\$640
517(4)	Failure to comply with a direction given under section 517(2)	\$640
522(5)	Failure to produce a heavy vehicle for inspection at the place and time stated in the notice	\$640
524(5)	Failure to comply with a direction given under section $524(2)$ or $(3)$	\$640
526(4)	Failure of driver of a heavy vehicle who is not the operator of the vehicle to give defect notice to operator	\$320
528(3)	<i>Removing or defacing a defective vehicle label attached to a heavy vehicle</i>	\$320

vehicle

Section	Description of offence	Fee
529	Using or permitting the use of a heavy vehicle in contravention of a vehicle defect notice	\$640
531(4)	Failure of person who is not the operator of a heavy vehicle who is given notice of an amendment or withdrawal to give the notice to the operator as soon as reasonably practicable	\$320
533(7)	Failure to comply with a direction given under section 533	\$1 065
534(5)	Failure to comply with a direction given under section 534	\$1 065
567(4)	Failure to comply with a requirement made under section $567(2)$ or $(3)$	\$320
568(3)	Failure to comply with a requirement made under section 568(2)	An amount equal to 10% of the amount of the maximum penalty for an offence of failing to keep the document, device or other thing in the driver's possession
568(7)	Failure to comply with a requirement given under section 568(6)	\$320

568(7)	Failure to comply with a requirement given under section 568(6)	\$320
569(2)	Failure to comply with a requirement made under section 569(1)	\$640
569(7)	Failure to comply with a requirement made under section 569(6)	\$320

# **Division 2—Prescribed offences peculiar to South Australia**

Section	Description of offence	Fee
183(2)	Offence for a consignor, packer, loading manager or loader if a relevant offence is committed by the driver of a heavy vehicle—	
	(a) for a mass requirement—	
	(i) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(ii) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
	(b) for a dimension requirement—	
	(i) for a minor risk breach	\$320
	(ii) for a substantial risk breach	\$533
	(c) for a loading requirement—	
	(i) for a minor risk breach	\$320
	(ii) for a substantial risk breach	\$533
261(2)	Offence for an employer, a prime contractor, an operator, a scheduler, a consignor or consignee, a loading manager, a loader or an unloader if relevant offence committed by the driver of a fatigue-regulated heavy vehicle—	
	(a) for a minor risk breach	\$426
	(b) for a substantial risk breach	\$640
322(4)	Failure of record keeper to ensure driver complies with section 322(2)	\$320
577(4)	Failure to comply with a requirement made under section 577(1) or (2)	\$1 065

# Part 3—Prescribed offences against the Heavy Vehicle (Mass, Dimension and Loading) National Regulation (South Australia)

Section	Description of offence	Fee
11(1)	Failure to maintain relevant accreditation label on CML heavy vehicle in way required by section 11(2), (3) and (4)	\$320
16(2)	Using or permitting the use of HML heavy vehicle under higher mass limits in an area or on a route to which the HML declaration applies where vehicle is neither equipped for monitoring by an approved intelligent transport system nor covered by an intelligent access agreement	\$320
28	Driver or operator of HML heavy vehicle contravening a condition of HML permit	\$320
34(2)	Failure to comply with a notice to return HML permit	\$400
36(2)	Failure to maintain relevant accreditation label on HML heavy vehicle in way required by section 36(3) and (5)	\$320

# Part 4—Prescribed offences against the *Heavy Vehicle* (*Fatigue Management*) National Regulation (South Australia)

Section	Description of offence	Fee
18A(1)	Failure of driver on changing from 1 form of work diary to another to	\$160
	record certain information in compliance with subsection (2)	

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 163 of 2016

MPOL16/10CS

# **Controlled Substances (Pesticides) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Controlled Substances Act 1984

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Controlled Substances (Pesticides) Regulations 2003

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the *Controlled Substances (Pesticides) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Controlled Substances (Pesticides) Regulations 2003

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 On application for the issue or renewal of a pest controller's licence—
  - (a) for 1 year \$314.00
  - (b) for 3 years \$942.00

# 2 On application for the issue or renewal of a full pest management technician's licence—

(a)	for 1 year	\$77.50
(b)	for 3 years	\$233.00
On appl licence	ication for the issue of a limited pest management technician's	\$77.50
11	ication for an extension of the term of a limited pest ment technician's licence	\$30.00

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

3

4

following consultation by the Minister with the Controlled Substances Advisory Council and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 164 of 2016

T&F16/026CS

# **Tobacco Products (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Tobacco Products Regulation Act 1997

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Tobacco Products Regulations 2004

4 Variation of regulation 4—Licence fee (section 10(3))

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Tobacco Products (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Tobacco Products Regulations 2004

#### 4—Variation of regulation 4—Licence fee (section 10(3))

Regulation 4—delete "\$266" and substitute:

\$271

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 165 of 2016

T&F16/026CS

# **Real Property (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Real Property Act 1886

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of *Real Property Regulations* 2009

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees payable to Registrar-General

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### **1—Short title**

These regulations may be cited as the Real Property (Fees) Variation Regulations 2016.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Real Property Regulations 2009

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees payable to Registrar-General

1For the registration or entry of each instrument (irrespective of<br/>the number of folios to be endorsed)—other than any<br/>registration or entry specifically provided for\$157.00

2	For registering a transfer—			
	<ul> <li>(a) where the consideration, or the value as assessed under the <i>Stamp Duties Act 1923</i> (whichever is the greater)—</li> </ul>			
		(i)	does not exceed \$5 000	\$157.00
		(ii)	does not exceed \$20 000	\$174.00
		(iii)	does not exceed \$40 000	\$191.00
		(iv)	exceeds \$40 000	\$268.00
			\$ \$79.00 for every \$10 000 (or part of \$10 000) ve \$50 000	
	(b)	adju whe thos	ere the Commissioner of State Taxation has adged the transfer to be exempt from stamp duty or ere no <i>ad valorem</i> stamp duty is payable (except for se transfers assessed pursuant to section 71C of the <i>mp Duties Act 1923</i> )	\$157.00
	(c)		has been assessed pursuant to sections 71CA, CB, 71CBA or 71CC of the <i>Stamp Duties Act 1923</i>	\$157.00
3	On lodgment of a caveat under sections 39, 80F or 223D of the \$157.00 Act			\$157.00
4	On lodg	ment	of a priority notice under section 154A of the Act	\$20.35
5	On lodgment of an application to extend the duration of a \$10.20 priority notice under section 154G of the Act			\$10.20
6	On lodgment of notice of withdrawal of a priority notice under no fee section 154E of the Act			no fee
7	For a search of the details of a priority notice no fee			
8	For the deposit, or noting the revocation, of a duplicate or \$157.00 attested copy of a power of attorney			
9	For an application for the issue of a substituted lessee's copy of a \$157.00 Crown lease or duplicate certificate of title (exclusive of the cost of advertising in the Gazette)			
10	For the registration of an application to note a change of address no fee			no fee
11	For entry of a foreclosure order (exclusive of the cost of \$260.00 advertising in the Gazette)			\$260.00
12	For a certified copy of—			
	(a)	an c Act	original certificate of title under section 51A of the	\$30.75
	(b)	a sta	atement under section 51D of the Act	\$30.75
13	Unless o	otherw	vise specified—	
	(a)	new	cept where paragraph (b) applies) for the issue of a certificate of title or a substituted lessee's copy of rown lease or duplicate certificate of title	\$83.50
	(b)	ama	the issue of a new certificate of title on the algamation of allotments wholly within the unt Lofty Catchment Area	no fee

14	For the issue of a certificate of title—		
	(a) (limited or ordinary) on the land first being brought n		
		under the Act	
	(b)	to a corporation or district council for a road, street or reserve	no fee
	(c)	to effect correction or amendment of title or for the convenience of the Lands Titles Registration Office in effecting registration or redesignation	no fee
	(d)	under Part 5 Division 2 of the Act (but only if the volume and folio numbers remain the same and the title is not issued to replace 1 that has been lost or destroyed)	no fee
15		w certificate of title issued as a result of the existing title ll of endorsements	no fee
16	For an a	pplication for the division of land—	
	(a)	where deposit of the plan of division will not vest an estate or interest in land (except a street, road, thoroughfare, reserve or other similar open space that vests in a council or other authority or reverts to the Crown or an easement that will vest in an authority or entity in accordance with section 223LG of the <i>Real</i> <i>Property Act 1886</i> ) in any person	\$157.00
	(b)	in all other cases	\$387.00
Note	<u> </u>		
	of the	for the examination of the plan of division, deposit or accep e plan and for the issue of new certificates of title are payabl dule in addition to this amount.	
17	For an a	pplication for the amalgamation of allotments—	
	(a)	for the amalgamation of allotments that are wholly within the Mount Lofty Catchment Area	no fee
	(b)	for any other amalgamation of allotments	\$157.00
Note	<u> </u>		
	Fees for the examination of the plan of amalgamation, deposit or acceptance for filing of the plan and for the issue of new certificates of title are payable under this Schedule in addition to this amount.		
18	For the deposit or acceptance for filing by the		

Registrar-General—

(a)	of a plan of amalgamation of allotments wholly within	no fee
	the Mount Lofty Catchment Area	

(b) of any other plan \$142.00

## 19 Unless otherwise specified, for the examination—

	(a)	of a plan of survey certified correct by a licensed surveyor and lodged with or submitted to the Registrar-General (for freehold or Crown land)— plus a further \$462, payable by the surveyor, if the plan is relodged or resubmitted following rejection by the Registrar-General (However, the Registrar-General may waive or reduce the further fee if he or she considers that appropriate in a particular case having regard to the work involved in examining the relodged or resubmitted plan.)	\$922.00		
	(b)	of an uncertified data plan (except a plan of a kind referred to in paragraph (c)) lodged with or submitted to the Registrar-General (for freehold or Crown land)	\$462.00		
	(c)	of an uncertified data plan lodged with or submitted to the Registrar-General for the amalgamation of allotments wholly within the Mount Lofty Catchment Area	no fee		
	(d)	of a plan lodged with or submitted to the Registrar-General for the purposes of a lease of part of an allotment	\$186.00		
20	For the e	For the examination—			
	(a)	of a plan of survey certified correct by a licensed surveyor and lodged with the Registrar-General for information purposes only	no fee		
	(b)	of an uncertified data plan lodged with the Registrar-General for information purposes only	no fee		
	(c)	of a plan of survey certified by a licensed surveyor and lodged with the Registrar-General by the Surveyor-General	no fee		
	(d)	of plans submitted under the Roads (Opening and Closing) Act 1991	no fee		
21		Jnless otherwise specified, for the deposit or acceptance for\$142.0iling of any plan (for freehold or Crown land)\$142.0			
22	For the deposit or acceptance for filing of a plan prepared by the no fee Registrar-General or under the Registrar-General's authorisation				
23	For the withdrawal of any instrument, application or plan \$60.50 submitted for registration, deposit or acceptance for filing				
24	For the withdrawal of any plan of survey certified correct by a \$124.00 licensed surveyor and lodged with or submitted to the Registrar-General for examination				
25		For an application under section 146 of the Act (exclusive of the \$204.00 cost of registration of the instrument of discharge)			
26	For an application to the Registrar-General to issue a summons \$204.0 under section 220(c) of the Act				

27	For searching the Register Book—		
	(a)	<ul> <li>(a) comprising a search statement from the Registrar-General's unregistered document system, a copy of the original certificate of title and a check search</li> </ul>	
	(b)	comprising a search of the electronic records of the original certificate of title, the Registrar-General's unregistered document system and a check search, including access to the relevant plan image and all registered instruments and dealings recorded on that certificate of title	\$33.00
28	28 For a copy—		
	(a)	of a registered instrument	\$10.20
	(b)	of a plan deposited or accepted for filing by the Registrar-General	\$10.80
	(c)	of a cancelled original certificate of title	no fee
	(d)	of any instrument, entry, document or record not otherwise specifically provided for	\$10.20
29	29 For requesting any of the following under the South Australian Integrated Land Information System ( <i>SAILIS</i> ):		
	(a)	a check search of a specified certificate of title	no fee
	(b)	the details of a specified document	no fee
	(c)	the location of a specified document or plan	
	(d)	the details of a specified plan	
	(e) a list of the numbers assigned to plans lodged in respect of a specified Section of land in a Hundred		no fee
	(f)	the details of the delivery of a specified item	no fee
	(g)	the details of the delivery of documents relating to-	
		(i) a specified agent code	no fee
		(ii) a specified delivery slip	no fee
	(h)	the details of a specified agent code	no fee
	(i)	in respect of a specified document—a search of—	
		(i) the series in which the document was lodged; and	no fee
		<ul> <li>(ii) any other series into which the document may, subsequently, have been moved, prior to registration of the document</li> </ul>	no fee
	(k)	a search of the location of, and the numbers assigned to, documents lodged in a specified series	no fee
	(1)	a record of all documents lodged or registered under a specified name	no fee
30	For the	return of a cancelled duplicate certificate of title	\$32.75
31	For advertising in the Gazette—		
	(a)	an application for a foreclosure	no fee

	(b) an application under Part 4 of the Act	no fee
	(c) an application under Part 7A of the Act	no fee
32	For reporting to a local government authority—	
	(a) a change of ownership of land (for each change of ownership reported)	\$2.15
	(b) a converted certificate of title (for each converted certificate of title reported)	\$2.15
	(c) on the subdivision of land—details of—	\$2.15
	(i) cancelled certificates of title; and	
	<ul><li>(ii) newly created parcels of land and new certificates of title issued in respect of those parcels; and</li></ul>	
	(iii) the valuation assessment for each new certificate of title issued,	
	(for each valuation assessment reported)	
33	For reporting to the South Australian Water Corporation-	
	(a) a change of ownership of land (for each change of ownership reported)	\$2.15
	(b) on the subdivision of land—details of—	\$2.15
	(i) cancelled certificates of title; and	
	<ul><li>(ii) newly created parcels and new certificates of title issued in respect of those parcels,</li></ul>	
	(for each new certificate of title reported)	
34	For providing miscellaneous reports of changes of ownership of land to government agencies (other than the South Australian Water Corporation)	no fee
35	<ul> <li>35 For providing reports of Heritage Agreements to the administrative unit of the Public Service that is, under a Minister, responsible for the administration of the <i>Heritage Places Act 1993</i></li> <li>36 For reporting to SA Power Networks a change of ownership of land (plus an additional fee of \$4.60 for each change of ownership reported)</li> </ul>	
36		
37	For a copy of any of the following documents under the <i>Bills of Sale Act 1886</i> :	
	(a) a document filed under section 11A of the <i>Bills of Sale</i> Act 1886	\$10.20
	(b) a registered bill of sale or a discharge, extension or renewal of a bill of sale	\$10.20
	(c) any other document	\$10.20
38	For a copy of a plan under the <i>Strata Titles Act 1988</i> (including provision of the unit entitlement sheet)	\$10.80
39	For a copy of a plan under the <i>Community Titles Act 1996</i> (including provision of the lot entitlement sheet)	\$10.80

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 166 of 2016

T&F16/026CS, AGO0063/16CS

# **Emergency Services Funding (Remissions—Land) Variation Regulations 2016**

under the Emergency Services Funding Act 1998

## Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Emergency Services Funding (Remissions—Land) Regulations 2014

- 4 Variation of regulation 3—Interpretation
- 5 Variation of regulation 6—Remissions for concession holders
- 6 Insertion of Part 2A

Part 2A—Remission of levy for eligible residential parks

8A Remission of levy8B Amount of remissio

- 8B Amount of remission Insertion of regulations 10A and 10B
- 7 Insertion of regulations 10A and 10B 10A Remission of levy—certain land uso
  - 10ARemission of levy—certain land uses10BAmount of remission—certain land uses
- 8 Variation of heading to Schedule 1
- 9 Insertion of Schedules 2 and 3

Schedule 2—Land use for which levy remitted under regulation 10A(1) and (2)

Schedule 3—Eligible residential parks

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Emergency Services Funding (Remissions—Land)* Variation Regulations 2016.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2016.

#### **3**—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

#### 4—Variation of regulation 3—Interpretation

(1) Regulation 3—after the definition of *Act* insert:

*commercial land* means land that is taken under section 8(2) of the Act to be used for the purpose defined as *commercial* in that section;

(2) Regulation 3—after the definition of *domestic partner* insert:

eligible residential park means a residential park set out in Schedule 3;

(3) Regulation 3—after the definition of *emergency services areas proclamation 2000* insert:

*industrial land* means land that is taken under section 8(2) of the Act to be used for the purpose defined as *industrial* in that section;

(4) Regulation 3—after the definition of *prescribed rate* insert:

**Regional area 1** means the part of the State reconstituted as the Regional area 1 emergency services area by the emergency services areas proclamation 2000;

(5) Regulation 3—after the definition of *Regional area 3* insert:

**Regional area 4** means the part of the State reconstituted as the Regional area 4 emergency services area by the emergency services areas proclamation 2000;

(6) Regulation 3, definition of *relevant financial year*—delete "2015/2016" and substitute:

2016/2017

(7) Regulation 3—after the definition of *residential land* insert:

*rural land* means land that is taken under section 8(2) of the Act to be used for the purpose defined as *rural* in that section and includes vacant land that is not used for any purpose but is taken by section 8(4) of the Act to be land used for a rural purpose.

#### 5—Variation of regulation 6—Remissions for concession holders

Regulation 6(5)—after paragraph (m) insert:

or

(n) in receipt of farm household allowance payments under the *Farm Household Support Act 2014* of the Commonwealth.

#### 6—Insertion of Part 2A

After Part 2 insert:

## Part 2A—Remission of levy for eligible residential parks

#### 8A—Remission of levy

The levy for the relevant financial year in respect of land constituting an eligible residential park is remitted for the benefit of all persons who are liable to pay the levy in respect of that land to the extent set out in regulation 8B.

#### **8B**—Amount of remission

The amount of the remission under regulation 8A is determined in accordance with the following formula:

$$A = \frac{L_1 \times (PR - RF)}{PR}$$

Where-

A is the amount of the remission

 $L_I$  is the amount of the component of the levy that is based on the value of the land

**PR** is the prescribed rate

*RF* is the remissions factor being—

- (a) if the land is residential land—0.000260; or
- (b) if the land is commercial land—0.000964; or
- (c) if the land is rural land situated in Regional area 1, Regional area 2 or Regional area 3–0.000095; or
- (d) if the land is rural land situated in Regional area 4—0.000260.

#### 7—Insertion of regulations 10A and 10B

After regulation 10 insert:

#### 10A—Remission of levy—certain land uses

(1) The levy for the relevant financial year in respect of land that is being used on the relevant day solely or predominantly for the purpose set out in item 1 of Schedule 2 is remitted for the benefit of all persons who are liable to pay the levy in respect of that land to the extent set out in regulation 10B(1).

- (2) The levy for the relevant financial year in respect of land that is being used on the relevant day solely or predominantly for 1 or more of the purposes set out in items 2 and 3 of Schedule 2 is remitted for the benefit of all persons who are liable to pay the levy in respect of that land to the extent set out in regulation 10B(2).
- (3) If land constituting an eligible residential park is being used on the relevant day solely or predominantly for 1 or more of the purposes set out in Schedule 1, the levy in respect of that land for the relevant financial year is remitted for the benefit of all persons who are liable to pay the levy in respect of that land to the extent set out in regulation 10B(3).
- (4) In this regulation—

relevant day has the same meaning as in section 8 of the Act.

#### 10B—Amount of remission—certain land uses

(1) The amount of the remission under regulation 10A(1) is determined in accordance with the following formula:

$$A = \frac{L_1 \times (PR - 0.000425)}{PR}$$

Where---

A is the amount of the remission

 $L_I$  is the amount that the component of the levy that is based on the value of the land would have been if the value of the land use factor in respect of the land had been one fifth of the value fixed by the Governor's notice under section 10 of the Act

**PR** is the prescribed rate.

(2) The amount of the remission under regulation 10A(2) is determined in accordance with the following formula:

$$A = \frac{L_1 \times (PR - 0.000260)}{PR}$$

Where---

A is the amount of the remission

 $L_I$  is the amount of the component of the levy that is based on the value of the land

**PR** is the prescribed rate.

(3) The amount of the remission under regulation 10A(3) is determined in accordance with the following formula:

$$A = \frac{L_1 \times (PR - 0.000425)}{PR}$$

Where-

*A* is the amount of the remission

23 June 2016

 $L_1$  is the amount that the component of the levy that is based on the value of the land would have been if the value of the land use factor in respect of the land had been one fifth of the value fixed by the Governor's notice under section 10 of the Act

**PR** is the prescribed rate.

#### 8—Variation of heading to Schedule 1

Heading to Schedule 1-after "remitted" insert:

under regulation 9

#### 9—Insertion of Schedules 2 and 3

After Schedule 1 insert:

# Schedule 2—Land use for which levy remitted under regulation 10A(1) and (2)

	Valuer General's Land Use Code	Valuer General's description of use
1	1760	Retired and aged accommodation
2	1765	Independent living unit
3	1766	Independent living unit B

# Schedule 3—Eligible residential parks

Elizabeth Village, Penfield

Hillier Residential Park, Hillier

Lakeside Goolwa, Goolwa North

The Palms Residential Park, Waterloo Corner

Rosetta Village, Victor Harbor

Sea Change Village, Goolwa

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

on the recommendation of the Treasurer and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 23 June 2016

No 167 of 2016

T&F16/039CS